Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
www.jcida.com

Notice of Board Meeting

Date: September 23, 2021

To: John Jennings
Robert Aliasso
W. Edward Walldroff
Paul Warneck
William Johnson
Lisa L’Huillier

From: Chairman David Converse

Re: Notice of Board of Directors’ Meeting

The Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency will hold their monthly Board Meeting on
Thursday, October 7, 2021 at 8:30 a.m. in the board room at 800 Starbuck Avenue,

Watertown, NY.
The live stream link will be available at www.jcida.com.

Please confirm your attendance with Peggy Sampson pssampson(@jcida.com at your earliest
convenience.

pss

G David Zembiec, CEO
Marshall Weir
Lyle Eaton
Joy Nuffer
Christine Powers
Greg Gardner
Kent Burto
Rob Aiken
Justin Miller, Esq.
Media



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
www.jcida.com

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Thursday, October 7, 2021 - 8:30 a.m.

I. Call to Order
IL. Pledge of Allegiance
III.  Privilege of the Floor
IV.  Minutes — September 9, 2021
Vi Treasurer’s Report — September 30, 2021
V1. Committee Reports

a. Nominating Committee

b. Loan Review Committee

i. Consider Resolution No. 10.07.2021.01 for Trudy Latimer d/b/a

Adirondack Hearing Innovations

VII. Unfinished Business
1. 146 Arsenal Street Building/YMCA Project

VIII. New Business

IX. Counsel

1. Consider Initial Project Resolution No. 10.07.2021.02 for MLR Realty, LLC

2. Consider Initial Project Resolution No. 10.07.2021.03 for 31606 Felt Mills LLC

3. Consider Supplemental Project Authorizing Resolution No. 10.07.2021.04 for
GSPP 24658 County Route 47 North LL.C

4. Consider Supplemental Project Authorizing Resolution No. 10.07.2021.05 for
GSPP 24658 County Route 47 South LLC

X. Adjournment



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency ﬁ%ﬁﬁ? A BT
Board Meeting Minutes il
September 9, 2021

The Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency held their board meeting on Thursday, September
9, 2021 in the board room at 800 Starbuck Avenue, Watertown, NY.

Present: David Converse, Chair, John Jennings, W. Edward Walldroff, William Johnson, Paul Warneck,
Robert E. Aliasso, Jr., Lisa L’Huillier

Excused: None
Absent: None

Also Present: Rob Aiken, Christine Powers, Brendan Straub from Channel 7 News, Craig Fox from the
Watertown Daily Times

Zoom: Justin Miller, Esq.
Staff Present: David Zembiec, Lyle Eaton, Peggy Sampson, Marshall Weir, Jay Matteson
I.  Call to Order: Mr. Converse called the meeting to order at 8:27 a.m.
IL  Privilege of the Floor: Mr. Converse invited guests to speak. No one spoke.

III.  Minutes: Minutes of the regular meeting held August 5, 2021 and the special meeting held
August 18, 2021 were presented. A motion to approve the minutes as presented was made by Mr.
Aliasso, seconded by Mr. Jennings. All in favor. Carried.

IV.  Treasurer’s Report: Mr. Aliasso reviewed the financials for the period ending August 31, 2021.
Mr. Aliasso said that he expects that we will end the year in a surplus on the revenue side. He
noted that we are being reimbursed by the YMCA for some of the expenses at the 146 Arsenal
Street facility. He said there is only one loan delinquency reported. After discussion, a motion
was made by Mr. Aliasso to accept the financial report as presented, seconded by Mr. Jennings.
All in favor. Carried.

V.  Committee Reports:

a. Loan Review Committee — Mr. Aliasso reviewed the minutes. He said the committee
discussed the CWT Farms International, Inc. application, PCB Remediation at 146
Arsenal Street, and the Gill House for which we are waiting for additional information.
Mr. Zembiec noted that the Henderson town planning board was to just begin site plan
review of the project this month. So, we will not see anything from them until October at

the soonest.

b. Finance Committee — Mr. Jennings said the committee met on August 24" to review and
discuss the proposed budget. It was noted that the bad debt allowances will remain at the
same levels (RLF $190,000 and MICRO $31,000).

i. 2021-2022 Budget — A motion was made by Mr. Jennings to adopt the proposed
budget, seconded by Mr. Warneck. All in favor. Carried.

1
.3



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

Board Meeting Minutes mm& ﬁ?

September 9, 2021

VI

VIL

VIIL.

Unfinished Business:

1. 146 Arsenal Street Building/YMCA Project — Mr. Zembiec said that the fencing around the
upper parking lot was approved by the City of Watertown and installed. He noted that the
remediation project is on track and should be completed by December. He said that some of
the sources are government funding and possibly a National Grid grant. It was noted that
EPA does not need to give final approval — they said to compile and keep documentation.

Mr. Converse asked to get their decision in writing. Mr. Zembiec will follow up.

2. Corporate Park Zoning — Mr. Zembiec said that he along with Mr. Warneck and Mr. Aiken
attended a work session with the Town of Watertown Planning Board. He said that they are
willing to update their regulations regarding the setback requirement and indicated that they
will look to the IDA to determine acceptable uses in the park that are consistent with the
covenants. The planning board will get back to us in a couple of weeks after they investigate
their options further.

New Business:

Marine Sanctuary — Mr. Aliasso reported that he met with County Officials the other night
regarding a marine sanctuary and heritage center that the County can compete for. He said that
Oswego, Cayuga, and Wayne counties are also competing. Mr. Aliasso said that he believes
Jefferson County would be an ideal place for the sanctuary and heritage center because it will
improve the water quality and lifestyle as well as map out shipwrecks. He said that he thinks it
should be an economic development initiative and would like to see a budget and PR program
developed. Mr. Matteson indicated that he is on the council and would like to help where he can.

Counsel:

1. Authorizing Resolution No. 09.09.2021.01 for CWT Farms International, Inc. — Mr.
Matteson shared renderings/floor plan of the proposed facility in the Thousand Islands Ag
Park. A motion was made by Mr. Warneck to approve the attached resolution, seconded by
Ms. L’Huillier. Roll call vote was taken. Mr. Aliasso — Yea, Mr. Converse — Yea, Mr.
Jennings — Yea, Mr. Johnson — Yea, Ms. L’Huillier — Yea, Mr. Walldroff — Yea, and Mr.
Warneck — Yea. Carried.

2. Initial Project Resolution No. 09.09.2021.02 for DigiCollect LLC — A motion to approve
the resolution was made by Mr. Johnson, seconded by Mr. Warneck. Discussion ensued. Mr.
Aliasso asked if the negotiated fees need to be addressed in the resolution. Attorney Miller
said that there has already been a discussion with Hari Achuthan about what the expectations
are. Mr. Zembiec said it doesn’t need to be in the approving resolution; he indicated that Mr.
Achuthan is aware of the requirement, and said the payments are covered in the Land
Development Agreements (LDA). Roll call vote was taken. Mr, Converse — Yea, Mr.
Jennings — Yea, Mr. Aliasso — Yea, Mr, Walldroff - Yea, Mr. Johnson — Yea, Ms. L’Huillier
— Yea, and Mr. Warneck — Yea. Carried.



. - i 3 ,1.'_._'] a
Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency @ﬁ%{/@\ [&ﬂ ﬁ

Board Meeting Minutes
September 9, 2021

3. DigiCollect LLC — Land Development Agreement — A motion to approve the LDA was
made by Mr. Aliasso, seconded by Mr. Johnson. Discussion ensued. Attorney Miller said
that the proposed LDA is largely the same as the Convalt LDA that was previously approved.
He said that the IDA will issue the 90-day notice to state agencies next week and pursue the
curb cut for the entryway. Roll call vote was taken. Mr. Converse — Yea, Mr. Jennings —
Yea, Mr. Aliasso — Yea, Mr. Walldroff — Yea, Mr. Johnson — Yea, Ms. L’Huillier — Yea, and
Mr. Warneck — Yea. Carried.

IX.  Adjournment: With no further business before the board, a motion to adjourn was made by Mr.
Aliasso, seconded by Mr. Jennings. All in favor. The meeting adjourned at 9:25 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,



PROJECT AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION
(CWT Farms International, Inc. Project)

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency was convened
on Thursday, September 9, 2021 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 09.09.2021.01

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT  AGENCY (i) APPOINTING CWT FARMS
INTERNATIONAL, INC., FOR ITSELF AND/OR ON BEHALF OF ONE OR
MORE ENTITIES TO BE FORMED (COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY”)
AS ITS AGENT TO UNDERTAKE A CERTAIN PROJECT (AS MORE
FULLY DESCRIBED BELOW); (ii) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF AN AGENT AGREEMENT, LEASE AGREEMENT,
LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, PAYMENT-IN-LIEU-OF-TAX AGREEMENT
AND RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT; (iii)
AUTHORIZING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
TO THE COMPANY (AS FURTHER DEFINED HEREIN); (iv) ADOPTING
FINDINGS WITH RESPECT TO THE STATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
REVIEW ACT (“SEQRA™); AND (v) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF
RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, (the
“Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the
“Agency”) was created with the authority and power to promote, develop, encourage and assist
in acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing
industrial, manufacturing, warehousing, commercial, research, and recreational facilities as
authorized by the Act, and in connection therewith to issue its revenue bonds, and/or enter into
straight lease transactions and provide other forms of financial assistance; and

WHEREAS, CWT Farms International, Inc., for itself and/or on behalf of an entity to be
formed (collectively, the “Company™), previously submitted an Application for Financial
Assistance (the “Application”) requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a certain project
(the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in an
approximately 5.31 acre vacant parcel of real property located a 20835 Alexander Drive in the
Town of Watertown, New York 13601 (the “Land”, being more particularly described as TMID
No 82.00-2-1.5 and Lot 8 in the TIAg Park), (ii) the planning, design, construction, equipping
and operation of an approximately 29,000 square foot poultry hatchery facility, including
hatching spaces, warehousing, storage, shipping, receiving, office and mechanical spaces,
external parking improvements, curbage, landscaping, storm water management and related site
improvements (collectively, the “Improvements”), and (iii) the acquisition in and around the
Improvements and of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal property and

Pag '
-6-



equipment (the “Equipment” and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the
“Facility™), and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision
(15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in
the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility back to the Company

(the “Straight I.ease Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, on August 18, 2021, the Agency adopted an initial resolution (the “Initial
Project Resolution”) which (i) accepted the Company’s application, (ii) authorized the
scheduling and conduct of a public hearing in compliance with the Act, (iii) described the
contemplated forms of financial assistance to be provided by the Agency (the “Financial
Assistance”, as described herein); and (iv) authorized the negotiation of an Agent and Financial
Assistance and Project Agreement (the “Agent Agreement”), Lease Agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”), Leaseback Agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”) and Payment-in-lieu-of-Tax
agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”) to be entered into with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Initial Project Resolution, the Agency published and
forwarded a Notice of Public Hearing to the Town of Watertown (the “Town”), the County of
Jefferson (the “County™), and the Watertown City School District (the “School”, and together
with the Town and County, the “Affected Tax Jurisdictions™) at least ten (10) days prior to said
Public Hearing are attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency held a public hearing on
August 31, 2021 at 1:30 p.m., local time, at Town of Watertown Municipal Building, 22867
County Route 67, Watertown, New York 13601 with respect to the Project (the “Public
Hearing”) and the proposed Financial Assistance (as further defined herein) being contemplated
by the Agency whereat interested parties were provided a reasonable opportunity, both orally and
in writing, to present their views, a copy of the minutes of the Public Hearing also being attached

hereto within Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the Town Planning Board of the Town of Watertown (the “Planning
Board”) reviewed the proposed Project pursuant to the State Environmental Quality Review Act,
as codified under Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and Regulations adopted
pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State (collectively,
“SEQRA”) and related Environmental Assessment Form (“EAF”), attached hereto as Exhibit B;

and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the foregoing, the Agency desires to authorize (i) the
appointment of the Company as agent of the Agency to undertake the Project; (ii) the execution
and delivery of the Agent Agreement, Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement, the PILOT
Agreement, and related documents; (iii) the provision of the Financial Assistance to the
Company, which shall include (a) an exemption from all state and local sales and use taxes with
respect to the qualifying personal property included in or incorporated into the Facility or used in
the construction and equipping of the Facility, (b) a mortgage recording tax exemption for
financings undertaken to construct the Facility; and (c) a partial real property tax abatement
through the execution of an agreement with the Agency regarding payments in lieu of real

Pag



property taxes to be made for the benefit of the Affected Tax Jurisdictions; and (iv) the review
and ratification of findings pursuant to SEQRA in connection with the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to (i) acquire title to or
other interest in the Land, the Existing Improvements, Improvements and the Equipment
constituting the Facility, (ii) lease or sell the Agency’s interest in the Land, Existing
Improvements, Improvements and Equipment constituting the Facility to the Company pursuant
to a lease agreement or sale agreement, and (iii) enter into a Straight Lease Transaction with the

Company; and

(C)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to undertake the
Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in the Town, which is located within
Jefferson County, New York, and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in
the Act; and

(D)  The Project will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of the Company or
any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area of the State of New York (the “State”)
to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the
Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State; and the Agency
hereby finds that, based on the Company’s Application, to the extent occupants are relocating
from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project
occupants from removing such other facility or plant to a location outside the State and/or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their
respective industries; and

(E)  Based upon a review of the Application and the EAF submitted to the Agency, the
Agency hereby:

(i) consents to and affirms the status of the Planning Board as Lead Agency
for review of the Facility, within the meaning of, and for all purposes of complying with

SEQRA; and

(i)  ratifies the proceedings undertaken by the Planning Board under SEQRA
with respect to the construction and equipping of the Facility pursuant to SEQRA; and

Pay



(iif)  finds that the Project involves an “unlisted action” (as such quoted term is
defined under SEQRA). The Agency’s review is “uncoordinated” (as such quoted term
is defined under SEQRA). Based upon the review by the Agency of the EAF and related
documents delivered by the Company to the Agency and other representations made by
the Company to the Agency in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby finds that
(a) the Project will result in no major impacts and, therefore, is one which may not cause
significant damage to the environment; (b) the Project will not have a “significant effect
on the environment” (as such quoted term is defined under SEQRA); and (c) no
“environmental impact statement” (as such quoted term is defined under SEQRA) need
be prepared for this action. This determination constitutes a “negative declaration” (as
such quoted terms are defined under SEQRA) for purposes of SEQRA.

Section 2. Subject to (i) the Company executing the Agent Agreement and/or
Leaseback Agreement, and (ii) the delivery to the Agency of a binder, certificate or other
evidence of liability insurance policy for the Project satisfactory to the Agency, the Agency
hereby authorizes the Company to proceed with the acquisition, renovation, construction,
reconstruction, rehabilitation and equipping of the Project and hereby appoints the Company as
the true and lawful agent of the Agency: (i) to acquire, construct and equip the Project; (ii) to
make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any contracts, orders, receipts, writings and
instructions, as the stated agent for the Agency with the authority to delegate such agency, in
whole or in part, to agents, subagents, contractors, and subcontractors of such agents and
subagents and to such other parties as the Company chooses; and (iii) in general, to do all things
which may be requisite or proper for completing the Project, all with the same powers and the
same validity that the Agency could do if acting in its own behalf; provided, however, the Agent
Agreement shall expire on December 31, 2022 (unless extended for good cause by the Executive
Director of the Agency).

Section 3. Based upon the representation and warranties made by the Company the
Application, the Agency hereby authorizes and approves the Company, as its agent, to make
purchases of goods and services relating to the Project and that would otherwise be subject to
New York State and local sales and use tax in an amount up to approximately $2,475,000.00,
which result in New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits (“sales and use
tax exemption benefits”) not to exceed $198,000.00. The Agency agrees to consider any
requests by the Company for increase to the amount of sales and use tax exemption benefits
authorized by the Agency upon being provided with appropriate documentation detailing the
additional purchases of property or services, and, to the extent required, the Agency authorizes
and conducts any supplemental public hearing(s).

Section 4. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the Act, the Agency may recover or
recapture from the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, any sales and use tax exemption
benefits taken or purported to be taken by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors,
or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, if it is determined
that: (i) the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to
make purchases for the benefit of the Project, is not entitled to the sales and use tax exemption
benefits; (ii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits are in excess of the amounts authorized to

Pag 9'



be taken by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to
make purchases for the benefit of the Project; (iii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits are
for property or services not authorized by the Agency as part of the Project; (iv) the Company
has made a material false statement on its application for financial assistance; (v) the sales and
use tax exemption benefits are taken in cases where the Company, its agents, consultants,
subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project
fails to comply with a material term or condition to use property or services in the manner
approved by the Agency in connection with the Project; and/or (vi) the Company obtains
mortgage recording tax benefits and/or real property tax abatements and fails to comply with a
material term or condition to use property or services in the manner approved by the Agency in
connection with the Project (collectively, items (i) through (vi) hereby defined as a “Recapture
Event”).

As a condition precedent of receiving sales and use tax exemption benefits and real
property tax abatement benefits, the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any
other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, must (i) if a Recapture
Event determination is made by the Agency, cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to recover
or recapture any sales and use tax exemption benefits, mortgage recording tax benefits and/or
real property tax abatements abatement benefits, and (ii) promptly pay over any such amounts to
the Agency that the Agency demands, if and as so required to be paid over as determined by the

Agency.

Section 5. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director (or Deputy
Executive Director) of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute
and deliver the Agent Agreement, Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, PILOT Agreement,
PILOT Mortgage, and related documents with such changes as shall be approved by the
Chairman, Vice Chairman, the Executive Director and counsel to the Agency upon execution.

Section 6. The Chairman (or Vice Chairman), Executive Director (or Deputy
Executive Director) of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute
and deliver any mortgage, assignment of leases and rents, security agreement, UCC-1 Financing
Statements and all documents reasonably contemplated by these resolutions or required by any
lender identified by the Company (the “Lender”) up to a maximum principal amount necessary
to undertake the Project, acquire the Facility and/or finance or refinance equipment and other
personal property and related transactional costs (hereinafter with the Straight Lease Documents,
the “Agency Documents™); and, where appropriate, the Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the
Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Agency to the Agency Documents and to
attest the same, all with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions as the Chairman (or
Vice Chairman), Executive Director (or Deputy Executive Director) of the Agency shall
approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman (or Vice Chairman), Executive Director (or
Deputy Executive Director) of the Agency to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval;
provided, that, in all events, recourse against the Agency is limited to the Agency's interest in the

Project.

Section 7. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required

-10-



and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 8. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

1=



The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolutions was duly put to vote on roll -
call, which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain

W. Edward Walldroff
Paul J. Warneck

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. X
David J. Converse X
John Jennings X
William W. Johnson X
Lisa L'Huillier X

X

X

The resolutions were thereupon duly adopted.



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) ss:

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of the Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Jefferson
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) including the resolution contained
therein, held on September 9, 2021, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the
same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth
therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same relates to the subject matters therein

referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting,

I FURTHER CERTIFY that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNiSS WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal of said Agency this _9#\

day of 3,@@ ) o, . - o
y U Thd) 11 a0

W. Edward Walldiotf V
(Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Pa_ls_



EXHIBIT A
PUBLIC HEARING MATERIALS

Pa_14_



ARG AT R T )

800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601

ph: 315.782.5865 / 800.553.411|
fx: 315.782.7915

www,|clda.com

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

August 18, 2021

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL/

RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

To:  The Chief Executive Officers of
Affected Tax Jurisdictions on Schedule A

Re:  Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
CWT Farms International, Inc. Project

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Please note that on August 31, 2021 at 1:30 p.m., local time, at Town of Watertown
Municipal Building, 22867 County Route 67, Watertown, New York 13601, the Jefferson
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) will conduct a public hearing regarding
the above-referenced project. Enclosed is a copy of the Notice of Public Hearing describing the

Project and the financial assistance contemplated by the Agency. The Notice has been submitted
to the Watertown Daily Times for publication.

You are welcome to attend such hearing at which time you will have an opportunity to
review the project application and present your views, both orally and in writing, with respect to
the project, and the Agency will also conduct a concurrent virtual public hearing via live audio
broadcast. We are providing this notice to you, pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 859-
(a), as the chief executive officer of an affected tax jurisdiction within which the project is

located.

Very truly yours,

JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

The JCIDA is an equal oppertunity provider, and employer. Ta file a complaint of discrimination, write; USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights,
1400 Independence Avenue, SW., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, or call (800) 795-3272 (vaice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD).

-15-



Schedule A

Affected Tax Jurisdiction Officials

Jefferson County, New York

Attn: Scott Gray, Chairman, County Legislature

195 Arsenal Street
Watertown, New York 13601

Watertown City School District
Attn: Maria T. Mesires, Chair, BOE
1351 Washington Street, P.O. Box 586
Watertown, New York 13601

Town of Watertown, New York

Attn: Joel Bartlett, Town Supervisor
Town of Watertown Municipal Building
22867 County Route 67

Watertown, New York 13601

Jefferson County, New York

Attn: Robert Hagemann, County Admin.
195 Arsenal Street
Watertown, New York 13601

Watertown City School District
Attn: Patricia LaBarr, Superintendent
1351 Washington Street, P.O. Box 586
Watertown, New York 13601

-16-



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of the New
York General Municipal Law (the “Act”) will be held by the Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency (the “Agency™) on the 31% day of August, 2021 at 1:30 p.m., local time, at
the Town of Watertown Municipal Building, 22867 County Route 67, Watertown, New York
13601, in connection with the matter described below.

CWT Farms International, Inc., for itself and/or on behalf of an entity to be formed
(collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an Application for Financial Assistance (the
“Application”) requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a certain project (the “Project”)
consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in an approximately 5.31
acre vacant parcel of real property located a 20835 Alexander Drive in the Town of Watertown,
New York 13601 (the “Land”, being more particularly described as TMID No 82.00-2-1.5 and
Lot 8 in the TIAg Park), (ii) the planning, design, construction, equipping and operation of an
approximately 29,000 square foot poultry hatchery facility, including hatching spaces,
warehousing, storage, shipping, receiving, office and mechanical spaces, external parking
improvements, curbage, landscaping, storm water management and related site improvements
(collectively, the “Improvements™), and (iii) the acquisition in and around the Improvements and
of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal property and equipment (the
“Equipment” and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the “Facility™), and (iv)
entering into a straight lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision (15) of Section 854
of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leaschold interest in the Facility for a
period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility back to the Company (the “Straight

Lease Transaction”).

The Agency is contemplating providing financial assistance to the Company with respect
to the Project (collectively, the “Financial Assistance™) in the form of: (A) an exemption from all
State and local sales and use taxes with respect to qualifying personal property included in or
incorporated into the Facility or used in the construction and equipping of the Facility, (B) a
mortgage recording tax exemption for financings undertaken to construct the Facility, and (C) a

“partial real property tax abatement through a payment-in-lieu-of-tax agreement (the “PILOT
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company would make payments in lieu of real property
taxes to the Agency for the benefit of each affected tax jurisdiction (the “Affected Tax

Jurisdictions™).

In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, a representative of the Agency will be at the
above-stated time and place to present a copy of the Company’s Project Application (including a
cost-benefit analysis), which is also available for viewing on the Agency’s website at: JCIDA -
Jefferson County. NY Economic Development. In furtherance of the provisions of Section 859-a
of the Act requiring interested parties be provided a reasonable opportunity, both orally and in
writing, to present their views with respect to the Project, the Agency will also conduct a
concurrent virtual public hearing via live audio broadcast at Jefferson County New York

Economic Development - YouTube in accordance with Section 857 of the Act. Finally, the
Agency also encourages all interested parties to submit written comments to the Agency, which

will all be included within the public hearing record, which can be submitted to David Zembiec,

17



Chief Executive Officer, Jefferson County IDA, 800 Starbuck Avenue, Watertown, New York
13601 and/or dzembiec@jcida.com.

DATED: August 20, 2021 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

-18-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Public Hearing Minutes
August 31,2021

The Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency held a public hearing at 1:30 p.m.
Tuesday, August 31, 2021, at the Town of Watertown Municipal Building, 22867 County
Route 67, Watertown, New York, and via live stream for CWT Farms International,

Inc. for a Straight Lease transaction.

Project Information:

CWT Farms International, Inc., for itself and/or on behalf of an entity to be formed
(collectively, the “Company™), has submitted an Application for Financial Assistance (the
“Application”) requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a certain project (the
“Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in an
approximately 5.31 acre vacant parcel of real property located a 20835 Alexander Drive
in the Town of Watertown, New York 13601 (the “Land”, being more particularly
described as TMID No 82.00-2-1.5 and Lot 8 in the TIAg Park), (ii) the planning, design,
construction, equipping and operation of an approximately 29,000 square foot poultry
hatchery facility, including hatching spaces, warehousing, storage, shipping, receiving,
office and mechanical spaces, external parking improvements, curbage, landscaping,
storm water management and related site improvements (collectively, the
“Improvements™), and (iii) the acquisition in and around the Improvements and of certain
items of equipment and other tangible personal property and equipment (the “Equipment”
and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the “Facility™), and (iv) entering
into a straight lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision (15) of Section 854 of
the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in the Facility for a
period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility back to the Company (the

“Straight Lease Transaction”).

Staff: David Zembiec, CEO; Marshall Weir, Deputy CEQ; Peggy Sampson, Executive
Assistant, Jay Matteson, Ag Coordinator

Public Present: None

Mr. Zembiec opened the hearing at 1:32 p.m. and read the public hearing rules and public
hearing notice.

Mr. Zembiec asked for public comment. There was no public comment.

At 1:38 P.m., Mr. Zembiec closed the hearing.

David Zembiec
Hearing Officer

-19-



EXHIBIT B
SEQRA MATERIALS

Pa;_zo_'



Short En vironmental A ssessment Forn
Part I - Project Information

Instructions for Completiny

Part | = Project Tufarmianion, The applicant ne projegt Spusor is rexpunsile for fhe cumpletivn of Pact [, B
donieation fur arposval or funding, are sulject 1y public Faviow, aag ma s be subject to furser verification,
iEEaemation susranty avail il [¥ adusrional rasearsh or invastigazion wagly be needed o
Uraruughly a5 pussibie bused on currant information,

Complate all it in Pars 1. You may 2l provids 3y addiziosa! informason
lead azeneys aitich adeitional P48 35 necessary tu supplement any ieam,

é Parcl - Projectand Spansor Information e

fully r2spoed o an

SPNses besume pun of the

Complute Pyre | based ag
s, phase answer yg

which you belizvs will be needed by o usetiy! 1o the

| Lundy Conttruckion

Name of Action or Project: ——

i Project Location {deseribe, and azzach a loeation ma I
d] P,

|_CWT Weltrtown Ciekiin Wadehury
Lot €Tt Aq Runle : | |

p———

e ]

Con S%ud—idn % Ce aq,ooasr}?. Chicltan e ke

E
|
! :

L

Briaf Deseription of Propused Action: e

ha r_L{

i Name of Applicant o¢ Sponsor:

Tc!ephmncr(;zp" -
MICPGEVE . Lunaly A

T
Dlrch

Address: Y

22Ul b Ree

City PO: | " Seate:
Wiktreun MNaw Veey

[ Does die proposed action oal ¥ imolye the levislative advption of a plan, local law, ordinance,
administative rule, or reaulation?

; may be affeered in the municipality and procesd 1 Part 2. [f no, continye to question 2,
i

IFYes, list aganeyts) Mire and permit or approval;
MY S BJ\L_OI"Lﬁ_@m\&T‘
3. a. Totl acreage o the site of the proposed actioh? ; o
b. Taral acrzaye (o be physically disturhed? { f » § O acres
<. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous propertics) owned

or conlrolied by the applicunt or project sponsor? (S acras

acres

| I Yes, atrach a parrutive deseription of the intent of the proposed action apd the enviconmental resourees thar /m D

2. Dous the proposed action require a permir, approval or fundiny trom any other government Azewy! | e T

l-l. Check al! lard uses thae accur on, s adjoining or near the proposed actis:
i Otha O Rural (nor-azriculnire) ,Q’f;;dusrrial E{Mnm;cia[ (I Residential (suby

E]Forest/Ef'.-;.griuulmre O Aquaie [ Other(Specify):
[ Packland

______h_'———-—_______

ithan)

73913

SEAF 2019



[3F preoposiced dario,

4o A pernsied wse under the anming renl i

h.

Comaisient with the aduptod cumpezhieaive plan?

Ving o ol g
ey THLEL

[t proposad 30 ancomsis e wiy the peademizan chazaear of ssring Suiltar paruen! Ynd Wiy

sl the prapassd ot lizemzed iz, ur does n adjoisn, a5t Tstad Criticar Bae irumuent! \zan?

I Yeou, idy

a. Will dhe propesed acnon rasut i subsrnes| ieerase in wudfie abos 2 present loyels?

I

Arz pulhe trazsporaian servizes 10 kG ar naar the sic of' the proposed action !

adasirian accomimadatior; ar bayale ratites availahis on o neas the site of the propose!

[ 36472 eneray eods raquizements?

Gl avseed ragnireme

A dsarie dasiun Fracarss and Eechnlagizg:

19, Will the propesed a2tion setneet w ag exi 'z pudlic privacs water supely

[N, daseribe method far providing potable wazer:

W proposed action conmet (o exisi 1 Wustewater ucilivioy?

L No. deseribe merhod For providing wastawacer reazmens:

' Use. o '—\.F—Ml{l L@ren ReLo SqsTES Upp
i SR

| 12. 2, Dues the Proj2cr sit2 congain, oris it substanzialiy CORTTLOUS 10, 1 building, are
P which is larad on the Naziona! or Stze Rawiarer of Historic Places. or that has bean
. Commissioner of the NYS O%ice of Parks, Serainion and Hisiorie Pros
£ Seaea Regiazer of Historie Places?

AL e
haeelogical site, or distror

datermined by 1
rvation w be eligible for listing on the

ha

dcenifoa

I . . : ; ; .
i b. Is the proojecr sice, or anry poriion afae lecased in op adj
servation OMie

4 n of | n are designated a3 sensiciva for
, archazologival sites on the NY State Historic Pre

¢ (SHPQ) srchacolowicul sits iny entory !

.

wsed action, or Lainds
es regulaced by 3 tadoral, stare

I3 9. Does any porton of the site af the prog

adfvining the
werlands or other wasersodi

prapasad actian, curnain
or lucal agency? :

I

, LEY 28, idendty the werland or warzrhody an

b Would the propesed action physicaily alrer, or encroach ingo, Qay existing wetland or waterbody?

< exient of aleerations in square feer or acras:

i

{

i

: ——

.I

=l
I

\ Peunin g

NO

L[]

LNQ | YES
A0
|

) O

NO | YES

A1
A0

YES




T Ly st mocal b g Serwarewcnr op, o g LIRS P R thepracat qite Ched o1 i upply- e
[ stersti D Furz: E] Vamauln! grisslanad. E] Eaels Misd=sticms bl
CIwetand O Crban 2T Subuirbun

T Do fia siee of o PPl bt i any specrss af anmvt or disidid Badilats, sted By e Stateor NO CYES
Foderal woionunant ai thestened ar end.; ‘_r_--\.-d‘ : s

P Isthz et aite locara i the 143 2t Coad nlan !

1T W e preposed action oraate stoen w ster dischary e, either fear point or DO=Puint sunrees’?
FEY s,
|

& Wil sharm wazer dischiesss fow o adiacane prapersies?

B W srarm water dnchin i divaes ] m o2 nblihed SRV 53 atents b runof and s dringy?

CIY 25, brieiTs despribe;
H ' Ny %ﬂmvxwp@._-;_&{'mmr

1s. Dues e prapesed actian inclads SUSlLCOR Cr uther 2ot ites hal would resuft in the Impuendiment of wypar
or writer liquids (2.r, ratensian pnm. Wasts imon, damy?

EYes, explain the pumase and sizs of the impotndiment: |
FTT

. Has the site of the proposed acinn or an dojuiring property been the loeasion of an acrive or closed solid Wiste
nanazeoient faeilin
[FYes, deseribe:

———

=0.Tias dhe sicz of'tha propesed astion or an acjoining propeety been the stbject of remedanion (oning or
completad) for hazardous wasee?
[¥ Yes. descrihe;

E’D

[CERTIFY THAT THE INFORM. ATION PROVIDED AEOVE IS TRUE AND ACCCRATE TO TEHE BE\T OF

i MY KNOWLEDCGE

f Applicant sponsor panre:; K\—\X\ CIA t W\ ‘--'{‘ Dare; e Zi !E ‘
i

i

|

Sign.wr::_lvAvf( "(‘., z,/’1 Tite: TS &>

e o

—
—_—

PRINT FORM

_23_3 a3




Agency Use Only [If applicable]

Project:

Date:

Short Environmental Assessment Form
Part 2 - Impact Assessment

Part 2 is to be completed by the Lead Ageucy.

Answer all of the following questions in Part 2 using the information contained in Part 1 and other materials submitted by
the project sponsor or otherwise available to the reviewer. When answering the questions the reviewer should be guided by
the concept “Have my responses been reasonable considering the scale and context of the proposed action?”

No,or | Moderate

small to large
impact impact
‘ may
occur

1. Wil the-propuéed action create & material confliot with an a'dc;pted land use plan or zoning
regulations?

2. 'Will the proposed action result in a change in the use or intensity of use of land?

3. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of the existing community?

4. Will the proposed action have an impact on the environmental characteristics that caused the
establishment of a Critical Environmental Area (CEA)?

3. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change in the existing level of traffic or
affect existing infrastructure for mass transit, biking or walloway?

6. Wil the proposed action cause an increase in the use of energy and it fails to incorporate
reasonably available energy conservation or renewable energy opportunities?
7. Will the proposed action impact existing:
a. public / private water supplies?

b. public / private wastewater treatment utilities?

8. Wil the proposed action impair the character or quality of important historic, archaeological,
architectural or aesthetic resources?

9. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change to natural resources (e.g., wetlands,
waterbodies, groundwater, air quality, flora and fauna)?

10. Will the proposed action result in an increase in the potential for erosion, flooding or drainage
prablems?

XN RRRER R RN
O/o|ojoololo|o|onolo

11. Wil the proposed action create a hazard to environmental resources or human health?

PRINT FORM Page ,, 2




Agency Use Only [If applicable]
Projeck:
Date:

Short Environmental Assessment Form

Part 3 Determination of Significance
For every question in Part 2 that was answered “moderate to large impact may occur”, or if there is a necd to explain why a
particular element of the proposed action may or will not result in a significant adverse environmental impact, please
complete Part 3. Part 3 should, in sufficient detail, identify the impact, including any measures or design elements that
have been included by the project sponsor to avoid or reduce impacts. Part 3 should also explain how the lead agency

determined that the impact may or will not be significant, Bach potential impact should be assessed considering its setting,
probability of accurring, duration, irreversibility, geographic scope and magnitude. Also consider the potential for short- }

term, long-term and cumulative impacts. . ‘L M"& ;
L1871y A
@ +hs e c?rm;jﬁ{ﬁfjﬂtfaﬁf jnmpjmuyﬂ m//?éf'/

7?_}”}(:‘;{:\“:# ﬁa’rﬂfﬂfﬁ JI::?'M/ .;Zi‘g;i'ﬁﬂ wl%
o 1 hion o5 € d)ﬂ Aeut-on/ 7114 e

A\, )dﬁ(ﬂﬂ . ' é‘@f
& SI},J:ML Sor banssiT packes
\..P

ProiseT

| aR foc! Sof
“ #ﬂ‘;’jff ﬂﬂ/‘j’./(% EQRappw a4
T A LLE park s GTF

I:I Checl this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,
that the proposed action may result in one or more potentially large or significant adverse impacts and an

environmental impact statement is required.
E Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,

that the proposed action will not ﬁ in any significant adverse environm?l impabts.

Tewn of Ilqilm',‘fin’u/q J IIMM;? ﬂ.ﬁr ﬂ?ﬂé" 'ﬁda I .
Print or @Nam)zzfgl;gp nfible égin iad Agency gg]d’lz{g;f Regrgﬁz P‘.)}f?c%rnﬂ 1451 /q
n’(nﬁ- d’ﬂﬂé [722’?' <

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer)

PRINT FORM Page_; 2




AGRICULTURAL DATA STATEMENT

Per § 305-a of the New York State Agriculture and Markets Law, any application for a special use permit, site plan
approval, use variance, or subdivision approval requiring municipal review and approval that would occur on
property within a New York State Certified Agricultural District containing a farm operation or property with
boundaries within 500 feet of a farm operation located in an Agricultural District shall include an Agricultural Data

Statement.

A. Name of applicant:
Mailing address:

B. Description of the proposed project:

C. Project site address: Town:

Project site tax map number:

E: The project is located on property:
LI within an Agricultural District containing a farm operation, or
LI with boundaries within 500 feet of a farm operation located in an Agricultural District.

F. Number of acres affected by project:

G. s any portion of the project site currently being farmed?
O Yes. Ifyes, how many acres or square feet ?
O No. .

H. Name and address of any owner of land conlalnin:j farm operations within the Agricultural District
and is located within 500 feet of the boundary of the property upon which the project is proposed.

I Attach a copy of the current tax map showing the site of the proposed project relative to the location
of farm operations identified in Item H above.

FARM NOTE
Prospective residents should be aware that farm operations may generate dust, odor, smoke, noise, vibration and
other conditions that may be objectionable to nearby properties. Local governments shall not unreasonably restrict
or regulate farm operations within State Certified Agricultural Districts unless it can be shown that the public health

or safety is threatened.

S s e L B s I TR T S P e A

Name and Title of Person Completing Form Date
-26-



INITIAL PROJECT RESOLUTION
(DigiCollect LLC Project —Phase 1 Project and LDA)

A special meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency convened on
September 9, 2021 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 09.09.2021.02

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE “AGENCY”) (i) ACCEPTING AN
APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY DIGICOLLECT LLC, FOR ITSELF
AND/OR ON BEHALF OF ONE OR MORE ENTITIES TO BE FORMED
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY”) WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN
PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED BELOW); (i) AUTHORIZING THE
SCHEDULING AND CONDUCT OF A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT
TO THE PROJECT; (iii) DESCRIBING THE FORMS OF FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE BEING CONTEMPLATED BY THE AGENCY WITH
RESPECT TO THE PROJECT; (iv) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF A LAND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH
EXCLUSIVE OPTION AND LICENSE (“LDA”) TO BE ENTERED INTO
WITH THE COMPANY; AND (v) AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A
NOTICE OF DISPOSITION WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN REAL ESTATE
OWNED BY THE AGENCY.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by

the Act; and

WHEREAS, DIGICOLLECT LLC, for itself and/or on behalf of an entity or entities
to be formed (collectively, the “Company™), has submitted an application (the “Application”) to
the Agency requesting the Agency's assistance with a certain project or projects (collectively, the
“Project”) consisting of: (i) the disposition by the Agency of all or portions of approximately
12.10 acres of real property owned by the Agency and located at 16904 State Route 12F in the
Town of Hounsfield, Jefferson County, New York (the “Land”, being more particularly
described as tax parcel No. 81.00-1-5), (i1) the phased planning, design, construction and
operation of an approximately 50,000 square foot manufacturing facility for use by the Company
to produce data sensors, monitors, data collection and storage and related software developed for
renewable energy and utility usage, including building improvements for manufacturing,
warehousing, office space, data storage and related internal spaces, external parking

Pa
27 -



improvements, storm water management and related site improvements, and related on and
offsite utility improvements (collectively, the “Improvements™), and (iii) the acquisition in and
around the Improvements and of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal property
and equipment (the “Equipment” and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the
“Facility”), and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision
(15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in
the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility back to the Company
(the “Straight Lease Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating providing financial assistance to the Company
with respect to the Project (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”) in the form of: (A) an
exemption from all State and local sales and use taxes with respect to qualifying personal
property included in or incorporated into the Facility or used in the construction and equipping of
the Facility, (B) a mortgage recording tax exemption for financings undertaken to construct the
Facility, and (C) a partial real property tax abatement through a payment-in-lieu-of-tax
agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company would make payments in
lieu of real property taxes to the Agency for the benefit of each affected tax jurisdiction (the
“Affected Tax Jurisdictions™); and

WHEREAS, the Agency and Company have negotiated of terms for disposition of all or
portions of the Land to the Company (the “Disposition”) to be memorialized within a
contemplated Land Development Agreement with Exclusive Option and License (“LDA”) to be
entered into a furtherance of the Project; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the Disposition, and in accordance with applicable
provisions of the Public Authorities Law (“PAL”), the Agency further contemplates the issuance
of a Notice of Disposition to required recipients pursuant to PAL Section 2897(6)(d) (the
“Disposition Notice”), such Disposition being exempted from publicly advertising for bids
pursuant to PAL Section 2897(6)(c)(v) and obtaining fair market value pursuant to PAL Section

2897(7)(ii); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the LDA, as set forth within Exhibit A, hereto, the
Agency and Company have proposed terms for (i) the Disposition of the Land to the Company in
furtherance of the Project, and (ii) the Company’s obligations with respect to undertaking the
Project, and (iii) the Agency’s obligation to undertake a certain Agency Infrastructure Project to
prepare the land for the Project, all of the foregoing being contemplated by the Agency and
Company to be necessary to undertake the Project, which will be undertaken by the Company as
agent of the Agency pursuant to and in accordance with the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to (i) accept the Application, (ii) authorize the
scheduling and conduct of a public hearing pursuant to an in accordance with the Act, (iii)
authorize the execution of the LDA and issuance of the Disposition Notice, and (iv) authorize
related undertakings as set forth within the LDA; and

WHEREAS, once the Project secured local site plan and other regulatory approvals, it is
contemplated that the Agency will conduct the Public Hearing and negotiate, but not execute, an



Agent and Financial Assistance and Project Agreement (the “Agent Agreement”), a Lease
Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”), Leaseback Agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”) and
PILOT Agreement pursuant to which the Agency would be willing to take or retain a leasehold
interest in the Land, the Improvements, the Equipment and personal property constituting the
Facility; and

WHEREAS, the Agency intends to describe the Project, accept the Application, describe
the forms of Financial Assistance contemplated by the Agency, secure any necessary consents
from the Affected Tax Jurisdictions, and authorize the scheduling and conduct of public
hearing(s) pursuant to and in accordance with the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in
the Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  Itis desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to (i) dispose of interests in
the Land pursuant to the LDA and appoint the Company as agent to construct the Improvements
and acquire the Equipment constituting the Facility pursuant to the Agent Agreement and
Leaseback Agreement to be negotiated as components of one or more Straight Lease
Transactions; and

(C)  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth within Section 4, hereof, the Agency
has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the Act; and

(D)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to undertake the
Project, thereby increasing capital investment and employment opportunities in the Town of
Hounsfield, and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and

(E)  The Project will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of the Company or
any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area of the State of New York (the “State™)
to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the
Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State; and the Agency
hereby finds that, based on the Company’s application, to the extent occupants are relocating
from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project
occupants from removing such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their
respective industries.

Section 2. The proposed financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency
includes (i) an exemption from all state and local sales and use taxes with respect to the

09



qualifying personal property included within the Project or used in the acquisition, construction
or equipping of the Project, (ii) a mortgage recording tax exemption for financings undertaken to
construct the Facility, and (iii) a partial real property tax abatement through a payment-in-lieu-
of-tax agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company would make
payments in lieu of real property taxes to the Agency for the benefit of the Affected Tax

Jurisdictions.

Section 3. The Agency further authorizes the scheduling and conduct of a public
hearing as required by Section 859-a of the Act (the “Public Hearing”). Prior to such Public
Hearing, the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby
authorized and directed to negotiate the terms of one or more PILOT Agreements for the Project
in accordance with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP”).

Section 4. The Agency’s formal inducement to undertake the Project and approve the
Financial Assistance shall be by one or more further resolutions of the Agency and shall be
subject to the terms and conditions as are set forth therein.

Section 5. The Agency hereby authorizes the undertaking of the Disposition of the
Land to the Company in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth within the LDA,
along with the terms of the Option, as further defined therein. The Chairman (or Vice Chairman)
and/or Executive Director of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to
execute and deliver the LDA in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with such
changes, variations, omissions and insertions as authorized by the Chairman, Vice Chairman
and/or Executive Director of the Agency, the execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice Chairman
and/or Executive Director of the Agency to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.
The Agency hereby further authorizes the issuance of the Disposition Notice in such form as
approved by the Chief Executive Officer and Transaction Counsel to the Agency.

Section 6. Harris Beach PLLC, as General and Transaction Counsel for the Agency,
is hereby authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to prepare for submission
to the Agency all documents necessary to effect the conduct of the Public Hearing issuance of
the Disposition Notice.

Section 7. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Agency are hereby authorized and directed to negotiate, but not execute, the Agent Agreement,
Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, PILOT Agreement, and related documents to
undertake the Straight Lease Transaction. The Agency’s authorization of the Project and the
Financial Assistance shall be subject to the adoption of Agency resolutions relative to same.

Section 8. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Agency
are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to
do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to implement the
provisions of this Resolution.

Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for an in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required

Pa’—30~



and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 10.  These Resolutions shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll
call, which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain
David J. Converse [ X ] L ] [ ] [ ]
John Jennings [ X ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. [ X ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
W. Edward Walldroff [ X ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
William W. Johnson [ X ] [ 1 [ ] [ ]
Lisa L’Huillier [ X ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
Paul J. Warneck [ X ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.
Pﬂ;_ s



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) SS:

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held
on September 9, 2021, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true
and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of
the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

[ FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said

Agency this qi‘ day of Sy {llﬁ_fv‘.]m/(‘ ,2021. \

W. Edward Walldrofi
(Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Pa;_Bé_



EXHIBIT A
FORM OF LDA

-33-



Page: 1

JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Income Statement for the Twelve Month Period Ending September 30, 2021

Prepared by Lyle Eaton, September 29, 2021 UNRECONCILED

Current Year-to-Dat Current Previous Balance

Year e Total Month Month Remaining

Budget
Revenues
Application & Process Fees 3,000.00 4225153 § 2,600.00 7,900.00 (39,251.53)
RCI Annual CD Fund 279,427.00 279,427.20 0.00 0.00 (0.20)
Bond Admin Fee 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PILOT/Sale Leaseback Fees 914,174.00 1,364,758.66 0.00 0.00 (450,584.66)
Fee Income - RLF Program 43,424.00 18,092.90 0.00 0.00 25,331.10
Fee Income - Micro Program 26,137.00 10,890.40 0.00 0.00 15,246.60
Interest Income 3,500.00 2,036.97 137.75 166.44 1,463.03
Interest Income - RLF Program 25,000.00 24,238.90 1,935.96 3,799.60 761.10
Interest Income - City Fund 6,000.00 4,426.45 332.23 333.63 1,673.55
Interest Income - Micro Prog. 9,000.00 7,908.43 813.27 490.74 1,091.57
Late Payment Penaity - Micro 100.00 361.57 0.00 104.05 (261.57)
Miscellaneous Income 1,500.00 69,815.87 177.16 175.84 (68,315.87)
YMCA Income 0.00 59,903.13 21,067 .48 5,807.95 (59,903.13)
Credits on Easement 0.00 2,656.44 0.00 0.00 (2,656.44)
Total Revenues 1,314,262.00 1,889,768.45 27,063.85 18,778.25 (575,506.45)
Operations
Office Expense 1,000.00 2,097.50 580.40 232.49 (1,097.50)
RCI Fee Sharing 139,714.00 139,713.50 0.00 0.00 0.50
Admin Services Exp 662,665.00 662,664.96 55,222.08 55,222.08 0.04
Electric Service 0.00 7,553.01 0.00 23.57 (7,553.01)
Depreciation Expense - Saiing 0.00 6,789.80 1,357.96 1,357.96 (6,789.80)
D&O Insurance 14,000.00 14,571.96 1,214.33 1,214.33 (571.96)
Commercial Insurance 10,000.00 7,727.04 643.92 643.92 2,272.96
FTZ Expense 1,250.00 1,250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Legal- Retainer 0.00 6,000.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 (6,000.00)
Legal - Unrestricted 18,000.00 21,111.60 0.00 145.29 (3,111.60)
Legal YMCA 0.00 6,163.30 0.00 0.00 (6,163.30)
Accounting & Auditing 11,000.00 10,700.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
CEDS Update 7.,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00
Consultants 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 (1,500.00)
Coffeen Park Taxes 1,700.00 1,759.79 0.00 0.00 (59.79)
Airport Park Taxes 1,000.00 1,052.54 0.00 0.00 (52.54)
Fees Expense 2,000.00 2,150.70 0.00 0.00 (150.70)
Loss on Disposal Fixed Assets 0.00 111,574.96 0.00 0.00 (111,574.96)
Bad Debt--RLF 190,000.00 (15,805.00) 0.00 0.00 205,805.00
Bad Debt--Micro 30,642.00 (6,000.00) 0.00 0.00 36,642.00
RLF Program Expense 43,424.00 18,092.90 0.00 0.00 25,331.10
Microenterprise Program Exp 26,167.00 10,930.80 0.00 0.00 15,236.20
RLF Audit Expense 800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00
146 Arsenal Bldg Maintenance 0.00 2,765.00 0.00 0.00 (2,765.00)
Plowing 146 Arsenal 20,000.00 22,839.00 22,839.00 0.00 (2,839.00)
IDA 146 Arsenal Bldg Expense 25,000.00 20,926.66 186.34 276.48 4,073.34
City/County Parking Lot Fund 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Insurance 13,000.00 25,869.00 2,155.75 2,155.75 (12,869.00)
Building Depreciation 33,000.00 58,157.61 2,443.47 244347 (25,157.61)
146 Arsena Equip. Depreciation 3,000.00 3,579.48 0.00 0.00 (579.48)
146 Arsenal Electric 20,000.00 55,975.79 556.23 8,109.54 (35,975.79)
146 Arsenal Water 2,200.00 4,378.33 0.00 720.51 (2,178.33)
Salary Expense 17,000.00 34,147.18 2,481.54 2,635.28 (17,147.18)
Miscellaneous - Unrestricted 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
Total Operations 1,314,262.00 1,260,237.41 91,181.02 76,680.67 54,024.59
Total Revenue 1,314,262.00 1,889,768.45 27,063.85 18,778.25 (575,506.45)
Total Expenses 1,314,262.00 1,260,237.41 91,181.02 76,680.67 54,024.59
Net Income Over Expenditures § 0.00 629,571 04§ (64,117.17) (57,902.42) (629,531.04)

For Interi-34-Ise Only



Current Assets

General Checking

Savings Account

PILOT Checking Account
Microenterprise Account

City Loan Account

Revolving Loan Fund Account
PILOT Monies Receivable
Miscellaneous Receivable
Accounts Receivable YMCA
Acct Receivable - Rogers

RLF Loans Receivable
Microenterprise Loans Rec.
Watn. Economic Growth Fund Rec
Allowance for Bad Debt-RLF
Allow. for Bad Debts-MICRO
Prepaid Expense

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment

Accum Depr - Building

Accum Depr. Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation Sidin

Total Property and Equipment

Other Assets

IT Server

Galaxy Tablets

146 Arsenal WIP Remediation
Corp. Park Improvements
Airport Property

Intangible Asset

WIP Airport

WIP Intersection

Woolworth Building

Rail Siding CCIP

146 Ars Building Improvements
WIP Arsenal Deck & Sidewalks
WIP 146 Arsenal - Renovations

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable - Unrestricte
PILOT Monies Payable

RLF Loan Payable

Due HUD - RLF Interest

Due HUD - MICRO Interest

Due HUD - CITY Loan Interest
Maintenance Reserve Convergys
Maintenance Expense Convergys

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Balance Sheet
September 30, 2021

ASSETS

765,877.47
2,248,819.09
10,087.63
109,680.49
208,270.46
1,738,557.50
8,946.22
49,576.26
15,226.00
17,877.62
2,711,546.64
201,272.06
79,397.75

(190,000.00)

(30,641.75)
450.15

(1,015,707.06)
(52,269.66)
(6,789.80)

6,050.00
13,366.00
116,334.63
209,995.14
884,326.02
53,195.00
145,825.86
244,973.52
505,000.00
244,434.00
730,948.56
12,495.00
5,864.54

8

7,944,943.59

(1,074,766.52)

3,172,808.27

10,042,985.34

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

556.23
19,033.85
2,000,000.00
1,701.71
12.52

3.51
14,445.48
25,927.57

Unaudited - For Mar~ 35-ent Purposes Only



Car Freshner Signage

Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities

Due NYS/IAP L.T.
Deferred Revenue - Rogers
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Capital

General Fund Bal - Unrestrict.

- Fund Bal - RLF Restricted
Fund Bal - Micro Restricted
Fund Bal - City Restricted
Cap. Impr. Convergys
Net Income

Total Capital

Total Liabilities & Capital

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Balance Sheet

September 30, 2021
11,000.00
2,072,680.87
180,159.78
18,530.76
198,690.54

2,271,371.41

1,065,873.31
4,419,309.27
414,850.76
262,489.22
979,560.33
629,531.04

7,771,613.93

$§  10,042,985.34

Unaudited - For Mar"3_6' ent Purposes Only



Page: 1
JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

146 Arsenal Expenses for the Twelve Month Period Ending September 30, 2021
Prepared by Lyle Eaton

Current Year-to-Da Current Previous % YTD of
Year te Total Month Month Budget
Budget
Expenses
146 Arsenal Bldg Maintenanc § 0.00 276500 § 0.00 0.00 0.00
Plowing 146 Arsenal 20,000.00 22,839.00 22,839.00 0.00 114.20
IDA 146 Arsenal Bldg Expens 25,000.00 20,926.66 186.34 276.48 83.71
City/County Parking Lot Fund 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
Insurance 13,000.00 25,869.00 2,155.75 2,155.75 198.99
Building Depreciation 33,000.00 58,157.61 2,443.47 2,443.47 176.24
146 Arsena Equip. Depreciati 3,000.00 3,579.48 0.00 0.00 119.32
146 Arsenal Electric 20,000.00 55,975.79 556.23 8,109.54 279.88
146 Arsenal Water 2,200.00 4,378.33 0.00 720.51 199.02
Salary Expense 17,000.00 34,147.18 2,481.54 2,635.28 200.87
Total Expenses $ 153,200.00 248,638.05 $ 30,662.33 16,341.03 162.30

For Inter‘37‘se Only



9/29/21 at 14:45:57.08
Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Miscellaneous Receivables
As of Sep 30, 2021
Filter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Customer ID Invoice/CM 0-30 31-60 61-90 Over 90 days

Customer
Bill To Contact
Telephone 1

Amount Due

cibc PR 3-23-12 -338.38
CARTHAGE INDUSTRIAL DEV. COR
JOHN MCHUGH

493-4429

-338.38

CIDC -338.38
CARTHAGE INDUSTRIAL DEV. COR

-338.38

OYA ROBINSON 3614 24,888.13
OYA ROBINSON ROAD LLC

24,888.13

OYA ROBINSON 24,888.13
OYA ROBINSON ROAD LLC

24,888.13

OYA WAYSIDE 3615 24,888.13
OYA WAYSIDE DRIVE, LLC

24,888.13

OYA WAYSIDE 24,888.13
OYA WAYSIDE DRIVE, LLC

24,888.13

Report Total 49,437.88

49,437.88

-38-



9/29/21 at 14:45:19.40

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Date. Report is printed in Detail Format,

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency

PILOT Cash Receipts Journal

For the Period From Sep 1, 2021 to Sep 30, 2021

Page: 1

Date AccountID Transaction Line Description Debit Amnt Credit Amnt

9/2/21 121001 5000000063  Invoice: 3567 35,000.00

121001 Invoice: 3568 35,000.00

121001 Invoice: 3569 35,000.00

121001 Invoice: 3570 35,000.00
102001 OYA SOLAR NY,LP 140,000.00

9/2/21 121001 0100463428  Invoice: 3633 110,000.00
102001 GREAT LAKES CHEESE OF NY INC. 110,000.00

9/9/21 121001 102054601 Invoice: 3637 50,004.00
102001 CLAYTON HARBOR HOTEL, LLC 50,004.00

9/23/21 121001 0172046935 Invoice: 3639 72,697.57
102001 ARC FEWTRNOO01, LLC 72,697.57

9/23/21 121001 2169 Invoice: 3641 19,513.38
102001 LAWLER REALTY 19,513.38

9/23/21 121001 31015 Invoice: 3640 4,414.50
102001 AVIAGEN NORTH AMERICA, INC 4,414.50

9/30/21 121001 2308 Invoice: 3638 10,087.63
102001 SCHOLASTIC STRUCTURES INC. 10,087.63

406,717.08 406,717.08

<30




9/29/21 at 14:45:02.14

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
General Checking Cash Receipts Journal
For the Period From Sep 1, 2021 to Sep 30, 2021

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Date. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Date AccountID Transaction Line Description Debit Amnt Credit Amnt
9/2/21 125001 CASH Invoice: 3636 100.00
100001 PINK KETTLE, LLC 100.00
912121 207005 532 DUE MICRO 968.86
205602 DUE SHLDC 968.87
100001 THE SANDWICH BAR 1,837.73
9/2/21 125001 0840 Invoice: 3630 5,807.95
100001 YMCA 5,807.95
9/2/21 125501 3318 8/21 PRINCIPAL 177.16
412501 8/21 INTEREST 137.75
100001 KENNETH F. ROGERS 314.91
9/9/21 207005 533 DUE MICRO 968.86
205602 DUE SHLDC 968.87
100001 THE SANDWICH BAR 1,937.73
9/16/21 207005 19430 DUE MICRO 565.35
205602 DUE SHLDC 424,02
100001 PAINFULL ACRES 989.37
9/16/21 207005 1411 DUE MICRO 134.51
205602 DUE SHLDC 134,52
100001 MAIN STREET CRAFTS & DRAFTS 269.03
9/16/21 125001 2081 Invoice: 3648 2,500.00
100001 MLR,LLC 2,500.00
9/23/21 125001 CASH Invoice: 3650 100.00
100001 ADIRONDACK HEARING INNOVATIONS 100.00
9/24/21 125001 ACH Invoice; 3653 2,500.00
100001 31606 FELT MILLS LLC 2,500.00
9/30/21 125100 0645 Invoice: 3642 5,841.48
100001 YMCA 5,841.48
9/30/21 207005 534 DUE MICRO 968.86
205602 DUE SHLDC 968.87
100001 THE SANDWICH BAR 1,937.73
24,235.93 24,235.93

-40-



9/29/21 at 14:51:26.22

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Cash Disbursements Journal

For the Period From Sep 1, 2021 to Sep 30, 2021

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Date. Report is printed in Detail Farmat.

Page: 1

Date Check# AccountID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

9/2/21 7593 200001 Invoice: 21-858 1,020.00
100001 BERNIER, CARR & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 1,020.00

8/2/21 7594 200001 Invoice: 9/21 SANDWICH 968.86
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 968.86

9/2/21 7585 200001 Invoice: MONTHLY ADMIN FEE11 55,222.08

200001 Invoice: 2348 2,481.54
100001 JEFF COUNTY LDC 57,703.62

9/2/21 7596 200001 Invoice: 45150-8/21 607.76

200001 Invoice; 45157-8/21 23.57
100001 NATIONAL GRID 631.33

9/2/21 7597 200001 Invoice: 9/21+ SANDWICH 968.87
100001 SACKETS HARBOR LDC 968.87

9/2/21 7598 200001 Invoice: 3370640-0448-0 82.04
100001 WASTE MANAGEMENT 82.04

9/9/21 7599 200001 Invoice: 8-2021 1,071.32
100001 DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE 1,071.32

9/9/21 7600 200001 Invoice: SANDWICH 9/21 968.86
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 968.86

9/9/21 7601 200001 Invoice: 17024-8/21 7,501.78
100001 NATIONAL GRID 7.501.78

9/9/21 7602 200001 Invoice: SANDWICH 9/21 968.87
100001 SACKETS HARBOR LDC 968.87

9/9/21 7603 200001 Invoice: 0001851-8/21 43.38

200001 Invoice: 0000011-8/21 677.13
100001 CITY OF WATERTOWN COMPTROLLER 720.51

9/16/21 7604 200001 Invoice: 8821005 1,500.00
100001 HARRIS BEACH 1,500.00

9/16/21 7605 200001 Invoice: 21.0621-5 5,300.00
100001 PARADIGM ENVIRONMENTAL, LLC 5,300.00

9/16/21 7606 200001 Invoice: 19700005 200.00
100001 THOMAS TRASH SERVICE 200.00

9/23/21 7607 200001 Invoice: 21-889 4,055.00
100001 BERNIER, CARR & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 4,055.00

9/23/21 7608 200001 Invoice: 472959 30.24
100001 DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE 30.24

9/23/21 7610 200001 Invoice: 9/21 PAINFULL 565.35
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 565.35

9/23/21 7611 200001 Invoice: 9/21 PAINFULL 424,02
100001 SACKETS HARBOR LDC 424,02

9/23/21 7612 200001 Invoice: 2285 22,839.00
100001 SWBG WHOLESALE INC. 22,839.00

9/23/21 7613 200001 Invoice: 16792 186.34
100001 WESTELCOM 186.34

9/23/21 7614 200001 Invoice: 9/21 MAIN ST 134.51
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 134,51

9/23/21 7615 200001 Invoice: 9/21 MAIN ST 134,52
100001 SACKETS HARBOR LDC 134.52

Invoice: 8821006 -4]- 4,900.00

8/23/21

7616 200001



9/29/21 at 14:51:26.40

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Date. Report is printed in Detail Format,

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Sep 1, 2021 to Sep 30, 2021

Page: 2

Date Check# AccountID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount
100001 HARRIS BEACH 4,900.00

9/30/21 7617 200001 Invoice: 21-963 1,530.00
100001 BERNIER, CARR & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 1,530.00

9/30/21 7618 200001 Invoice: 09141J1-1 380.40
100001 COUGHLIN PRINTING 380.40

9/30/21 7619 200001 Invoice: 9/29/21 SANDWICH 968.86
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 968.86

9/30/21 7620 200001 Invoice; 9/27/21 SANDWICH 968.87
100001 SACKETS HARBOR LDC 968.87
Total 116,723.17 116,723.17

AP




9/29/21 at 14:51:45.53

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Unrestricted Aged Payables
As of Sep 30, 2021

Filter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Vendor Invoice/CM # Date Net To Pay
NATIONAL GRID 45150-9/21 9/22/21 532.66
45157-9/21 9/22/21 23.57

NATIONAL GRID 556.23
556.23

9=



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

Revoelving Loan Fund Receivables
September 30, 2021

“Original Current Current
Recipient Date Issued| Amount Balance Status Purpose of Loan
1|RBM Manufacturing November-19| 200,000.00| 400,000.00{ Current |Working Capital Additional 11/2020
2|Meadowbrook Terrace August-12  250,000.00 44,477.25| Current  |Working Cap During Construction
3|MLR, LLC July-07| 250,000.00 88,245.92| Current |Expand Warehouse
4|Wright Bros, LLC June-12|  241,743.00( 178,733.47| Current  [Purchase Building
5|JCIDA August-21| 2,000,000.00( 2,000,000.00f Current |146 Arsenal Remediation

Total RLF Receivables

2,941,743.00

2,711,456.64

accounting/IDA Financials

0.0




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

MICRO Loan Fund Receivables
September 30, 2021

Original Current Current

Recipient Date Issued | Amount Balance Status Purpose of Loan
Colleens Cherry Tree Inn May-19 40,000.00] 31,107.92| 2 Delinquent |Expand Restaurant - lce Ceram Shop
R. L. Gould & Son, LLC March-19 40,000.00] 23,088.08 Current  |Open UPS Store
Tl Area Habitat For Humanity April-18 40,000.00f 15,836.74| Current |Open ReStore
Main Street Crafts & Drafts Sep-18 7,150.00 3,544.99 Current  [Craft Shop & Bar
Painfull Acres Mar-18 40,000.00f 23,615.75 Current  |Amish Furniture Store
The Sandwich Bar Feb-19 19,000.00 2,967.45| Current |Restaurant
Sarah's Barber Shop Mar-20 10,000.00 7,671.02| 1 Delinquent |Barber Shop
The Scrub Hub Apr-18 18,656.00 6,722.32| Current  |Scrubs Clothing
Standard Machine Aug-21 20,000.00{ 20,000.00| New Loan [Fbrication
Therartpy Jul-21 10,102.00 9,804.28 Current  |Art Therapy
Taste of Design Apr-07 40,000.00 17,013.51| 1 Delinguent |Coffee Shop
Willowbrook Jul-21 40,000.00| 40,000.00] Current |Purchase Gole Club
Total MICRO Receivables 324,908.00( 201,272.06 -

accounting/IDA Financials

-45-




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

City Loan Fund Receivables
September 30, 2021

Recipient

Date Issued

Original
Amount

Current
Balance

Current
Status

Purpose of Loan

Current Applications

Apr-15

101,403.00

79,397.75

Current

Manufacturing Plant Expansion

Total CITY FUNDReceivables

101,403.00

79,397.75

accounting-jcidafolder

-46-




A B ] C D E F G H I
1 [JCIDA WIP 146 ARSENAL ABATEMENT
2 |GL# 150200 Board
3 l Allocation
4 |Vendor Payments Amount 8/18/2021
5 Date Vendor Invoice# Paid Paid Date | Check# | Balance Retainage 2,000,000
6 | 07/02/21|SES 1272 13,150.00 7/15/2021 7558| 13,150.00 1,986,850.00
7 | 06/30/21|PARADIGM 21.0630.45 6,035.00| 7/15/2021 7563 19,185.00 1,980,815.00
8 | 06/30/21|Harris Beach 8811903 6,325.00| 7/22/2021 7565 25,510.00 1,974,490.00
9 | 07/16/21|Bernier Carr 21-641 48,695.00| 7/25/2021 7570 74,205.00 1,925,795.00
10| 07/14/21|PARADIGM 21.0714.5 7,250.00| 7/29/2021 7573] 81,455.00 1,918,545.00
1 7/xx/21|Thomas Trash Service 7-INVOICES 1,600.00| 7/29/2021| 7572| 83,055.00 1,916,945,00
12 | 08/08/21|PARADIGM 21.0806.03 12,500.00] 8&/12/2021 7582| 95,555.00 1,904,445.00
13 | 07/30/21|Harris Beach 8815480 4,325.00| 8/12/2021 7583| 99,880.00 1,900,120.00
14 | 07/31/21|Bernier Carr 21-787 898.07| 8/24/2021 7587| 100,778.07 1,899,221.93
15| 08/31/21|DANC--Tipping Fees Aug-21 1,071.32| 9/9/2021 7599| 101,849.39 1,898,150.61
16| 08/30/21|PARADIGM 21-0621-5 5,300.00| 9/16/2021 7605| 107,149.39 1,892,850.61
17 | 09/07/21|Thomas Trash Service 19700005 200.00| 9/16/2021| 7606| 107,349.39 1,892,650.61
18 | 08/31/21|Harris Beach 8821006 4,900.00| 9/23/2021 7615| 112,249.39 1,887,750.61
19| 08/31/21|Bernier Carr 21-889 4,055.00{ 9/23/2021 7607| 116,304.39 1,883,695.61
20| 09/07/21 DANC--Tipping Fees 472959 30.24| 9/23/2021 7608| 116,334.63 1,883,665.37
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
Accounting/Grants/WIP Airport “47-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Loan Review Committee Meeting Minutes
September 29, 2021

Present: Robert Aliasso, Chair; John Jennings, David Converse

Absent: None

Also Present: David Zembiec, Lyle Eaton, Peggy Sampson, Joy Nuffer, Jay Matteson, Trudy
Latimer, Brendan Straub from Channel 7 News
Zoom: Justin Miller, Esq.

IL

IIL

Call to Order: Chair Aliasso called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.

Pledge of Allegiance

Trudy Latimer d/b/a Adirondack Hearing Innovations — A request for a MICRO loan
in the amount of $8,000 to be used to purchase equipment to establish a hearing aid
center in Felts Mills, NY. Staff reviewed the request and recommended approval for a 5-
year amortization with a rate of 5%. Personnel will include the owner with addition of
one position in year one and up to a maximum of four. Collateral will be a first position
lien on the assets of the business and a personal guarantee of Trudy Latimer.

Mr. Aliasso indicated that the loan amount is slightly over the 40% threshold. He said it
should be noted in the resolution. Committee members agreed.

Ms. Latimer said that she already has a building located in Felts Mills and has a customer
base from her previous work in the business. She said that she will hold pop-up events at
nursing homes and will market to Lowville, Carthage, Felts Mills, Ogdensburg and
Massena. She noted that there is also a need for the younger generation due to sports.

Mr. Jennings asked if there is licensing involved. Ms. Latimer said yes, for the hearing
instruments.

At 8:10 a.m., Mr. Converse made a motion to enter into executive session to discuss the
personal financials of a particular person, seconded by Mr. Jennings. Committee
members, staff, counsel and Ms. Latimer remained.

At 8:17 am., a motion was made by Mr. Converse to leave executive session, seconded
by Mr. Jennings.

After review and discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Jennings to move the request to
the full board, seconded by Mr. Converse. All in favor.

-48-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Loan Review Committee Meeting Minutes
September 29, 2021

IV.

Other/Unfinished Business:

1. MLR Realty, LL.C — An application for a PILOT transaction for their expansion

project in the City Center Industrial Park along with the cost benefit analysis and
summary were included in the packet. Mr. Zembiec said they plan to add 20,000
square feet to their existing facility (10,000 sq. ft. for cold storage and 10,000 sq. ft.
for dry storage) and noted that the application fee was received. He indicated that the
land conveyance needs to be finalized.

Attorney Miller said the project will be a straight lease transaction, but noted that the
assembly will include the land swap which involves the City of Watertown and the
Watertown Local Development Corporation. He said that the cost benefit analysis
should be modified to show a 10-year PILOT rather than a 15-year PILOT.

After discussion, a motion was made by Mr, Converse to move the application to the
full board, seconded by Mr. Jennings. All in favor. Attorney Miller said that he will
have the initial resolution prepared by the end of the week.

. 31606 Felt Mills LLC (Lightstar) — An application, cost benefit analysis and

summary were included in the packet for a PILOT transaction for their proposed solar
project in Felts Mills, NY. Mr. Zembiec said the application fee was paid. He asked
Attorney Miller if this project will be subject to prevailing wage because its over $5
million. Attorney Miller said that he will look into it, but noted that it is under 5
megawatts.

Mr. Aliasso pointed out that the application says there will be 50% sales in Jefferson
County and shows zero for equity, which he doesn’t believe to be true. He asked Mr.
Zembiec to check with the applicant prior to the upcoming board meeting. Mr.
Zembiec said he would check. He added that community scale projects have to serve
residential users primarily, but those sales are not limited to municipal boundaries.
Mr. Aliasso wondered if grants/credits should be listed on the summary sheet. He
said there are positives to the application such as it being community solar and using
low value land.

Attorney Miller said that the development team that is engaging with us now has
already indicated that they will sell the project. Attorney Miller noted that there is
equity floating in the deal, but they are not reporting it. Attorney Miller said that we
could ask for the sales agreement, although he suspects the answer will be no, in
which case we could tell the developer that the buyer will be required to fill out the

application,

After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Jennings to move the application to the
full board, seconded by Mr. Converse. All in favor. Attorney Miller said that he will
have the initial resolution prepared by the end of the week.

2
-49-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Loan Review Committee Meeting Minutes
September 29, 2021

V. Adjournment: With no further business before the committee, Mr. Converse made a
motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mr. Jennings. The meeting adjourned at
8:56 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

-50-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Loan Review Committee

Date; 9/29/2021

Borrower: Trudy Latimer d/b/a Adirondack Hearing Innovations
Amount: $8,000.00

Project: Purchase of equipment to establish

a hearing aid center

Personnel: Owner, add 1 position in year one,
add 1 position a year till at maximum 4

Sources and Uses:

Personal Cash $10,000 Renovations $10,000
JCIDA MICRO Loan $8,000 Equipment $8,000
Total Project $18,000 $18,000
Terms:

5 year loan, 5 % interest

Financials:
Low credit score due to identity theft and subsequent bankruptcy

Collateral:
UCC filing, first position lien on assets of the organization
and personal guarantee of Trudy Latimer

Proforma-Adirondack Hearing Innovations

[ Proforma Sales Year 1 Year 2 Year3 |

Sales $240,000 $276,000 $317,400
Cost of Goods Sold $156,000 $179,400 $206,310
Gross Profit $84,000 $96,600 $111,090
Expenses $19,5655 $28,480 $37,672
Net Profit $64,445 $68,120 $73,418
Debt Service Requirem  $1,457 $1,531 $1,609
Excess Cash $62,988 $66,589 $71,809

Borrower has extensive background in the hearing aid
business and has clients ready for when she opens.

-51-



DR A FEW

JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Resolution Number 10.07.2021.01

RESOLUTION FOR AUTHORIZING A MICRO ENTERPRISE LOAN TO
Trudy Latimer d/b/a Adirondack Hearing Innovations

WHEREAS, Trudy Latimer, owner of Adirondack Hearing Innovations requested by
application to this Agency a Micro Enterprise Loan in the amount of Eight Thousand Dollars
($8,000.00) to purchase equipment to establish a hearing aid center in Felts Mills, NY, and

WHEREAS, Staff reviewed this request and recommends approval of a loan in the
amount of $8,000 for a five-year amortization with a rate of 5%. Personnel will include the
owner with the addition of one position in year one and up to a maximum of 4. Collateral will be
a first position lien on the assets of the business and a personal guarantee of Trudy Latimer, and

WHEREAS, on September 29, 2021, the Loan Review Committee of the Jefferson
County Industrial Development Agency reviewed this request. They made a note that the loan
amount is slightly over the 40% threshold. The Committee recommended approval of the loan
and terms to the full Board of Directors, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Jefferson
County Industrial Development Agency that it herein approved the request for a Eight Thousand
Dollar ($8,000.00) loan to Trudy Latimer d/b/a Adirondack Hearing Innovations with all terms
and conditions as set forth in this Resolution, and be it further,

RESOLVED, that the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary and/or Chief Executive
Officer are authorized and directed to execute any and all documents necessary to carry out the
purposes of this Resolution.

This resolution shall take effect immediately.

W. Edward Walldroff
Secretary

-7



......

Bfsfa
afili e

!

SRIOA M3N 20 3LYLS 'AINNOO NOSYI3r
NMOLYILYM 40 ALID
ENRI
133r04d NOISNVdX3 1202

L4 ]

-

Mo

[ TRTTT

:'i}i!“

i

30IA4380004 IZN3Y

I

|

§
!

Ry lepug 2oy

tlht-u

:

il

———

anttlll

|

——————

ili

-53-




INITIAL PROJECT RESOLUTION
(MLR Realty, LLC Project — Renzi Bros., Inc. d/b/a Renzi Foodservice)

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency convened on
Thursday October 7, 2021 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 10.07.2021.02

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE “AGENCY”) (i) ACCEPTING AN
APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY MLR REALTY, LLC, FOR ITSELF
AND/OR ON BEHALF OF ONE OR MORE ENTITIES TO BE FORMED
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY”) WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN
PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED BELOW); (i) AUTHORIZING THE
SCHEDULING AND CONDUCT OF A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT
TO THE PROIJECT; (iii) DESCRIBING THE FORMS OF FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE BEING CONTEMPLATED BY THE AGENCY WITH
RESPECT TO THE PROIJECT; (iv) ADOPTING FINDINGS WITH RESPECT
TO THE STATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT (“SEQRA”)
WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT; AND (v) AUTHORIZING THE
ACQUISITION OF CERTAIN RAIL SPUR LANDS (AS DEFINED HEREIN).

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by
the Act; and

WHEREAS, MLR Realty, LLC, for itself and/or on behalf of an entity to be formed
(collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an Application for Financial Assistance (the
“Application”) requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a certain project (the “Project”)
consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in an approximately 40
acres of real property located at or adjacent to 901 Rail Drive, Watertown, New York 13601 (the
“Land”, being more particularly described as TMID No 9-43-101.008 (approx. 21 acres),
portions of TMID No 9-43-101.220 (approximately 10 acres), TMID No 9-43-101.210
(approximately 6 acres), and 9-26-102.001 approximately 3 acres)), along with the existing
improvements located thereon including approximately 100,000 square feet of building space
and related onsite improvements (the “Existing Improvements™) utilized for warehousing,
storage and office space by Renzi Bros, Inc. d/b/a Renzi Food Service (“Renzi Foodservice”),
(ii) the planning, design, construction, reconstruction, modification and equipping of the
Existing Improvements and the addition of approximately 20,000 square feet of building addition

Pace |
-54-



to provide for expanded docking, refrigerated storage and warehousing space, including
warehousing, storage, shipping, receiving, office and mechanical spaces, additional external
parking improvements, driveways, curbage, landscaping, storm water management and related
site improvements (collectively, the “Improvements”), and (iii) the acquisition in and around the
Improvements and of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal property and
equipment (the “Equipment” and, collectively with the Land, the Existing Improvements and the
Improvements, the *Facility”), and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the
meaning of subdivision (15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain
a leasehold interest in the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility

back to the Company (the “Straight Lease Transaction™); and

WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating providing financial assistance to the Company
with respect to the Project (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”) in the form of: (A) an
exemption from all State and local sales and use taxes with respect to qualifying personal
property included in or incorporated into the Facility or used in the construction and equipping of
the Facility, (B) a mortgage recording tax exemption for financings undertaken to construct the
Facility, and (C) a partial real property tax abatement through a payment-in-lieu-of-tax
agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company would make payments in
lieu of real property taxes to the Agency for the benefit of each affected tax jurisdiction (the
“Affected Tax Jurisdictions™); and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Watertown (the “City Council”) previously
reviewed the proposed Project pursuant to the State Environmental Quality Review Act, as
codified under Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and Regulations adopted
pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State (collectively,
“SEQRA”) along with a related Environmental Assessment Form (“EAF”), and in accordance
with SEQRA adopted a Negative Declaration with respect to the Project on August 16, 2021 (the
“Negative Declaration”, attached hereto along with the EAF as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the undertaking of the Project, the Agency is undertaking
the relocation of certain railway spur improvements located within and upon the Land, to wit, the
abandonment of the former railway spur and construction of certain new railway spur
improvements to be located adjacent to Rail Drive (the “Rail Spur Relocation™), such Rail Spur
Relocation to include the acquisition of certain lands owned by the City of Watertown (the
“City”) and to be acquired by the Agency through the Watertown Local Development
Corporation (“WLDC”), such lands being identified as a portion of existing tax parcel TMID No
9-43-101.220, and herein, the “Rail Spur Lands”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to (i) accept the Application, (ii) authorize the
scheduling and conduct of a public hearing pursuant to an in accordance with the Act, (iii)
describe the forms of financial assistance contemplated by the Agency, (iv) authorize the
acquisition of the Rail Spur Lands from WLDC, and (v) adopt findings with respect to the
Project pursuant to SEQRA.

Page 2
-55-



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in
the Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  Itis desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to appoint the Company as
agent to construct the Improvements and acquire the Equipment constituting the Facility
pursuant to the Agent Agreement and Leaseback Agreement to be negotiated as components of
one or more Straight Lease Transactions; and

(C)  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth within Section 4, hereof, the Agency
has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the Act; and

(D)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to undertake the
Project, thereby increasing capital investment and employment opportunities in the City of
Watertown, and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and

(E)  The Project will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of the Company or
any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area of the State of New York (the “State™)
to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the
Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State; and the Agency
hereby finds that, based on the Company’s application, to the extent occupants are relocating
from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project
occupants from removing such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their
respective industries.

(F)  Based upon a review of the Application and the EAF submitted to the Agency, the
Agency hereby:

(1) consents to and affirms the status of the City Council as Lead Agency for
review of the Facility, within the meaning of, and for all purposes of complying with
SEQRA; and

(i1)  ratifies the proceedings undertaken by the City Council under SEQRA
with respect to the construction and equipping of the Facility pursuant to SEQRA; and

(iii)  finds that the Project involves an “unlisted action” (as such quoted term is
defined under SEQRA). The Agency’s review is “uncoordinated” (as such quoted term
is defined under SEQRA). Based upon the review by the Agency of the EAF and related
documents delivered by the Company to the Agency and other representations made by

Page 3
-56-



DR 4\

the Company to the Agency in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby finds that
(a) the Project will result in no major impacts and, therefore, is one which may not cause
significant damage to the environment; (b) the Project will not have a “significant effect
on the environment” (as such quoted term is defined under SEQRA); and (c) no
“environmental impact statement™ (as such quoted term is defined under SEQRA) need
be prepared for this action. This determination constitutes a “negative declaration” (as
such quoted terms are defined under SEQRA) for purposes of SEQRA.

Section 2. The proposed financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency
includes (i) an exemption from all state and local sales and use taxes with respect to the
qualifying personal property included within the Project or used in the acquisition, construction
or equipping of the Project, (ii) a mortgage recording tax exemption for financings undertaken to
construct the Facility, and (iii) a partial real property tax abatement through a payment-in-lieu-
of-tax agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company would make
payments in lieu of real property taxes to the Agency for the benefit of the Affected Tax
Jurisdictions.

Section 3. The Agency further authorizes the scheduling and conduct of a public
hearing as required by Section 859-a of the Act (the “Public Hearing”). Prior to such Public
Hearing, the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby
authorized and directed to negotiate the terms of one or more PILOT Agreements for the Project
in accordance with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP”).

Section 4. The Agency’s formal inducement to undertake the Project and approve the
Financial Assistance shall be by one or more further resolutions of the Agency and shall be
subject to the terms and conditions as are set forth therein.

Section 5. Harris Beach PLLC, as General and Transaction Counsel for the Agency,
is hereby authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to prepare for submission
to the Agency all documents necessary to effect the conduct of the Public Hearing.

Section 6. The Agency hereby authorizes the acquisition of the Rail Spur Lands from
WLDC, along with the acceptance of all existing improvements located thereon as constructed
and relocated by the Agency. The Agency further hereby ratifies and confirms all prior actions
and approvals associated with the swap of certain lands with the Company associated with the
Rail Spur. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency are
hereby authorized to execute and deliver all necessary deeds and recording forms associated with
acquiring the Rail Spur Lands from WLDC, along with related documents with such changes as
shall be approved by the Chairman, Vice Chairman, and/or Chief Executive Officer, and counsel
to the Agency upon execution.

Section 7. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Agency are hereby authorized and directed to negotiate, but not execute, certain lease
agreements, an Agent and Financial Assistance and Project Agreement (the “Agent
Agreement”), the PILOT Agreement(s), and related documents to undertake the Straight Lease

Parge 4
-57-



EDER 45 I W

Transaction. The Agency’s authorization of the Project and the Financial Assistance shall be
subject to the adoption of Agency resolutions relative to same.

Section 8. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Agency
are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and
WLDC, and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to
implement the provisions of this Resolution.

Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for an in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 10.  These Resolutions shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll
call, which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain

David J. Converse
John Jennings

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.
W. Edward Walldroff
William W. Johnson
Lisa L’Huillier

Paul J. Warneck

1 1 ) ) ——
D e J TSy Sy N W—]
o o N e N amn Fane B ¥ e |
L el e 5 T [y TN Wy T—
e ——
D e L S —
e s|TrsraeEe e
e e e el e e R

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.

Page 5
-E8-



STATE OF NEW YORK ) Y B A0 1

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) SS:

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held
on October 7, 2021, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and
correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of the
whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said
Agency this ___ day of ; 2021,

W. Edward Walldroff, (Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Page 6
-5O-



EXHIBIT A
SEQRA MATERIALS

Page 7

-60-



Short Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project Information

Instructions for Completing

Part 1 - Project Information. The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1. Responses become part of the
application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification. Complete Part 1 based on
information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to any item, please answer as
thoroughly as possible based on current information,

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful to the
lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item,

Part 1 - Project and Sponsor Information

Name of Action or Project:

Renzi Foodservice 2021 Expansion Project
Project Location (describe, and attach a location map):

Renzi Foodservice, 901 Rail Drive Watertown, NY

Brief Description of Proposed Action:

The Renzi Foodservice 2021 Expansion projecl includes a 38,170 SF warehouse building addition on the northeast side of the existing office and
warehouse facility and associated site and utility improvements.

Name of Applicant or Sponsor: Telephone: 315.788-5610

Renzi Foodservice - Atin: John Renzi E-Mail: {ohnrenzi@renzl.net
Address:
901 Rail Drive
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Waterlown NY 13601
1. Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, local law, ordinance, NO | YES
administrative rule, or regulation?
If Yes, attach a narrative description of the intent of the proposed action and the environmental resources that I:I
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2. If no, continue to question 2,
2. Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other government Agency? NO YES
If Yes, list agency(s) name and permit or approval: NS DEC - SPDES Permit ; NYS DEC - Joint Permit I:I
USACE - Joint Permit ; City of Watertown - Site Plan Approval
3. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? 31.3 acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 9.23 acres
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 31.3 acres

4, Check all land uses that occur on, are adjoining or near the proposed action:

5. [JUan [ Rural (non-agriculture)  [/] Industrial [Z] Commercial [Z] Residential (suburban)
[¥] Forest [] Agriculture [C] Aquatic [ Other(Specify):
1 parkland

Page 1 nf3
6]



5. Is the proposed action,

N/A

a. A permitted use under the zoning regulations?

b. Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan?

L) 8

LI

6. Isthe proposed action consistent with the predominant character of the existing built or natural landscape?

>,
on

E

N

7. Isthe site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area?

If Yes, identify:

-5
L7]

E

[]

8. a.  Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels?
b.  Are public transportation services available at or near the site of the proposed action?

¢ Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near the site of the proposed
action?

s
m
w

LRI

9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements?

If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

INILNIE| N |30 [3|HIN| &

YE

o

[]

which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the
Commissioner of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the
State Register of Historic Places?

b. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPQ) arcliacological site inventory?

10. Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply? NO | YES
If No, describe method for providing potable waler:

The building addition will connect 1o the existing building water supply. Existing exterior fire and domestic water facilities will be |:|
relocated to accomodate the addition,

11. Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities? NO | YES

If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment:

The building addition will connect to the existing building sanitary sewer. No new sanitary sewer mains or lalerals will be constructed D
as part of this project )

12. a. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archacological site, or district NO

13, a. Does any portion of the site of the proposed action, or lands adjoining the proposed action, contain
wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?

If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres:
There are wetlands both on and adjacent to the site. A wetland and stream delineation report was completed by EDR in December

2020. USACE is currently in the process of making a jurisdictional determination of the wetlands described in the EDR report.

YES

Page 2 of 3

-62-




14, Identify the typical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply:
[IShoreline [/] Forest [_] Agricultural/grasslands [] Early mid-successional
[Owetland [] Urban [#] Suburban

I5. Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal, or associated habitats, listed by the State or

-
oy

E

Federal government as threatened or endangered?
Indiana Bat, Northern Long-...

N

16. Is the project site located in the 100-year flood plan?

-<
m
)

]

=<
o
o

17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources?
If Yes,

a.  Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties?

LN|CE| " 3|0z

b.  Will storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)?

NIUR

If Yes, briefly describe:

Stormwater runoffl will be direcled lo one of two on-sile stormwaler basins prior to discharging west lo an existing State welland.

18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that would result in the impoundment of water | NO | YES
or other liquids (e.g., retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)?
[f Yes, explain the purpose and size of the impoundment;
The project will include expansion of one (1) existing infillration basin and construction of one new infiliration basin. l:l
19. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the location of an active or closed solid waste | NO | YES
management facility?

If Yes, describe: I___I
20.Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation (ongoing or NO | YES

completed) for hazardous waste?

If Yes, describe:
V]

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE

Applicant/sponsar/name: Renzi Foodservice - Altn: John Renzi Date: 7{/} ? } Z[
Signature: be"\w 'ﬁm‘( : Title; ] / / ? (TDA{ 54 cé«f
i A Vi
/ UV
PRINT FORM Page 3 of 3

-B3-




EAF Mapper Summary Report Tuesday, November 10, 2020 9:31 AM

Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper is a screening toal intended to assisl
A project sponsors and reviewing agencles in preparing an environmental
| assessment farm (EAF). Not all queslions asked in the EAF are
answerad by the EAF Mapper. Additional informalion on any EAF
question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Workbooks. Although
the EAF Mapper provides the most up-to-date digital data available to
DEC, you may alsa need to contact local or other dala sources in order
{o obtain data not provided by the Mapper. Digital dala is nota
substilute for agency delerminalions.

F.Pll.‘mu ';!-i-:mlll!ﬂf f [ARIET

Toronta
i} t3F " !
, B0 S e - ey,
o Keteat ‘ f Hozion
Clevéiind SHredane s
; 1 Htw Yok
.F’“I:bu.'n.h bhil

318 El- ?I’T’FEI‘RC‘:& Ezn dapan, I-.'IEI'I Esln China 1[I-I':mq Ko, Esii
.F-.G{ilﬂpelstr‘a:l !ap c-:-ntubw h. ‘Wg‘ c§|."“ GIS User Comm, LIF'IIF'

Part 1 / Question 7 [Cﬁticai'Envirdrifhéﬁtél No
Area]

Part 1/ Question 12a [National or State No
‘Register of Historic Places or State Eligible
Sltes] ;

‘Part 1/ Question 12b [Archeologmal Sltes] Yeg
Part 1/ Question 13a [Wetlands or Other  Yes - Digital mapping information on local and federal wetlands and

‘Regulated Waterbodies] _ ‘waterbodies is known to be incomplete. Refer to EAF Workbook.
Part 1/ Question 15 [Threatened or Yes

Endangered Animal] o o

Part 1/ Question 15 [Threatened or Indiana Bat, Northern Long-eared Bat

Endangered Animal - Name] _
‘Part 1/ Question 16 [100 Year Flood Plain] 'Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

A s e s i L OIRON
iF‘art 1/ Question 20 [Remediation Site] ‘No
Short Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report ]

-64-




11/9/2020, 1:41:51 PM

Black River

=

e City Boundary

Parcels

ROADS

1:9,028
0 0.05 0.1 0.2 mi
: ! o g T | S T N— T |
0 0.07 0.15 0.3 km
New York Siate, USDA FSA, GaoEye, Maxar
-65- Wab AppBulider for ArcGIS

New York Stale, USDA FSA, GeoEyse, Maxar |



SHORT EAF SUMMARY REPORT:

Questions 12b, 13a, and 15 are answered automatically by the EAF mapper based
upon limited digital mapping information that is available,

Questions 12b, Archeological Sites, is answered yes due to the location of
the historic railroad car maintenance turn-table located on the adjacent tax
parcel number 9-43-101.231, northeast of the site. See Subdivision Final
Plat, City Center Industrial Park, 11/21/2008, Jeff. Co. File #4655.

Question 13a, Wetlands, is answered yes due to the location of wetlands
and streams located on site and wetlands located adjacent to the site
directly west of the City Center Industrial Park site. A wetland and stream
delineation was performed by EDR. Locations of wetlands on and
adjacent to the site can be seen on the site plans. USACE is currently in
the process of making a jurisdictional determination of the wetlands
described in the EDR report and a joint permit application has been sent
to the DEC for disturbing area within 100” of a state wetland. The project
will not disturb any Federal or State wetlands, only previously developed
stormwater ponds and drainage swales.

Question 15, Threatened or Endangered Species, is answered yes due to
the listed presence of the Indiana Bat and Northern Long-Eared Bat near
the project site as listed on the NYS DEC environmental mapper
database. A letter has been sent to the DEC requesting further
information.

-66-

NYS WBE/DEE Certified

SBA Woman Owned
Small Business (WOSB)

Phono; 316.762.2005
. Fax; 3157821472

_: I‘ﬂanaglng Partner

* Annatle M. Masan, PE,

Structural Enginesr

Partners
Brian A, Jones, AlA,,
LEED AP BD+C
Architect

Matthew R. Morgia, RE.
Civil Engineer

Jayson J. Jones, PL.S.
Land Surveyor




CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
SUITE 305, CITY HALL
245 WASHINGTON STREET
WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 13601-3362
TEL. {315) 785-7741
FAX (315) 785-7829

MICHAEL A. LUMBIS
PLANNING & COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

August 19,2021

Matthew R. Morgia, P.E.
Aubertine and Currier, PLLC
522 Bradley Street
Watertown, NY 13601

Re:  Site Plan Approval — 901 Rail Drive, Parcel Number 9-43-108.000

Dear Matthew:

At its August 16, 2021 meeting, the City Council of the City of Watertown considered your request
for Site Plan Approval to construct a 38,170 SF building addition, an aggregate 59,304 square-foot (SF)
asphall parking and loading area expansion and associated site improvements at 901 Rail Drive, Parcel

Number 9-43-108.000.

Al that meeting, the City Council approved the site plan submitted to the City Planning and
Community Development Department on August 3, 2021, contingent upon the following:

I. The applicant must obtain, minimally, the following permits prior to construction:
Building Permit and Water Supply Permit.

2. The applicant shall coordinate the construction of the new truck access drive with the
Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (JCIDA), as the adjacent owner, prior to
work commencing on the JCIDA property and shall provide the City and JCIDA a
construction detail showing the proposed at grade road crossing of the rail spur.

Enclosed is a certified copy of the resolution adopted by the City Council for your records. All
further permits and requirements for the project can be determined by contacting City Code Enforcement

Bureau.
Sinceiely,
y %é_,
1
Michael J. DeMarco
Planner
cc: John Renzi, Renzi Foodservice, 901 Rail Drive, Watertown, NY 13601

Dana Aikins, City Code Enforcement Supervisor

BT



Resolution No. 8 August 16, 2021

RESOLUTION YEA | Ay
Page 1 of 2 Council Member HENRY-WILKINSON, Ryan J. X
Council Member PIERCE, Sarah V.C. X
Approving the Site Plan for the Construction Council Member RUGGIERO, Lisa A. X
of a 38,170 sq. ft. Building Addition, an Aggregate
58,304 sq. ft, Asphalt Parking and Loading Area Cauncil Member SPAZIANI, Leonard G. X
Expansion and Associated Site Improvements
at 901 Rail Drive, Parcel Number 9-43-108.000 Mayor SMITH, Jeffrey M. X
Tolal s 5 0

Introduced by

Council Member Ryan J. Henry-Wilkinson

WHEREAS Matthew R. Morgia, P.E. of Aubertine and Currier, PLLC on behalf
of Renzi Foodservice, has submitted an application for Site Plan Approval for the construction of
a 38,170 sq. ft. building addition, an aggregate 59,304 sq. ft. asphalt parking and loading area
expansion and associated site improvements at 901 Rail Drive, Parcel Number 9-43-108.000,

and

WHEREAS the City Planning Board reviewed the site plan at its meeting held on
August 3, 2021 and voted to recommend that the City Council of the City of Watertown approve

the site plan with the following conditions:

1. The applicant must obtain, minimally, the following permits prior to
construction: Building Permit and Water Supply Permit.

2. The applicant shall coordinate the construction of the new truck access drive
with the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (JCIDA), as the
adjacent owner, prior to work commencing on the JCIDA property and shall
provide the City and JCIDA a construction detail showing the proposed at

grade road crossing of the rail spur.

And,

WHEREAS the City Council has reviewed the Full Environmental Assessment
Form, responding to each of the questions contained in Part 2, and has determined that the
project, as submitted, is a Type | Action and will not have a significant impact on the

environment,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Watertown deéclares that the proposed construction and site plan constitute a Type 1 Action for
the purposes of SEQRA and hereby determines that the project, as proposed, will not have a
significant impact on the environment, and

-68-




Resolution No. 8 August 16, 2021

RESOLUTION Ll
Page 2 of 2 Council Member HENRY-WILKINSON, Ryan J. X
Council Member PIERCE, Sarah V.C. X
Approving the Site Plan for the Construction Council Member RUGGIERO, Lisa A. X
of a 38,170 sq. fi. Building Addition, an Aggregate
59,304 sq. ft. Asphalt Parking and Loading Area Council Member SPAZIANI, Leonard G. X
Expansion and Associated Site Improvements
at 901 Rail Drive, Parcel Number 9-43-108.000 Mayor SMITH, Jeffrey M. X
1=\~ | R 5 0

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is an express condition of this Site Plan
Approval that the applicant provide the City Engineer with a copy of any change in stamped
plans forming the basis for this approval at the same time such plans are provided to the
contractor. If plans are not provided as required by this condition of site plan approval, the City
Code Enforcement Officer shall direct that work on the project site shall immediately cease until
such time as the City Engineer is provided with the revised stamped plans. Additionally, any
change in the approved plan, which, in the opinion of the City Engineer, would require Amended
Site Plan Approval, will result in immediate cessation of the affected portion of the project work
until such time as the amended site plan is approved. The City Code Enforcement Officer is
directed to periodically review on-site plans to determine whether the City Engineer has been

provided with plans as required by this approval, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Watertown that
Site Plan Approval is hereby granted to Matthew R. Morgia, P.E. of Aubertine and Currier, PLLC
on behalf of Renzi Foodservice for the construction of a 38,170 sq. ft. building addition, an

aggregate 59,304 sq. ft. asphalt parking and loading area expansion and associated site
improvements at 901 Rail Drive, Parcel Number 9-43-108.000, and, as depicted on the site plan

submitted to the City Planning and Community Development Department on July 20, 2021,
contingent upon the applicant meeting the conditions listed above.

Seconded by: Council Member Lisa A. Ruggiero

-69-




10T “91 1sn3ny a1eQ

:LOArANS
NOILLN'TOSdY

uosuryjip-Kuay 1 uely aquiajy [1ounod) :Lg

000°801-E-6 12quInyN
[201ed “aALI(] [rBY 106 1B siuawsaoidug
31IS PoIBID0SSY pue uolsuedxy eary Suipeo]
ue ‘uonippy Suip[ing Yy "bs oL [‘gc ©
Jo uononusuoy) ) 10J ue[q aNg Y furtaoiddy

pue Subjred Jfeydsy Y ‘bs ¢S 21882133y

Jefferson County

STATE OF NEW YORK
CITY OF WATERTOWN } L

[, Ann M. Saunders, City Clerk of the City of Watertown, hereby certify that the within Resolution was adopted
at a meeting of the City Council of said City, held August 16. 2021 and that the same is the whole of said

Resolution,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed the seal of said City of Watertown, New York
% o
"
r

L L..\J;."Mﬁ:r ;
- L] Jeaw .-y

i 1 Bhradteia

City Clerk

70



INITIAL PROJECT RESOLUTION
(31606 Felt Mills LLC Project) DR A FET

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency convened on
Thursday, October 7, 2021 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 10.07.2021.03

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (i) ACCEPTING AN APPLICATION
SUBMITTED BY 31606 FELT MILLS LLC WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN
PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED BELOW); (i) AUTHORIZING THE
SCHEDULING AND CONDUCT OF A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT
TO THE PROJECT; (iii) DESCRIBING THE FORMS OF FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE BEING CONTEMPLATED BY THE AGENCY; (iv)
ADOPTING  FINDINGS WITH RESPECT TO THE STATE
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT (“SEQRA”), AND (v)
AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION OF CERTAIN AGREEMENTS
RELATING TO THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by
the Act; and

WHEREAS, 31606 FELT MILLS LLC, for itself and/or for an entity or entities to be
formed (collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an application to the Agency requesting the
Agency's assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the
Agency of a leasehold interest in approximately 20 acres of real property located at 31606 NYS
Rote 3 in the Town of Rutland, New York (the “Land”, being more particularly described as a
portion of tax parcel No. 76.09-1-42.1); (ii) the planning, design, construction and operation of a
3MWac PV solar electrical generation system, including panel foundations, inverters,
transformers, interconnect wiring, utility connections, sitework, landscaping, fencing, security
and related improvements (collectively, the “Improvements”); (iii) the acquisition of and
installation in and around the Land and Improvements by the Company of machinery,
equipment, fixtures and other items of tangible personal property (the “Equipment”; and,
collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the “Facility™); and (iv) entering into a straight
lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision (15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to
which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in the Facility for a period of time and sublease
such interest in the Facility back to the Company (the “Straight Lease Transaction”); and

Paee 1

1=



A

i B

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 859-a of the‘{h“ct;f?he Agency
desires to schedule and conduct a public hearing (the “Public Hearing”) relating to the Project
and the proposed financial assistance contemplated by the Agency (collectively, the “Financial
Assistance”), such Financial Assistance to include a partial real property tax abatement through
the execution of an agreement with the Agency regarding payments in lieu of real property taxes
to be made for the benefit of the Affected Tax Jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act, Article
8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto at 6
NYCRR Part 617, as amended (collectively referred to as “SEQRA”), the Agency must satisfy
the applicable requirements set forth in SEQRA, as necessary, prior to making a final
determination whether to undertake the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Rutland Planning Board (the “Planning Board”), acting as
“lead agency” (as such term is defined under SEQRA), previously reviewed the Project pursuant
to SEQRA and on March 4, 2021 issued a “negative declaration” (as such term is defined under
SEQRA) with respect to the Project (the “Negative Declaration”, a copy of which, along with
related Environmental Assessment Form, or “EAF”), is attached hereto as Exhibit A); and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to (i) accept the Application, (ii) authorize the
scheduling and conduct of a public hearing pursuant to and in accordance with the Act, and (iii)
negotiate, but not enter into an Agent and Financial Assistance and Project Agreement (the
“Agent Agreement”), a Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”), a Leaseback Agreement (the
“Leaseback Agreement”), a Payment-in-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), and
related documents with the Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Company has presented an Application in a form acceptable to the
Agency. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company's
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the
Act; and

(C)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the
Project, thereby creating significant employment opportunities and critical investment in
Jefferson County, New York, and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in
the Act; and

Pare ?

5



DRAFT

(D)  The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or
manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one
area of the State of New York (the “State”) to another area of the State or result in the
abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project located within the State; and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the
Company's application, to the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to
another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project occupants from removing
such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is reasonably necessary to
preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their respective industries; and

(E)  Based upon a review of the Application, EAF and the Negative Declaration
submitted to the Agency, the Agency hereby:

(1) consents to and affirms the status of the Planning Board as Lead Agency
for review of the Project, within the meaning of, and for all purposes of complying with
SEQRA; and

(it)  ratifies the proceedings undertaken by the Planning Board pursuant to
SEQRA with respect to the construction and equipping of the Project pursuant to
SEQRA, including the Negative Declaration; and

(iii) Based upon the review by the Agency of the EAF, Negative Declaration
and related documents delivered by the Company to the Agency and other
representations made by the Company to the Agency in connection with the Project, the
Agency hereby finds that (a) the Project will result in no major impacts and, therefore, is
one which may not cause significant damage to the environment; (b) the Project will not
have a “significant effect on the environment” (as such quoted term is defined under
SEQRA); and (c) no “environmental impact statement” (as such quoted term is defined
under SEQRA) need be prepared for this action. This determination constitutes a
“negative declaration” (as such quoted terms are defined under SEQRA) for purposes of
SEQRA.

Section 2. The proposed financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency
includes a partial real property tax abatement through the execution of an agreement with the
Agency regarding payments in lieu of real property taxes to be made for the benefit of the
Affected Tax Jurisdictions.

Section 3. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to negotiate the terms of the Agent
Agreement, Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, PILOT Agreement, and related
documents; provided, the provisions of the rental payments under the Leaseback Agreement
include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or related to the Project and
indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions taken by the Company and/or claims
arising out of or related to the Project.

Paoe 3
o] A



DR f N Y
Section 4. The Agency hereby authorizes the sched{liu;}g and conduct a public
hearing in compliance with the Act.

Section 5. Harris Beach PLLC, as General and Transaction Counsel for the Agency,
is hereby authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to prepare for submission
to the Agency of all documents necessary to effect the foregoing authorizations.

Section 6. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 7. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll
call, which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain
Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
David J. Converse [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
John Jennings [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
William W. Johnson [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
Lisa L'Huillier [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
W. Edward Walldroff [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
Paul J. Warneck [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.

Paoe 4
T



STATE OF NEW YORK ) o
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) SS: iR A

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency™), including the resolution contained therein, held
on October 7, 2021, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and
correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of the
whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

[ FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said
Agency this ___ day of , 2021.

W. Edward Walldroff, (Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Pase 5
-75-



EXHIBIT A

SEQRA MATERIALS

Paoe A
-76-



Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project and Setting

Instructions for Completing Part 1

Part 1 is to be completed by the applicant or project sponsor. Responses become part of the application for approval or funding,
are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.

Complete Part 1 based on information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information; indicate whether missing information does not exist,
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to

update or fully develop that information.

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B. In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that
must be answered either “Yes” or “No”. Ifthe answer to the initial question is “Yes”, complete the sub-questions that follow. If the
answer to the initial question is “No”, proceed to the next question. Section F allows the project sponsor to identify and attach any
additional information. Section G requires the name and signature of the applicant or project sponsor to verify that the information
contained in Part lis accurate and complete.

A. Project and Applicant/Sponsor Information.

Name of Action or Project:
Felts Mills Solar Project

Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map):
31606 STATE ROUTE 3, FELTS MILLS, NY 13638 New York State Tax Parcel ID: 76.09-1-42,1

Brief Description of Proposed Action (include purpose or need):

Site plan approval for the construction of solar panel arrays and associated infrastructure on property leased by the Applicant. In addition to solar panel
arrays, one concrete pad for equipment is also proposed. One 20" wide gravel access road will be constructed to access the site, with an entrance
designed for stabilized construction access, and an access gate. The property will also be surrounded by a security fence,

Name of Applicant/Sponsor: Telephone: 732.5682-1389

31606 Felt Mills LLC Mail-
E-Mail: Andrew.Varrow@lightstar-renewables.com

Address: 745 Atlantic Avenue

City/PO: gogion State: MA Zip Code: 02111
Project Contact (if not same as sponsor; give name and title/role): Telephone: 735.682.1389
, Se i 1.
Aoslr Yeon, Ssior Businsies Divelopensnk Micager E-Mail: Andrew.Varrow@lightstar-renewables.com
Address:
745 Allantic Avenue
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
745 Atlantic Avenue MA 02111
Property Owner (if not same as sponsor): Telephone: 713-529-0602
Qi - Rech Revoreble Trus, E-Mail: Andrew.Varrow@lightstar-renewables.com
Address:
2006 North 101st Circle
City/PO: Gingha State: NE Zip Codt’::38134
Page 1 of 13

FEAF 2019
i



B. Government Approvals

B. Government Approvals, Funding, or Sponsorship. (“Funding” includes grants, loans, tax relief, and any other forms of financial
assistance.)

Government Entity If Yes: Identify Agency and Approval(s) Application Date
Required (Actual or projected)
a. City Counsel, Town Board, B]YesLINo |Town Planning Board, Consultation
or Village Board of Trustees
b. City, Town or Village bYes[INo [ Town Planning Board, consultation
Planning Board or Commission
¢. City, Town or lYes[INo Town Engineer, Consultation, and signature
Village Zoning Board of Appeals
d. Other local agencies BZYesCINo  [Town Building Department, Consultation
e. County agencies [ZIYes[INo  |Jefferson County Planning Board Review
f. Regional agencies [YesZINo
g. State agencies EYesCINo  |NYSDAM, NYSDEC, NYSOPRHP, NYSDOT NYSOPRHP-12/8/20; NYSDAM-12/8/20;
NYSDEC- early January
h. Federal agencies [CdYesZINo USFWS IPAC- not required by used for
consultation with NYSDEC
i. Coastal Resources.
i. Is the project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront area of a Designated Inland Waterway? OYesbZINo
ii. Is the project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program? O YesbZINo
iii. Is the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area? O YeskZINo

C. Planning and Zoning

C.1. Planning and zoning actions,
Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or regulation be the [JYesEZINo
only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the proposed action to proceed?

e If Yes, complete sections C, F and G.
* If No, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part 1

C.2. Adopted land use plans.

a. Do any municipally- adopted (city, town, village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site ClYesiZINo
where the proposed action would be located?
If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed action OyesCINo

would be located?

b. Is the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example: Greenway; YeskZINo
Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated State or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;
or other?)

If Yes, identify the plan(s):

c. Is the proposed action located wholly or partially within an area listed in an adopted municipal open space plan, [JYesiZINo
or an adopted municipal farmland protection plan?
If Yes, identify the plan(s):

Page 2 of 13

“78-



C.3. Zoning

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance. 1Yes[INo
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable overlay district?
Vacant land located in_a commercial district

b. Is the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit? ElYesCINo
¢. Is a zoning change requested as part of the proposed action? OYesCINo
If Yes,

i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site?

C.4. Existing community services.

a. In what school district is the project site located? Carthage Central School District

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?
_Carthage Police Department

c. Which fire protection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
Felts Mills Fire Department, Carthage Area Hospital

d. What parks serve the project site?
NIA

D. Project Details

D.1. Proposed and Potential Development

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed, include all
components)? Industrial - Solar Electricity

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? 52,20 acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 19.7 acres
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 52.20 acres
¢. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use? [ YesiZINo
i. If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expansion and identify the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,
square feet)? % Units:
d. Is the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision? OYes INo
If Yes,

i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)

ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed? CYes[CINo
iii. Number of lots proposed?
iv. Minimum and maximum proposed lot sizes? Minimum Maximum

e. Will the proposed action be constructed in multiple phases? O Yesk/INo
i. If No, anticipated period of construction: 4 months
ii. If Yes:
e Total number of phases anticipated
e  Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition) month year
¢ Anticipated completion date of final phase month year
*  Generally describe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingencies where progress of one phase may

determine timing or duration of future phases:

Page 3 of 13

-79-



f. Does the project include new residential uses? OYesiZINo
If Yes, show numbers of units proposed.
One Family Two Family Three Family Multiple Family (four or more)

Initial Phase
At completion
of all phases

g- Does the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)? Yes[ONo

If Yes,
i. Total number of structures 1629
i, Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure: 8 height, 8 width; and 10 length

iii. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled: 0 square feet
h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result in the impoundment of any Yesk/No
liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?
If Yes,
i. Purpose of the impoundment:
ii. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water: L] Ground water [ ] Surface water streams [_]Other specify:

ifi. If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.

iv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment. Volume: million gallons; surface area: acres
v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure: height; length
vi. Construction method/materials for the proposed dam or impounding structure (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):

D.2. Project Operations
a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both? [ |Yesfy/]No
(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)
If Yes:
i.What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging?
ii. How much material (including rock, earth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be removed from the site?
e  Volume (specify tons or cubic yards):

e Over what duration of time?
ii. Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be excavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials? [JyeslyINo
If yes, describe.

v. What is the total area to be dredged or excavated? acres
vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time? acres
vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? feet
viii. Will the excavation require blasting? [(yesf/No

ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan:

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment [JveslyINo
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?
If Yes:

i. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic
description):

Page 4 of 13

<8l



ii. Describe how the proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of channels, banks and shorelines. Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:

fii. Will the proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments? [OYesi/INe
If Yes, describe:
iv. Will the proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegetation? [ YesiZINo
If Yes:
=  acres of aquatic vegetation proposed to be removed:
¢ expected acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion:
¢ purpose of proposed removal (e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access):
e proposed method of plant removal:
¢ if chemical/herbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s):
v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation following disturbance:
c. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water? OYesZNo
If Yes:
i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day: gallons/day
ii. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply? Oyes[No
If Yes:
s Name of district or service area:
¢ Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal? OYes[INo
e Is the project site in the existing district? Cyes[ONo
e [s expansion of the district needed? OyesCONo
e Do existing lines serve the project site? Oyes[INo
iii. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project? Olyes[No
If Yes:
¢ Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:
s Source(s) of supply for the district:
iv. Is a new water supply district or service area proposed to be formed to serve the project site? O YesOONo
If, Yes:
*  Applicant/sponsor for new district:
e  Date application submitted or anticipated:
s  Proposed source(s) of supply for new district:
v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project:
vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or private), what is the maximum pumping capacity: gallons/minute.
d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes? O YesINo

If Yes:
i. Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day: gallons/day

ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated (e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and

approximate volumes or proportions of each):

If Yes:
¢  Name of wastewater treatment plant to be used:

Name of district:

Is the project site in the existing district?

iii. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities? OYesZNo
Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project? CYes[INo
OYes[ONo

OYes[INo

Is expansion of the district needed?

Page 5 of 13

H]




e Do existing sewer lines serve the project site? OYes[No
»  Will a line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project? OYes[INo

If Yes:

¢ Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

iv. Will a new wastewater (sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site? OYesZNo
If Yes:
s Applicant/sponsor for new district:
s  Date application submitted or anticipated:
. What is the receiving water for the wastewater discharge?
v. If public facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed
receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge or describe subsurface disposal plans):

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste:

e. Will the proposed action disturb more than one acre and create stormwater runoff, either from new point KlYes[INo
sources (i.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point
source (i.e. sheet flow) during construction or post construction?

If Yes:
i. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?

500 Square feet or acres (impervious surface)
Square feet or _ 50 2 acres (parcel size)
ii. Describe types of new point sources.

iii. Where will the stormwater runoff be directed (i.e. on-site stormwater management facility/structures, adjacent properties,

groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?
Stormwater runoff will be directed to follow natural drainage patterns utilizing properly designed erosion and sediment control features

¢ Ifto surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:

e  Will stormwater runoff flow to adjacent properties? Cves[No
iv. Does the proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater? [1Yes[JNo
f. Does the proposed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions, including fuel lYes[INo

combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?
If Yes, identify:
i. Mobile sources during project operations (e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)
construction equipment (only construction related emissions)

ii. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant, crushers)
N/A

iii. Stationary sources during operations (e.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)
N/A

g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f (above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit, [JYesi/INo
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit?

If Yes:
i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area? (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet OyesCINo

ambient air quality standards for all or some parts of the year)
ii. In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:
Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide (CO;)
Tons/year (short tons) of Nitrous Oxide (N,0)
Tons/year (short tons) of Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)
Tons/year (short tons) of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SFg)
Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflourocarbons (HFCs)
. Tons/year (short tons) of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

Page 6 of 13

-82-




h. Will the proposed action generate or emit methane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants, [Jyes[INo
landfills, composting facilities)?
If Yes:

i. Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric):

ii. Describe any methane capture, control or elimination measures included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or
electricity, flaring):

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as [Yesi/INo
quarry or landfill operations?
If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock particulates/dust):

J- Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial [OYesiZINo
new demand for transportation facilities or services?
If Yes:
i. When is the peak traffic expected (Check all thatapply): [JMorning [ Evening COweekend
[J Randomly between hours of to

ii. For commercial activities only, projected number of truck trips/day and type (e.g., semi trailers and dump trucks):

iii. Parking spaces:  Existing Proposed Net increase/decrease

iv. Does the proposed action include any shared use parking? CyesCIno
v. Ifthe proposed action includes any modification of existing roads, creation of new roads or change in existing access, describe:

vi. Are public/private transportation service(s) or facilities available within % mile of the proposed site? [OYes[INo

vii Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric ~ []Yes[ ]No
or other alternative fueled vehicles?

viii. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommodations for connections to existing ~ []Yes[ JNo
pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action (for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand KlYes[INo
for energy?
If Yes:

i. Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action:

Demand will be minimal as this is an electrical production facility

ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project (e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local utility, or
other):
On-site renewable - photo voltaic solar cells

iii. Will the proposed action require a new, or an upgrade, to an existing substation? [CYesf/INo

1. Hours of operation. Answer all items which apply.

i. During Construction: i, During Operations:
¢ Monday - Friday: 8AM-5PM e  Monday - Friday:
¢  Saturday: N/A e  Saturday:
s  Sunday: N/A s  Sunday:
s Holidays: N/A s  Holidays:
Page 7 of 13

-83-




m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels during construction, M Yes[INo
operation, or both?
If yes:
i. Provide details including sources, time of day and duration:
During construction, machinery used in tree removal, clearing, grading, installation of piles, and transportation of equipment will provide additional noise
between and 5 PM for a short period of time. Overall construction duration is tentatively estimated to be 4 months.
ii. Will the proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen? Myes[INo
Describe: Tree removal will be done on site with an active buffer still in place of existing trees.

n. Will the proposed action have outdoor lighting? OYes[ONo
If yes:
i. Describe source(s), location(s), height of fixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest occupied structures:

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen? OyeskINo
Describe:
0. Does the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day? CYeskNo

If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissions, and proximity to nearest
occupied structures:

p. Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleum (combined capacity of over 1,100 gallons) OYesINo
or chemical products 1835 gallons in above ground storage or any amount in underground storage?
If Yes:
i. Product(s) to be stored
ii. Volume(s) per unit time (e.g., month, year)

iii. Generally, describe the proposed storage facilities:

q. Will the proposed action (commercial, industrial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides, [ Yes [Z]No
insecticides) during construction or operation?
If Yes:
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):
At this time the use of pesticides is not anticipated, if invasive weeds become an issue and other methods of removal do not work
consultation will occur to determine with hand applied pesticides are the best method forward. Any use of such an item will be conducted
in consultation with the town and the NYS DEC. We have a Noxious Weeds Best Management Practice.

ii. Will the proposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices? [ Yes ZINo
r. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal [ Yes [ZINo
of solid waste (excluding hazardous materials)?

If Yes:
i. Describe any solid waste(s) to be generated during construction or operation of the facility:
=  Construction: tons per (unit of time)
e Operation : tons per (unit of time)

ii. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials to avoid disposal as solid waste:
¢  Construction:

s  Operation:

iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:
¢« Construction:

s  Operation:

Page 8 of 13

-84-




s. Does the proposed action include construction or modification of a solid waste management facility? [] Yes |/l No
If Yes:
i. Type of management or handling of waste proposed for the site (e.g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfill, or
other disposal activities):

ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:

. Tons/month, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or
. Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment
ifi, If landfill, anticipated site life: years

t. Will the proposed action at the site involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous [ ]Yes[/]No

waste?
If Yes:
i. Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility:

ii. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents:

iii. Specify amount to be handled or generated tons/manth
iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of hazardous constituents:

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous waste facility? Oveskno
If Yes: provide name and location of facility:

If No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent to a hazardous waste facility:

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.1. Land uses on and surrounding the project site

a. Existing land uses.
i. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining and near the project site.
[J Urban [ Industrial Commercial [] Residential (suburban) [Z] Rural (non-farm)
[l Forest [ Agriculture [] Aquatic [ Other (specify):
ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:

The current plot of land has a 0.05 pre-exisiting graveled area, the a road leading to a residential house (the house is not a part of the Project). The
project site diverts south of that road into a large cleared area Surroundad by a forested area.

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.

Land use or Current Acreage After Change
Covertype Acreage Project Completion (Acres +/-)
¢ Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious
surfaces 0.50 i 14
s Forested 30 32 0

¢ Meadows, grasslands or brushlands (non-

agricu]tural, including abandoned agricultural) 205 18 =h

s  Agricultural
2 . N/A N/A NIA
(includes active orchards, field, greenhouse etc.)

e  Surface water features

(lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, etc.) A BA i
e  Wetlands (freshwater or tidal) N/A N/A N/A-
e Non-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill) N/A N/A N/A
e  Other
Describe: N/A N/A N/A
Page 9 of 13

-85-




c. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation? CyeshdINo
i, If Yes: explain:

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed [JYesiZ]No
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?

If Yes,
i, Identify Facilities:

e. Does the project site contain an existing dam? OYeshZINo
If Yes:
i. Dimensions of the dam and impoundment:
e Dam height: feet
s Dam length: feet
e Surface area: acres
¢ Volume impounded: gallons OR acre-feet

i, Dam’s existing hazard classification:

iii. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:

f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility, OYesk/INo
or does the project site adjoin property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?

If Yes:
i. Has the facility been formally closed? [dYes[1 No

e Ifyes, cite sources/documentation:
ii. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:

iii. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities:

g. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin OveskZINo
property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?

If Yes:
i. Describe waste(s) handled and waste management activities, including approximate time when activities occurred:

h. Potential contamination history, Has there been a reported spill at the proposed project site, or have any [JyeskZ] No
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site?
If Yes:
i. Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site Oves[ONo
Remediation database? Check all that apply:
[J Yes - Spills Incidents database Provide DEC ID number(s):
[ Yes — Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC ID number(s):

[ Neither database
ii. If site has been subject of RCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:

ifi. Is the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database? OvesiINo
If yes, provide DEC ID number(s):

iv. If yes to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, describe current status of site(s):

Page 10 of 13

-86-



v. Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting property uses? [ yesh/INo
If yes, DEC site ID number;

Describe the type of institutional control (e.g., deed restriction or easement):

Describe any use limitations:

Describe any engineering controls:

Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place? [Cdyes[No
Explain:

E.2. Natural Resources On or Near Project Site

a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site? 2 feet

b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site? CdYesi/INo
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings? %

c. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site: Galway very stony silt loam (GmC) 58 9
Galoo-Rack outcrop complex (GbB) 36 %

Plainfield sand (PoB) 5%

d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site? Average: 3 feet

e. Drainage status of project site soils:i/] Well Drained: 16 % of site
7] Moderately Well Drained: 1 % of site
7] Poorly Drained 83 % of site

f. Approximate proportion of proposed action site with slopes: [7] 0-10%: 100 % of site
[ 10-15%: % of site
[] 15% or greater: % of site

g- Are there any unique geologic features on the project site? O Yesk/INo
If Yes, describe:

h. Surface water features.

i. Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers, Oyesi/INo
ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site? [OYesk/INo
If Yes to either i or ii, continue. If No, skip to E.2.i.
iil. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any federal, OyeskINo

state or local agency?
iv. For each identified regulated wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information:

e Streams: Name Classification
®  Lakes or Ponds: Name Classification
®  Wetlands: Name Approximate Size
*  Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC)
v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation of NYS water quality-impaired Clyesk/INo

waterbodies?
If yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired:

i. Is the project site in a designated Floodway? [YesfZINo

j. Is the project site in the 100-year Floodplain? [dYesZINo

k. Is the project site in the 500-year Floodplain? YesZNo

;.f[s the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer? yes[INo
Yes:

i. Name of aquifer: Principal Aquifer

Page 11 of 13

-87-



m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:

squirrels small rodents

rabbit song birds

turkey possible white-tailed deer
n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community? [dyesi/INo
If Yes:

I. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation):

ii. Source(s) of description or evaluation:

iii. Extent of community/habitat;

e Currently: acres
*  Following completion of project as proposed: acres
e  Gain or loss (indicate + or -): acres
0. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal government or NYS as 1 Yes[JNo
endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?
If Yes:

i. Species and listing (endangered or threatened):

Indiana Bat Bat, USFWS listing endangered

Northern Long Eared Bat, USFWS listing threatened

p. Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by NYS as rare, or as a species of b1 ves[ INo
special concern?

If Yes:

i. Species and listing;
All NYS listed species, all threatened: Back's Sedge, Creeping Sedge, Golden Corydalis, James' Sedge, Prairie Dropseed, Rrairie Redroot, Prairie

Smoke, Riverweed, Twinleaf

q. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing? dYesiZINo
Ifyes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use:

E.3. Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site

a. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to [OYes[/INo
Agriculture and Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 3047
If Yes, provide county plus district name/number:

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present? [JYesi/INo
i, If Yes: acreage(s) on project site?

ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s):

¢. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National CYesi/INo
Natural Landmark?
If Yes:
i. Nature of the natural landmark: [ Biological Community [C] Geological Feature

ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent:

d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area? CYes/INo
If Yes:
i, CEA name:

ii. Basis for designation:

iii. Designating agency and date:

Page 12 of 13

-88-



e. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district O YesiZINo
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner of the NYS
fOfﬁce of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the State Register of Historic Places?
If Yes:
i. Nature of historic/archaeological resource: [JArchaeological Site [CIHistoric Building or District
ii. Name:
iii. Brief description of attributes on which listing is based:
Phase IA/IB survey has been conducted and no cullural resources have been identified within or adjacent to the project area.

f. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for KlYes[INo
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPQ) archaeological site inventory?

g. Have additional archaeological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site? [yesiZNo

If Yes:

i. Describe possible resource(s):

ii. Basis for identification:

h. Is the project site within fives miles of any officially designated and publicly accessible federal, state, or local OyesiZNo

scenic or aesthetic resource?
If Yes:
i, Identify resource;

ii. Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,
etc.):

iii. Distance between project and resource: miles.

i. Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers O Yesk/INo
Program 6 NYCRR 6667

If Yes:
i. Identify the name of the river and its designation:

ii. Is the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 6667 OYes[JNo

F. Additional Information
Attach any additional information which may be needed to clarify your project.

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus
any measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them. :Attachment A. Overview Map. Attachment B. IPAC report.

Attachment C, NYS Nature Explorer.

G. Verification
I certify that the information provided is true to the best of my knowledge.

Andrew {g,arrow Figia 19 Feb 2021

% Title Development Director

Applicant/Sponsor Name

Signature

PRINT FORM Page 13 of 13

-89-



EAF Mapper Summary Report Thursday, June 11, 2020 5:22 PM

Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper is a screening tool intended to assist
§ project sponsors and reviewing agencies In preparing an enviranmental
assessment form (EAF). Not all questions asked In the EAF are
1 answered by the EAF Mapper. Addilional infarmation on any EAF
| guestion can be obtained by consulling the EAF Workbooks. Although
the EAF Mapper provides the most up-to-dale digital data avallable to
y DEC, you may also need to contact local or other data sources In order
to obtain data not pravided by the Mapper. Digital data Is not a

ubstitute for agency determinations.

lanh eal
i el

\ o L

"I Toronta
) 9 hean widls
wis R oFodhester
1 FD‘““’",-- - ' .
; H___‘..-":_Efgv‘?md , Prevldence
Pennaylnl Quyfbes;a'g;”ﬁ,m& Garmin,

_Colurgpus. “PHEREIN oo, intamie, INCREMENT

Is = S . F,NRCan, Esri Japen, MET|,
cinnell o 8/l © WaEHiGbips tHeng Keng), Esri

B.i.i [Coastal or Waterfront Area] No

B.Lii [Local Waterfront Revitalization Area]  No

C.2.b. [Special Planning District] Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Workbook.

E.1.h [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Potential Contamination History] Workbook,

E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Listed] Workbook.

E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF

Environmental Site Remediation Database] Workbook.

E.1.h.iii [Within 2,000' of DEC Remediation No

Site]

E.2.g [Unigue Geologic Features] No

E.2.h.i [Surface Water Features] No

E.2.h.ii [Surface Water Features] Yes

E.2.h.iii [Surface Water Features] Yes - Digital mapping information on local and federal wetlands and
waterbodies is known to be incomplete. Refer to EAF Workbook.

E.2.h.v [Impaired Water Bodies] No

E.2.i. [Floodway] Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Workbook.

E.2,j. [100 Year Floodplain] Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Workboaok.

E.2.k. [500 Year Floodplain] Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Workbook.

E.2.l. [Aquifers] Yes

E.2.l. [Aquifer Names] Principal Aquifer

E.2.n. [Natural Communities] No

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Su-90-ry Report 3



E.2.0. [Endangered or Threatened Species] No

E.2.p. [Rare Plants or Animals] No
E.3.a. [Agricultural District] No
E.3.c. [National Natun:ar Landmark] No
E.3.d [Critical Environmental Area] No

E.3.e. [National or State Register of Historic  Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Places or State Eligible Sites] Workbook.

E.3.f. [Archeological Sites] Yes
E.3.i. [Designated River Corridor] No

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Sui-91 -y Report



PR -t o 199) 629 = You| | N .
— ‘FWOS SINIHIIY 000°} 0 052
" 195 I—————— sass peoiEyY —
00s°L} MHOAMSN 'ALNNOD NOSYI 43P el 2307
FTVIS AN0SEY
6L0Z/ERIEL JA1va dejy maInBAD B)IS peoy Jolepy ——
e § 103r0¥d ¥YI0S QYO STIIW SL7134 Remybiy ===
g M mﬂcﬂmFE_ —
dVLS1HOIT
1-L°Z 34N9I4 &

puaban




6/10/2020 IPaC: Explore Location

IPaC U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service

IPaC resource list

This report is an automatically generated list of species and other resources such as critical habitat
(collectively referred to as trust resources) under the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service's (USFWS)
jurisdiction that are known or expected to be on or near the project area referenced below. The list
may also include trust resources that occur outside of the project area, but that could potentially be
directly or indirectly affected by activities in the project area. However, determining the likelihood
and extent of effects a project may have on trust resources typically requires gathering additional
site-specific (e.g., vegetation/species surveys) and project-specific (e.g., magnitude and timing of
proposed activities) information.

Below is a summary of the project information you provided and contact information for the
USFWS office(s) with jurisdiction in the defined project area. Please read the introduction to each
section that follows (Endangered Species, Migratory Birds, USFWS Facilities, and NWI Wetlands) for
additional information applicable to the trust resources addressed in that section.

Location

Jefferson County, New York

Local office

New York Ecological Services Field Office

. (607) 753-9334
I (607) 753-9699

3817 Luker Road
Cortland, NY 13045-9385

http://www.fws.gov/northeast/nyfo/es/section7.htm

https://ecos.fws.goviipac/location/MV5SCMV4SN5SHJISD4S3F2FVPZQMA/reso- 9.3 - 111



6/10/2020 IPaC: Explore Location

Endangered species

This resource list is for informational purposes only and does not constitute an analysis of
project level impacts.

The primary information used to generate this list is the known or expected range of each species.
Additional areas of influence (AOI) for species are also considered. An AOI includes areas outside of
the species range if the species could be indirectly affected by activities in that area (e.g., placing a
dam upstream of a fish population, even if that fish does not occur at the dam site, may indirectly
impact the species by reducing or eliminating water flow downstream). Because species can move,
and site conditions can change, the species on this list are not guaranteed to be found on or near
the project area. To fully determine any potential effects to species, additional site-specific and
project-specific information is often required.

Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act requires Federal agencies to "request of the Secretary
information whether any species which is listed or proposed to be listed may be present in the area
of such proposed action" for any project that is conducted, permitted, funded, or licensed by any
Federal agency. A letter from the local office and a species list which fulfills this requirement can
only be obtained by requesting an official species list from either the Regulatory Review section in
IPaC (see directions below) or from the local field office directly.

For project evaluations that require USFWS concurrence/review, please return to the IPaC website
and request an official species list by doing the following:

1. Draw the project location and click CONTINUE.,
2. Click DEFINE PROJECT.

3. Log in (if directed to do so).

4. Provide a name and description for your project.
5. Click REQUEST SPECIES LIST.

Listed species’ and their critical habitats are managed by the Ecological Services Program of the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and the fisheries division of the National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA Fisheries?),

Species and critical habitats under the sole responsibility of NOAA Fisheries are not shown on this
list. Please contact NOAA Fisheries for species under their jurisdiction.

1. Species listed under the Endangered Species Act are threatened or endangered; IPaC also
shows species that are candidates, or proposed, for listing. See the listing status page for more

information.
2. NOAA Fisheries, also known as the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), is an office of the
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration within the Department of Commerce.

The following species are potentially affected by activities in this location:

Mammals
NAME STATUS

https:/fecos.fws.goviipac/ocation/MV5CMVASNSHJSD4S3F2FVPZQMAreso - 94 - 2111



6/10/2020 IPaC: Explore Location

Indiana Bat Myotis sodalis Endangered
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside
the critical habitat.
https://ecos fws.gov/ecp/species/5949

Northern Long-eared Bat Myotis septentrionalis Threatened
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.

https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/9045

Critical habitats

Potential effects to critical habitat(s) in this location must be analyzed along with the endangered
species themselves.

THERE ARE NO CRITICAL HABITATS AT THIS LOCATION.,

Migratory birds

Certain birds are protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act! and the Bald and Golden Eagle
Protection ActZ,

Any person or organization who plans or conducts activities that may result in impacts to migratory
birds, eagles, and their habitats should follow appropriate regulations and consider implementing
appropriate conservation measures, as described below.

1. The Migratory Birds Treaty Act of 1918.
2. The Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act of 1940.

Additional information can be found using the following links:

» Birds of Conservation Concern http.//www.fws.gov/birds/management/managed-species/
birds-of-conservation-concern.php

* Measures for avoiding and minimizing impacts to birds
http://www.fws.gov/birds/management/project-assessment-tools-and-guidance/
conservation-measures.php

e Nationwide conservation measures for birds

http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/pdf/management/nationwidestandardconservationmeasures.pdf

The birds listed below are birds of particular concern either because they occur on the USFWS Birds
of Conservation Concern (BCC) list or warrant special attention in your project location. To learn
more about the levels of concern for birds on your list and how this list is generated, see the FAQ
below. This is not a list of every bird you may find in this location, nor a guarantee that every bird
on this list will be found in your project area. To see exact locations of where birders and the
general public have sighted birds in and around your project area, visit the E-bird data mapping
tool (Tip: enter your location, desired date range and a species on your list). For projects that occur

https:fiecos.fws.goviipacflocation/MVSCMV4SNSHJ5D4S3F2FVPZOMAresc - 95 - 3M1



6/10/2020 IPaC: Explore Location

off the Atlantic Coast, additional maps and models detailing the relative occurrence and abundance
of bird species on your list are available. Links to additional information about Atlantic Coast birds,
and other important information about your migratory bird list, including how to properly interpret
and use your migratory bird report, can be found below.

For guidance on when to schedule activities or implement avoidance and minimization measures to
reduce impacts to migratory birds on your list, click on the PROBABILITY OF PRESENCE SUMMARY at
the top of your list to see when these birds are most likely to be present and breeding in your
project area.

NAME BREEDING SEASON (IF A
BREEDING SEASON IS INDICATED
FOR A BIRD ON YOUR LIST, THE
BIRD MAY BREED IN YOUR
PROJECT AREA SOMETIME WITHIN
THE TIMEFRAME SPECIFIED,
WHICH IS A VERY LIBERAL
ESTIMATE OF THE DATES INSIDE
WHICH THE BIRD BREEDS
ACROSS ITS ENTIRE RANGE.
"BREEDS ELSEWHERE" INDICATES
THAT THE BIRD DOES NOT LIKELY
'BREED IN YOUR PROJECT AREA.)

Bald Eagle Haliaeetus leucocephalus Breeds Dec 1 to Aug 31
This is not a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) in this area, but
warrants attention because of the Eagle Act or for potential
susceptibilities in offshore areas from certain types of development
or activities.

https://ecos.fws. goviecp/species/1626

Black-billed Cuckoo Coccyzus erythropthalmus Breeds May 15 to Oct 10
This is a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) throughout its range in
the continental USA and Alaska.
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/9399

Bobolink Dolichonyx oryzivorus Breeds May 20 to Jul 31
This is a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) throughout its range in
the continental USA and Alaska.

Canada Warbler Cardellina canadensis Breeds May 20 to Aug 10
This is a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) throughout its range in
the continental USA and Alaska.

Eastern Whip-poor-will Antrostomus vociferus Breeds May 1 to Aug 20
This is a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) throughout its range in
the continental USA and Alaska.

htps://ecos.fws.goviipac/location/MV5ECMV4SN5HI5D4S3F2FVPZOMAresc- 96 - 41



6/10/2020 |PaC: Explore Location

Golden Eagle Aquila chrysaetos Breeds Jan 1 to Aug 31
This is not a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) in this area, but
warrants attention because of the Eagle Act or for potential
susceptibilities in offshore areas from certain types of development
or activities.

https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/1680

Golden-winged Warbler Vermivora chrysoptera Breeds May 1 to Jul 20
This is a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) throughout its range in
the continental USA and Alaska.
https://ecos.fws. gov/ecp/species/8745

Henslow's Sparrow Ammodramus henslowii Breeds May 1 to Aug 31
This is a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) throughout its range in
the continental USA and Alaska.
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/3941

Prairie Warbler Dendroica discolor Breeds May 1 to Jul 31
This is a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) throughout its range in
the continental USA and Alaska.

Red-headed Woodpecker Melanerpes erythrocephalus Breeds May 10 to Sep 10
This is a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) throughout its range in
the continental USA and Alaska.

Snowy Owl Bubo scandiacus Breeds elsewhere
This is a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) throughout its range in
the continental USA and Alaska.

Wood Thrush' Hylocichla mustelina Breeds May 10 to Aug 31
This is a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) throughout its range in
the continental USA and Alaska.

Probability of Presence Summary

The graphs below provide our best understanding of when birds of concern are most likely to be
present in your project area. This information can be used to tailor and schedule your project
activities to avoid or minimize impacts to birds. Please make sure you read and understand the FAQ
“Proper Interpretation and Use of Your Migratory Bird Report” before using or attempting to
interpret this report.

Probability of Presence ( )

Each green bar represents the bird's relative probability of presence in the 10km grid cell(s) your
project overlaps during a particular week of the year. (A year is represented as 12 4-week months.)
A taller bar indicates a higher probability of species presence. The survey effort (see below) can be
used to establish a level of confidence in the presence score. One can have higher confidence in the
presence score if the corresponding survey effort is also high.

hitps:/ecos.fws.govipaciiocation/MVSCMV4SNSHJ5D4S3F2FVPZQMAresc- 9/ - 5M1



6/10/2020 IPaC: Explore Location
How is the probability of presence score calculated? The calculation is done in three steps:

1. The probability of presence for each week is calculated as the number of survey events in the
week where the species was detected divided by the total number of survey events for that
week. For example, if in week 12 there were 20 survey events and the Spotted Towhee was
found in 5 of them, the probability of presence of the Spotted Towhee in week 12 is 0.25.

2. To properly present the pattern of presence across the year, the relative probability of presence
is calculated. This is the probability of presence divided by the maximum probability of presence
across all weeks. For example, imagine the probability of presence in week 20 for the Spotted
Towhee is 0.05, and that the probability of presence at week 12 (0.25) is the maximum of any
week of the year. The relative probability of presence on week 12 is 0.25/0.25 = 1; at week 20 it
is 0.05/0.25 = 0.2.

3. The relative probability of presence calculated in the previous step undergoes a statistical
conversion so that all possible values fall between 0 and 10, inclusive. This is the probability of

presence score.

To see a bar's probability of presence score, simply hover your mouse cursor over the bar.

Breeding Season ( )
Yellow bars denote a very liberal estimate of the time-frame inside which the bird breeds across its

entire range. If there are no yellow bars shown for a bird, it does not breed in your project area.

Survey Effort (l)
Vertical black lines superimposed on probability of presence bars indicate the number of surveys

performed for that species in the 10km grid cell(s) your project area overlaps. The number of
surveys is expressed as a range, for example, 33 to 64 surveys.

To see a bar's survey effort range, simply hover your mouse cursor over the bar.

No Data ()
A week is marked as having no data if there were no survey events for that week.

Survey Timeframe
Surveys from only the last 10 years are used in order to ensure delivery of currently relevant
information. The exception to this is areas off the Atlantic coast, where bird returns are based on all

years of available data, since data in these areas is currently much more sparse.

' probability of presence  breeding season | survey effort —no data
SPECIES JAN FEB MAR  APR MAY  JUN JuL AUG SEP ocT NOV  DEC

BaldEagIe s o ..‘._._..____p.. .||| (I IAA, PR B At b

hitps:/fecos.fws.govfipac/location/MV5CMV4SNSHISD4S3F2FVPZQMA/reso - 98 - 6/11



6/10/2020

Black-billed
Cuckoo

Bobolink
BCC Rangewide
{CON) (This is a Bird

Canada Warbler
BCCR ngewide

Eastern Whip-
poor-will

BCC Rangewlde
(CON) (This is a Bird

Golden Eagle
Non-BCC Vulnerable
(Th

activities,)

Golden-winged

Warbler
BCC Rangewide
is is a Bird

Henslow's Sparrow _
BCC Rangewide

IPaC: Explore Location

e mmmm e e e e e
i s e i |‘| | |'.|.;'.' I .:_..
i i kAT I"?'_ NI I‘ e
et RSS! 1 1 (ST (O N
._._.____..|'.,.‘.a‘|| s TR el
= e = P e e =
T et FRTR T | SO (N S B U A

hitps:/fecos.fws.govlipac/location/MV5CMV4SNSHISD4S3F 2FVPZQMA/reso- 99 -

7M



6/10/2020 IPaC: Explore Location

Prairie Warbler

...A__,_,_,__|....]1||||‘.|...-_.....|.....A.__._._._._

Red-headed SR ——— | W | | T | e R R
Woodpecker i '
BCC Rangewide

CSICES) AT O S A ST e .”! O T e

Wood Thrush
BCC Rangewid
ON is i

e R e e .[|-:| HI T |

Tell me more about conservation measures | can implement to avoid or minimize impacts to migratory birds.

Nationwide Conservation Measures describes measures that can help avoid and minimize impacts to all birds at

any location year round. Implementation of these measures is particularly important when birds are most likely to
occur in the project area. When birds may be breeding in the area, identifying the locations of any active nests and
avoiding their destruction is a very helpful impact minimization measure. To see when birds are most likely to
occur and be breeding in your project area, view the Probability of Presence Summary. Additional measures
and/or permits may be advisable depending on the type of activity you are conducting and the type of
infrastructure or bird species present on your project site.

What does IPaC use to generate the migratory birds potentially occurring in my specified location?

The Migratory Bird Resource List is comprised of USFWS Birds of Conservation Concern (BCC) and other species
that may warrant special attention in your project location.

The migratory bird list generated for your project is derived from data provided by the Avian Knowledge Network
(AKN). The AKN data is based on a growing collection of survey, banding, and citizen science datasets and is
queried and filtered to return a list of those birds reported as occurring in the 10km grid cell(s) which your project
intersects, and that have been identified as warranting special attention because they are a BCC species in that
area, an eagle (Eagle Act requirements may apply), or a species that has a particular vulnerability to offshore

activities or development.

Again, the Migratory Bird Resource list includes only a subset of birds that may occur in your project area. It is not
representative of all birds that may occur in your project area. To get a list of all birds potentially present in your

project area, please visit the AKN Phenology Tool.

https://ecos. fws.goviipac/location/MV5CMV4SNSHISD4S3F2FVPZaMA/res - 1 00 - 8/11



6/10/2020 IPaC: Explore Location

What does IPaC use to generate the probability of presence graphs for the migratory birds potentially
occurring in my specified location?

The probability of presence graphs associated with your migratory bird list are based on data provided by the
Avian Knowledge Network (AKN). This data is derived from a growing collection of survey, banding, and citizen

science datasets .
Probability of presence data is continuously being updated as new and better information becomes available. To

learn more about how the probability of presence graphs are produced and how to interpret them, go the
Probability of Presence Summary and then click on the "Tell me about these graphs" link.

How do | know if a bird is breeding, wintering, migrating or present year-round in my project area?

To see what part of a particular bird's range your project area falls within (i.e. breeding, wintering, migrating or
year-round), you may refer to the following resources: The Cornell Lab of Ornithology All About Birds Bird Guide,
or (if you are unsuccessful in locating the bird of interest there), the Cornell Lab of Ornithology Neotropical Birds
guide. If a bird on your migratory bird species list has a breeding season associated with it, if that bird does occur
in your project area, there may be nests present at some point within the timeframe specified. If "Breeds
elsewhere" is indicated, then the bird likely does not breed in your project area.

What are the levels of concern for migratory birds?

Migratory birds delivered through IPaC fall into the following distinct categories of concern:

1. "BCC Rangewide" birds are Birds of Conservation Concern (BCC) that are of concern throughout their range
anywhere within the USA (including Hawaii, the Pacific Islands, Puerto Rico, and the Virgin Islands);

2. "BCC - BCR" birds are BCCs that are of concern only in particular Bird Conservation Regions (BCRs) in the
continental USA; and

3. "Non-BCC - Vulnerable" birds are not BCC species in your project area, but appear on your list either because
of the Eagle Act requirements (for eagles) or (for non-eagles) potential susceptibilities in offshore areas from
certain types of development or activities (e.g. offshore energy development or longline fishing).

Although it is important to try to avoid and minimize impacts to all birds, efforts should be made, in particular, to
avoid and minimize impacts to the birds on this list, especially eagles and BCC species of rangewide concern. For
more information on conservation measures you can implement to help avoid and minimize migratory bird
impacts and requirements for eagles, please see the FAQs for these topics.

Details about birds that are potentially affected by offshore projects

For additional details about the relative occurrence and abundance of both individual bird species and groups of
bird species within your project area off the Atlantic Coast, please visit the Northeast Ocean Data Portal. The Portal
also offers data and information about other taxa besides birds that may be helpful to you in your project review.
Alternately, you may download the bird model results files underlying the portal maps through the NOAA NCCOS

Integrative Statistical Modeling and Predictive Mapping of Marine Bird Distributions and Abundance on the
Atlantic Quter Continental Shelf project webpage.

Bird tracking data can also provide additional details about occurrence and habitat use throughout the year,
including migration. Models relying on survey data may not include this information. For additional information on

marine bird tracking data, see the Diving Bird Study and the nanotag studies or contact Caleb Spiegel or Pam
Loring.

What if | have eagles on my list?

If your project has the potential to disturb or kill eagles, you may need to gbtain a permit to avoid violating the
Eagle Act should such impacts occur.

https:/lecos.fws govipac/ocation/MV5CMV4SNSHISD4S3F2FVPZQMAYres - 101 - 9/11



6/10/2020 IPaC: Explore Location
Proper Interpretation and Use of Your Migratory Bird Report

The migratory bird list generated is not a list of all birds in your project area, only a subset of birds of priority
concern. To learn more about how your list is generated, and see options for identifying what other birds may be
in your project area, please see the FAQ "What does IPaC use to generate the migratory birds potentially occurring
in my specified location”. Please be aware this report provides the “probability of presence” of birds within the 10
km grid cell(s) that overlap your project; not your exact project footprint. On the graphs provided, please also look
carefully at the survey effort (indicated by the black vertical bar) and for the existence of the “no data” indicator (a
red horizontal bar). A high survey effort is the key component. If the survey effort is high, then the probability of
presence score can be viewed as more dependable. In contrast, a low survey effort bar or no data bar means a
lack of data and, therefore, a lack of certainty about presence of the species. This list is not perfect; it is simply a
starting point for identifying what birds of concern have the potential to be in your project area, when they might
be there, and if they might be breeding (which means nests might be present). The list helps you know what to
look for to confirm presence, and helps guide you in knowing when to implement conservation measures to avoid
or minimize potential impacts from your project activities, should presence be confirmed. To learn more about
conservation measures, visit the FAQ “Tell me about conservation measures | can implement to avoid or minimize
impacts to migratory birds” at the bottom of your migratory bird trust resources page.

Facilities

National Wildlife Refuge lands

Any activity proposed on lands managed by the National Wildlife Refuge system must undergo a
'‘Compatibility Determination' conducted by the Refuge. Please contact the individual Refuges to

discuss any questions or concerns.

THERE ARE NO REFUGE LANDS AT THIS LOCATION,

Fish hatcheries

THERE ARE NO FISH HATCHERIES AT THIS LOCATION.

Wetlands in the National Wetlands Inventory

Impacts to NWI wetlands and other aquatic habitats may be subject to regulation under Section
404 of the Clean Water Act, or other State/Federal statutes.

For more information please contact the Regulatory Program of the local U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers District.

THERE ARE NO KNOWN WETLANDS AT THIS LOCATION.

Data limitations

https:/fecos.fws.goviipac/iocation/MVSCMV4SN5HISD4S3F2FVPZOMA/res- 1 (7 - 10/11



6/10/2020 IPaC: Explore Location

The Service's objective of mapping wetlands and deepwater habitats is to produce reconnaissance level
information on the location, type and size of these resources. The maps are prepared from the analysis of high
altitude imagery. Wetlands are identified based on vegetation, visible hydrology and geography. A margin of error
is inherent in the use of imagery, thus, detailed on-the-ground inspection of any particular site may result in
revision of the wetland boundaries or classification established through image analysis.

The accuracy of image interpretation depends on the quality of the imagery, the experience of the image analysts,
the amount and quality of the collateral data and the amount of ground truth verification work conducted.
Metadata should be consulted to determine the date of the source imagery used and any mapping problems.

Wetlands or other mapped features may have changed since the date of the imagery or field work. There may be
occasional differences in polygon boundaries or classifications between the information depicted on the map and

the actual conditions on site.

Data exclusions

Certain wetland habitats are excluded from the National mapping program because of the limitations of aerial
imagery as the primary data source used to detect wetlands. These habitats include seagrasses or submerged
aquatic vegetation that are found in the intertidal and subtidal zones of estuaries and nearshore coastal waters.
Some deepwater reef communities (coral or tuberficid worm reefs) have also been excluded from the inventory.

These habitats, because of their depth, go undetected by aerial imagery.

Data precautions

Federal, state, and local regulatory agencies with jurisdiction over wetlands may define and describe wetlands in a
different manner than that used in this inventory. There is no attempt, in either the design or products of this
inventory, to define the limits of proprietary jurisdiction of any Federal, state, or local government or to establish
the geographical scope of the regulatory programs of government agencies. Persons intending to engage in
activities involving modifications within or adjacent to wetland areas should seek the advice of appropriate federal,
state, or local agencies concerning specified agency regulatory programs and proprietary jurisdictions that may
affect such activities.

hitps:/ecos.fws goviipac/location/MV5CMV4SNSHISD4S3F2FVPZOMA/res- 1 ()3 - 1M



http://www.dec.ny.gov/natureexplarer/

New York Nature Explorer
County Results Report

Criteria: County: Jefferson

Animal: Mammals

Recently Special Concemn

Eastern Small-footed Myotis  Bats Confirmed 2010 5183 G4
Myoris leibii

Indiana Bat Bats Recently 2011 Endangered Endangered 51 G2

Confirmed g 9
Myotis sodalis
b, Recently

Northern Long-eared Bat Bats Confirmed 2013 Threatened Threatened S81 G1G2
Myetis septentrionalis

Animal: Birds

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation Page 1of 4

12/4/20 5:06 PM
-104-



Hé;'vks, Fia_lcdns. Eagies. '

hecenfljl '

x‘pl

=)

Bald Eagle Vultures Confirmed 2017 Threatened S5283B,52NG5
Haliaeetus leucocephalis
Gulls, Terns, Plovers, Recently
Black Tern Shorebirds Confirmed 2018 Endangered s2B G4
Chlidonias niger
Gulls, Terns, Plovers, Recently
Commoen Tern Shorabirds Confirmed 2000 Threatened 538 G5
Sterna hirundo
i Recently
Henslow's Sparrow Sparrows and Towhees Confirmad 2018 Threatened 538 G4
Ammodramus henslowii
Herons, Bitterns, Egrets, Recently
Least Bittern Pelicans Confirmad 2018 Threatened S3B,SIN G5
Ixobrychus exilis
Loggerhead Shrike Shrikes g:ﬁ;nm"g d 1984 Endangered S1B G4
Lanius ludovicianus
. Hawks, Falcons, Eagles, Recently
Northern Harrier Villiones o o 2017 Threatened S3B,S3N G5
Circus hudsonius
Hawks, Falcons, Eagles, Recently
Peregrine Falcon Vultures Confirmed 2015 Endangered 538 G4
Falco peregrinus
" Recently
Pied-billed Grebe Grebes Gonfirmad 2018 Threatened 83B,S1N G5
Podilymbus pediceps
; Gulls, Terns, Plovers, Recently Endangered/Thr
Piping Plover Shorebirds Confimed 2015 Endangered  ooood S3B G3
Charadrius melodus
Recently
Sedge Wren Wrens Cidtmed 2014 Threatened s3B G5
Cistothorus plarensis
Recentt
Short-earad Owl Owls Co nﬂrm);d 2018 Endangered 52 G5
Asio flammeus
Gulls, Terns, Plovers, Recently
Upland Sandpiper SHorabirtls Confirmead 2016 Threatened $3B G5
Bartramia longicanda
Animal: Reptiles
T Recently
Blanding's Turtle Turtles Canfirmed 2011 Threatened 5253 G4
Emydoidea blandingii
Recently Spacial Concern
Spiny Softshell Turtles Gontimsd 1990 5253 G5
Apulone spinifera
Animal: Fish
New York State Department of Environmental Conservation Page 2 of 4

12/4/20 5:06 PM
-105-



New York Nature Explorer

IEHEY T

e
=

Sturgeons and Paddlefish Recently' 2012 Thraal-ene d : 5233 G3G4

Lake St
e Confirmed
Acipenser fulvescens
Historically
Maa
neye Mooneyes Corfirmad 1932 Threatened 7 G5
Hiodon tergisus
: Minnows, Shiners, Recently
Pugnose Shiner Suckers Conlirved 2004 Endangered 5182 G3

Notropis anogenus

Animal: Butterflies and Moths

Karner Blue Butterflies and Skippers g:;:':{:‘:g Endangered  Endangered 1 G5T2

Plebejus melissa samuelis

Animal: Mayflies

Tomah Mayfly Mayflies ggﬁ;m%d 2012 Endangered 51 G2G3

Siphlonisca aerodromia

Animal: Animal Assemblages

Bat Colony Animal Assemblages g:ﬁ:?nﬁid 2005 SNRN GNR

Bar Colony

Plant: Flowering Plants

Bird's Eye Primrosa Other Flowering Plants gg::m% d 2007 Threatened s2 G5

Prinuia mistassinica

Broad-lipped Twayblade Orchids il 1927 Endangered s1 Gs
Neortia convallarioides

Dragon's Mouth Orchid Orchids i A 1994 Threatened s2 as
Arethusa bulbosa

Michigan Lily Other Flowering Plants gg::?r:!é d 1997 Endangered 51 G5
Lilium michiganense

Historically

Puttyroot Orchids Carfrmad Endangered 51 G5

Aplectrion hyemale
e i " Flecenlly

Ram's-head Lady's Slipper ~ Orchids Confirmed 2007 Threatened 52 G3

Cypripedium arietimun
. Recent

Scarlet Indian-paintbrush Other Flowering Plants "¢ n"h;d 1997 Endangered s1 G5
Castilleja coccinea

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation Page 3of 4

12/4/20 5:06 PM
-106-



New York Nature Expl

orer
llgiolilo} e Hion B

{olifo)e  214a]

Historically

Striped Coralroot Orchids Cenfirned Endangered 51 G5T5
Corallorhiza striata var,
siriata

Yellow Mountain Saxifrage = Other Flowering Plants gmp;’; d 2007 Threatened 52 G5

Saxifraga aizoides

This list only includes records from the databases of the NY Natural Heritage Program, the second NYS Breeding Bird Atlas
Project, and the NY Amphibian and Reptile Atlas Project. This list is not a definitive statement about the presence or absence
of all plants and animals, including rare or state-listed species, or of all significant natural communities.

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation Page 4 of 4

12/4/20 5:06 PM
-107-



Apency Use Only [If applicable]

Full Environmental Assessment Form Project:

Date

Part 2 - Identification of Potential Project Impacts

Part 2 is to be completed by the lead agency. Part 2 is designed to help the lead agency inventory all potential resources that could
be affected by a proposed project or action. We recognize that the lead agency's reviewer(s) will not necessarily be environmental
" -ofessionals. So, the questions are designed to walk a reviewer through the assessment process by providing a series of questions that
an be answered using the information found in Part 1. To further assist the lead agency in completing Part 2, the form identifies the
most relevant questions in Part 1 that will provide the information needed to answer the Part 2 question, When Part 2 is completed, the
lead agency will have identified the relevant environmental areas that may be impacted by the proposed activity.

If the lead agency is a state agency and the action is in any Coastal Area, complete the Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding
with this assessment.

Tips for completing Part 2:

.

Review all of the information provided in Part 1,
Review any application, maps, supporting materials and the Full EAF Workbook.
Answer each of the 18 questions in Part 2.
If you answer “Yes” to a numbered question, please complete all the questions that follow in that section.
If you answer “No” to a numbered question, move on to the next numbered question.
Check appropriate column to indicate the anticipated size of the impact.
Proposed projects that would exceed a numeric threshold contained in a question should result in the reviewing agency
checking the box “Moderate to large impact may occur.”
The reviewer is not expected to be an expert in environmental analysis,
If you are not sure or undecided about the size of an impact, it may help to review the sub-questions for the general
question and consult the workbook.
When answering a question consider all components of the proposed activity, that is, the "whole action”.
Consider the possibility for long-term and cumulative impacts as well as direct impacts.
Answer the question in a reasonable manner considering the scale and context of the project.

1. Impacton Land
Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of,
the land surface of the proposed site. (See Part 1. D.1)
If "Yes”, answer questions a - j. If "No", move on to Section 2,

[INo []yEs

-108-

Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to water tableis | d
(X O
less than 3 feet.
b, The proposed action may involve construction on slopes of 15% or greater. E2f JE[ (Il
¢. The proposed action may involve construction on land where bedrock is exposed, or | E2a ] Iﬁ
generally within 5 feet of existing ground surface,
d. The proposed action may involve the excavation and removal of more than 1,000 tons | D2a m O
of natural material,
e. The proposed action may involve construction that continues for more than one year | Dle E O
or in multiple phases,
f. The proposed action may result in increased erosion, whether from physical D2e,D2q JZI O
disturbance or vegetation removal (including from treatment by herbicides).
g. The proposed action is, or may be, located within a Coastal Erosion hazard area. Bli ﬂ |
h. Other impacts: Vil O
Page 1 of 10
FEAF 2019




2. Impact on Geological Features

The proposed action may result in the modification or destruction of, or inhibit

access to, any unique or unusual land forms on the site (e.g., cliffs, dunes, ﬁNO CJyes
minerals, fossils, caves). (See Part 1. E.2.g)
If “Yes ", answer questions a - ¢. If "No”, move on to Section 3.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact | impact may
may occur occur
a. Identify the specific land form(s) attached: BE2g O O
b. The proposed action may affect or is adjacent to a geological feature listed as a E3c d O
registered National Natural Landmark,
Specific feature:
c. Other impacts: O O
3. Impacts on Surface Water
The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other surface water [2]3:0 [JYES
bodies (e.g., streams, rivers, ponds or lakes). (See Part 1. D.2, E.2.h)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - 1. If “"No”, move on to Section 4.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to laxrge
Question(s) impact | impact may
may gccur occur
. The proposed action may create a new water body, D2b, D1h O a
b. The proposed action may result in an increase or decrease of over 10% or more thana | 2b O .
10 acre increase or decrease in the surface area of any body of water.
c. The proposed action may involve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material D2a O O
from a wetland or water body.
d. The proposed action may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or E2h O -
tidal wetland, or in the bed or banks of any other water body.
e. The proposed action may create turbidity in a waterbody, either from upland erosion, | D2a, D2h O (|
runoff or by disturbing bottom sediments.
f. The proposed action may include construction of one or more intake(s) for withdrawal | D2c O O
of water from surface water.
£. The proposed action may include construction of one ot more outfall(s) for discharge | D2d O |
of wastewater to surface water(s).
. The proposed action may cause soil erosion, or otherwise create a source of D2e O O
stormwater discharge that may lead to siltation or other degradation of receiving
water bodies,
1. The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or EZh | O
downstream of the site of the proposed action.
j. The proposed action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or D2q, E2h Il ]
around any water body.
The proposed action may require the construction of new, or expansion of existing, Dla, D2d | O
|- wastewater treatment facilities.

Page 2 of 10

~-109-




L. Other impacts:

,..1..4. Impact on groundwater
The proposed action may result in new or additional use of ground watet, ot

(See Part 1, D.2.a, D.2.c, D.2.d, D.2.p, D.2.q, D.2.t)
If “Yes", answer questions a - h. If “No", move on to Section 5.

EINO

may have the potential to introduce contaminants to ground water or an aquifer.

[vEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action may require new water supply wells, or create additional demand | D2c ] O
on supplies from existing water supply wells,

b. Water supply demand from the proposed action may exceed safe and sustainable D2c O O
withdrawal capacity rate of the local supply or aquifer.
Cite Source:

¢. The proposed action may allow or result in residential uses in areas without water and | Dla, D2¢ a O
sewer services,

d. The proposed action may include or require wastewater discharged to groundwater, D2d, E21 O O

e. The proposed action may result in the construction of water supply wells in locations | D2c, E1f, O [l
where groundwater is, or is suspected to be, contaminated, Elg Elh

f. The proposed action may require the bulk storage of petroleum or chemical products | D2p, E21 O O
over ground water or an aquifer,
The proposed action may involve the commercial application of pesticides within 100 | E2h, D2q, O O
feet of potable drinking water ot irrigation sources, E2], D2c

h. Other impacts: O O

5. Impact on Flooding
The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to flooding.
(See Part 1. E.2)

If "Yes ", answer questions a - g. If "No", move on to Section 6.

KNo

ClyEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may oceur oceur
a. The proposed action may result in development in a designated floodway, B2i O O
b. The proposed action may result in development within a 100 year floodplain. E2j O O
¢. The proposed action may result in development within a 500 year floodplain. E2k | O
d. The proposed action may result in, or require, modification of existing drainage D2b, D2e O O
patterns.
e. The proposed action may change flood water flows that contribute to flooding, D2b, E2i,
E2j, E2k
... If there is a dam located on the site of the proposed action, is the dam in need of repair, | Ele

I_ur upgrade?

Page 3 of 10

-110-




. Other impacts:
B 1TIpac = 0
l 6. Impacts on Air
" The proposed action may include a state regulated air emission source. iﬁyo [C]YES
(See Part 1. D.2.f, D.2.h, D.2.g)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - £ If “No”, move on to Section 7.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
mnay occur gccur
a. If the proposed action requires federal or state air emission permits, the action may
also emit one or more greenhouse gases at or above the following levels:
i. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide (CO;) D2g O O
il. More than 3.5 tons/year of nitrous oxide (I;0) D2g O O
iii. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon equivalent of perfluorocarbons (PFCs) Dig O O
iv. More than ,045 tons/year of sulfur hexafluoride (SFs) D2g O E
v. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide equivalent of Dig .o
hydrochloreflourocarbons (HFCs) emissions
vi. 43 tons/year or more of methane D2h a O
b. The proposed action may generate 10 tons/year or more of any one designated D2g O O
hazardous air pollutant, or 25 tons/year or more of any combination of such hazardous
air pollutants.
c. The proposed action may require a state air registration, or may produce an emissions D2f, D2g O O
rate of total contaminants that may exceed 5 lbs. per hour, or may include a heat
source capable of producing more than 10 million BTU's per hour.
d. The proposed action may reach 50% of any of the thresholds in “a” through “c”, D2g | O
above.
.. The proposed action may result in the combustion or thermal treatment of more than 1 | D2s O O
ton of refuse per hour,
f. Other impacts: O O

7. Impact on Plants and Animals

I "Yes”, answer questions a - J. If “No”, move on to Section 8.

The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna. (See Part 1. E.2. m.-q.)

'ENO

[CJYEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to large
Question(s) impaet | impactmay
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may cause reduction in population or loss of individuals of any E20 O O
threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the Federal
government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
b. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by | E20 O O
any rare, threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the federal
government,
c. The proposed action may cause reduction in population, or loss of individuals, of any | E2p O O
gpecies of special concern or conservation need, as listed by New York State or the
Federal government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2p O O
. _.- any species of special concern and conservation need, as listed by New York State or
[- the Federal government.

Page 4 of 10

-111-




e. The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered National Natural Ele O |
Landmarlk to support the biological community it was established to protect.
f. The proposed action may result in the removal of, or ground disturbance in, any E2n O O
| portion of a designated significant natural community.
" Source:
g. The proposed action may substantially interfere with nesting/breeding, foraging, or E2m = O
over-wintering habitat for the predominant species that occupy or use the project site.
h, The proposed action requires the conversion of more than 10 acres of forest, Elb O O
grassland or any other regionally or locally important habitat.
Habitat type & information source:
i. Proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects, only) involves use of | D2q O O
herbicides or pesticides,
j. Other impacts: O O

8. Impact on Agricultural Resources

The proposed action may impact agricultural resources. (See Part 1. E.3.a. and b.)

Ko

[JyEs

If “Yes”, answer guestions a - h. If "No”, move on to Section 9.

Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to large
Question(s) impact | impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action may impact soil classified within soil group 1 through 4 of the E2c, E3b O O
NYS Land Classification System.
The proposed action may sever, cross or otherwise limit access to agricultural land Ela, Elb O O
(includes cropland, hayfields, pasture, vineyard, orchard, etc).

c. The proposed action may result in the excavation or compaction of the soil profile of | E3b O O
active agricultural land.,

d. The proposed action may irreversibly convert agricultural land to non-agricultural Elb, E3a O O
uses, either more than 2,5 acres if located in an Agricultural District, or more than 10
acres if not within an Agricultural District,

e. The proposed action way disrupt or prevent installation of an agricultural land Ela, Elb 0 O
management system,

f. The proposed action may result, directly or indirectly, in increased development C2e, C3, O O
potential or pressure on farmland, D2¢, D2d

g. The proposed project is not consistent with the adopted municipal Fanmland Clc O O
FProtection Plan,

h. Other impacts: O O

Page 5 0f 10

-11&-




Impact on Aesthetic Resources
The land use of the proposed action are obviously different from, or are in

sharp contrast to, current land use patterns between the proposed project and

a scenic or aesthetic resource. (Part 1. E.l1.a, E.1.b, E.3.h)
If "Yes", answer questions a - g. If “"No”, go to Section 10.

[Myo

[C]vEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may oceur occur
a. Proposed action may be visible from any officially designated federal, state, or local | E3h O O
scenic or aesthetic resource,
b. The proposed action may result in the obstruction, elimination or significant E3h, C2b O O
screening of one or more officially designated scenic views.
c¢. The proposed action may be visible from publicly accessible vantage points: E3h
i. Seasonally (e.g., screened by summer foliage, but visible during other seasons) O O
ii. Year round O O
d. The situation or activity in which viewers are engaged while viewing the proposed E3h
action is: E2q
i. Routine travel by residents, including travel to and from work 4 0 O
ii. Recreational or tourism based activities Elc O O
e. The proposed action may cause a diminishment of the public enjoyment and E3h | O
appreciation of the designated aesthetic resource.
f. There are similar projects visible within the following distance of the proposed Dla, Ela, O O
project; DIf, Dlg
0-1/2 mile
Y =3 mile
3-5 mile
5+ mile
g. Other impacts: O O

10. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources
The proposed action may oceur in or adjacent to a historic or archaeological
resource. {Part 1. E3.e, f and g.)
If "Yes”, answer questions a - e. If "No”, go to Section 11.

[Swo

[Jves

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact | impact may
may occur QCCIL
a. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, ot substantially contiguous
to, any buildings, archaeological site or district which is listed on the National or Ele O O
State Register of Historical Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner
of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for
listing on the State Register of Historic Flaces.
b, The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3f O O
to, an area designated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the N'Y State Historic
Preservation Office (SHPO) archagological site inventory.
¢, The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3g O O
to, an archaeological site not included on the NY SHPO inventory.
Source;

Page 6 of 10

-113-




d. Other impacts: O O
If any of the above (a-d) are answered “Moderate to large impact may
| €. oceur™, continue with the following questions to help support conclusions in Part 3:
i.  The proposed action may result in the destruction or alteration of all or part E3e, Elg, | |
of the site or property. E3f
ii. The proposed action may result in the alteration of the property’s setting or E3e, E3f, O (]
integrity. E3g, Ela,
Elb
iii. The proposed action may result in the introduction of visual elements which [ E3e, E3f, 1 O
are out of character with the site or property, or may alter its setting, E3g, E3h,
C2,C3

11,

Impact on Open Space and Recreation

The proposed action may result in a loss of recreational opportunities or a
reduction of an open space resource as designated in any adopted
municipal open space plan.

(See Part 1. C.2.c, E.l.c., E2.q.)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If "No”, go to Section 12,

[Xno | []ves

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in an impairment of natural functions, or “ecosystem | D2e, EIb O |
services”, provided by an undeveloped area, including but not limited to stormwater | E2h,
storage, nutrient cycling, wildlife habitat. E2m, E2o,
E2Zn, E2p
The proposed action may result in the loss of a current or future recreational resource. | C2a, Elc, O O
C2c, E2q
¢. The proposed action may eliminate open space or recreational resource in an area C2a, C2¢ O O
with few such resources, Elc, E2q
d. The proposed action may result in loss of an area now used informally by the C2c,Elc O |
community as an open Space resource.
e. Other impacts: .| O

12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas

The proposed action may be located within or adjacent to a critical
environmental area (CEA). (See Part 1. BE.3.d)

If "Yes”, answer questions a - ¢. If "Ne", go to Section 13.

B no

[]ves

Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may oceur occur

a. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quantity of the resource or E3d = O
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.

b. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quality of the resource or E3d O £l
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.

- Other impacts: O O

e

Page 7 of 10

-114-




13, Impact on Transportation
The proposed action may result in a change to existing transportation systems,

(See Pat 1, D.2.,)
If "Yes", answer questions a - £ If "No", go to Section 14,

Xvo

[]ves

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact | impact may
may gccur occur
a. Projected traffic increase may exceed capacity of existing road network. D2j [ [
b. The proposed action may result in the construction of paved parking area for 500 or | D2j a O
more vehicles.
c. The proposed action will degrade existing transit access. D2j [ O
d. The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle accommodations. D2j O O
©. The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people or goods. D2j O |
f. Other impacts: 0 0O

14. Impact on Energy
The proposed action may cause an increase in the use of any form of energy.
(See Part 1. D.2.k)
If "Yes”, answer questions a-e. If "No”, go to Section 15.

R

[Jves

Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact | impact may
may occur ocecur
The proposed action will require a new, or an upgrade to an existing, substation. D2k O O
b. The proposed action will require the creation or extension of an energy transmission | DI1f; O O
or supply system to serve more than 50 single or two-family residences or to servea | Dig, D2k
commercial or industrial use.
¢. The proposed action may utilize more than 2,500 MWhss per year of electricity. D2k O O
d. The proposed action may involve heating and/or cooling of more than 100,000 square | Dlg [ O
feet of building area when completed.
e. Other Impacts: 0 0

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light

The proposed action may result in an increase in noise, odors, or outdoor lighting. END

(See Part 1. D.2.m., n., and 0.)
If "Yes", answer questions a - [, If "No", go to Section 16.

[ ]yEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part] small to Iarge
Question(s) impaet | impact may
may occur pccur
a. The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local DZm O O
regulation.
b. The proposed action may result in blasting within 1,500 feet of any residence, D2m, E1d O
hospital, school, licensed day care center, or nursing home.
The proposed action may result in routine odors for more than one hour per day. D2o |

Page 8 of 10

=115+




d. The proposed action may result in light shining onto adjoining properties. D2n O O
e. The proposed action may result in lighting creating sky-glow brighter than existing D2n, Ela O O
area conditions.
"¢ Other impacts: O O
16. Impact on Human ealth
The proposed action may have an impact on human health from exposure MNO |:| YES
to new or existing sources of contaminants. (See Part 1.D.2.q,, E.1.d. f g. and h.))
If “Yes" answer questions a - m. If "No”, go to Section 17.
Relevant No,or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impatct impact may
may cecur oceur
a. The proposed action is located within 1500 feet of a school, hospital, licensed day Eld | O
care center, proup home, nursing home or retirement community.
b. The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation. Elg,Elh O O
¢. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site | Elg, Elh O O
remediation on, or adjacent to, the site of the proposed action.
d. The site of the action is subject to an instituticnal control limiting the use of the Elg, Elh O O
property (e.g., easement or deed restriction).
e. The proposed action may affect institutional control measures that were put in place | Elg, Elh O O
to ensure that the site remains protective of the environment and human health.
f. The proposed action has adequate control measures in place to ensure that future D2t | O
generation, treatment and/or disposal of hazardous wastes will be protective of the
" environment and human health.
g. The proposed action involves construction or modification of a solid waste D2q, E1f O O
management facility.
h. The proposed action may result in the unearthing of solid or hazardous waste. D2q, EIf O O
i. The proposed action may result in an increase in the rate of disposal, or processing, of | D2r, D2s k] O
solid waste,
j. The proposed action may result in excavation or other disturbance within 2000 feet of | ELf, Elg O O
a site used for the disposal of solid or hazardous waste. Elh
k. The proposed action may result in the migration of explosive gases from a landfill Elf, Elg O O
site to adjacent off site structures,
L. The proposed action may result in the release of contaminated leachate from the D2s, E1f] O O
project site, D2r
m. Other impacts; 0 0

Page 9 of 10 -

~116~




17. Consistency with Community Plans
The proposed action is not consistent with adopted land use plans.
(See Part 1. C.1,C.2.and C.3.)

If “Yes", answer questions a - h. If “No”, go to Section 18.

Mo

[ves

Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action’s land use components may be different from, or in sharp C2,C3,Dla O O
contrast to, current surrounding land use pattern(s). Ela, E1b

b. The proposed action will cause the permanent population of the city, town or village | C2 O O
in which the project is located to grow by more than 5%.

c. The proposed action is inconsistent with local land use plans or zoning regulations. C2,C2,C3 O O

d. The proposed action is inconsistent with any County plans, or other regional land use | C2, C2 | O
plans.

e. The proposed action may cause a change in the density of development that is not C3, Dlg, O O
supported by existing infrastructure or is distant from existing infrastructure. Dild, D1f,

D1d, Elb

f. The proposed action is located in an area characterized by low density development C4, D2¢, D2d O O
that will require new or expanded public infrastructure. D2j

g. The proposed action may induce secondary development impacts (e.g., residential or | C2a O O
commercial development not included in the proposed action)

h. Other: O O

8. Consistency with Community Character
The proposed project is inconsistent with the existing community character,
(See Part 1. C.2, C.3, D.2, E.3)
If "Yes”, answer questions a - g, If "No”, proceed to Part 3.

YE}\TO

[ Jves

Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may pecur oceur
a. The proposed action may replace or eliminate existing facilities, structures, or areas Ele, E3f, E3g a O
of historic importance to the community.
b, The proposed action may create a demand for additional community services (e.g, C4 O a
schools, police and fire)
c. The proposed action may displace affordable or low-income housing in an area where | C2, C3, DIf O O
there is a shortage of such housing. Dlg,Ela
d. The proposed action may interfere with the use or enjoyment of officially recognized | C2, E3 O O
or designated public resources.
e. The proposed action is inconsistent with the predominant architectural scale and C2,C3 O
character,
f. Proposed action is inconsistent with the character of the existing natural landscape. C2,C3 O O
Ela, Elb
E2g, E2h
g. Other impacts: O O

PRINT FULL FORM

Page 10 of 10

-117-




Agency Use Only [IfApplicable]

Project :

Date:

Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 3 - Evaluation of the Magnitude and Importance of Project Impacts
and
Determination of Significance

Part 3 provides the reasons in support of the determination of significance. The lead agency must complete Part 3 for every question
in Part 2 where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where there is a need to explain why a particular
element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse environmental impact.

Based on the analysis in Part 3, the lead agency must decide whether to require an environmental impact statement to further assess
the proposed action or whether available information is sufficient for the lead agency to conclude that the proposed action will not
have a significant adverse environmental impact. By completing the certification on the next page, the lead agency can complete its
determination of significance.

Reasons Supporting This Determination:
To complete this section:

#  ldentify the impact based on the Part 2 responses and describe its magnitude. Magnitude considers factors such as severity,
size or extent of an impact.

*  Assess the importance of the impact. Importance relates to the geographic scope, duration, probability of the impact
occurring, number of people affected by the impact and any additional environmental consequences if the impact were to
oceur.

»  The assessment should take into consideration any design element or project changes.

»  Repeat this process for each Part 2 question where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where
there is a need to explain why a particular element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse
environmental impact.

s  TProvide the reason(s) why the impact may, or will not, result in a significant adverse environmental impact

= For Conditional Negative Declarations identify the specific condition(s) imposed that will modify the proposed action so that
o significant adverse environmental impacts will result.

= Attach additional sheets, as needed.

Potedial inpad it shalln dedrock  ll it/ ke
AF?”"”"S 1 - fmﬁ’} oo bedvocl |

s Determination of Significance - Type 1 and Unlisted Actions

SEQR Status: m Type 1 [ Unlisted
Identify portions of EAF completed for this Project: ]E:] Part 1 M Part 2 [X:] Part3

-118- FEAF 2019



Upon review of the information recorded on this EAF, as noted, plus this additional support information

" nd considering both the magnitude and importance of each identified potential impact, it is the conclusion of the
as lead agency that:

A. This project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environment, and, therefore, an environmental impact
statement need not be prepared. Accordingly, this negative declaration is issued,

[C1 B. Although this project could have a significant adverse impact on the environment, that impact will be avoided or
substantially mitigated because of the following conditions which will be required by the lead agency:

There will, therefore, be no significant adverse impacts from the project as conditioned, and, therefore, this conditioned negative
declaration is issued, A conditioned negative declaration may be used only for UNLISTED actions (see 6 NYCRR 617.7(d)).

[ ¢ This Project may result in one or more significant adverse impacts on the environment, and an environmental impact
statement must be prepared to further assess the impact(s) and possible mitigation and to explore alternatives to avoid or reduce those
impacts. Accordingly, this positive declaration is issued.

Name of Action: FQH‘S J’-\]”x Saiﬁr p{‘a}'ccd“

Name of Lead Agency: R4l Plans Ing Boar/

Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: Ui i i ﬂ‘ s G 50 ™ ’\d“ "

Title of Responsible Officer: ] R T -

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: r’,_/(,. M/ Date: 3 / ﬁ';d;/_q,cg_:n__ )
Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Olyﬁcerj Date: |

For Further Information:
Contact Person:

Address;

Telephone Number:

E-mail;
For Type 1 Actions and Conditioned Nepative Declarations, o copy of this Notice is sent to:

Chief Executive Officer of the political subdivision in which the action will be principally located (e.g., Town / City / Village of)
Other involved agencies (if any)

Applicant (if any)
Environmental Notics Bulletin: http:/www.dec.ny.gov/enb/enb html
PRINT FULL FORM Page 2 of 2

-119-




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

Project Summary Date 10/5/2021

Project GSPP North Project #

Location 24658 CR 47 North, Town of Champion, NY 13601 School Carthage Central

Tax Parce 76.06-1-38.1 Project Type 875KW, No Storage

Total Tx. $2,291 Village

Community Distributed Generation 7.96 Acres Town Champion

Total Projéct Costs 51,507,840 Jobs

Land Retained 0
Infastructure 330,170 Added 2

Building Total 2

Furnituer & Fixtures 220,286 Next Five Years

Equipment Construction Jobs 27
Solar Equipment 848,537 Current Assessment 126,600
Interconnect Costs 108,847 Final Assessment 782,250
Eng/Arch Fees

Finance Charges Agency Fee $30,157

Legal Fees App Fee Paid 2,500 5/19/2020
Solar Installation Labor Agency Fee is calculated based on the fee schedule
Other-Soft Costs on the Application. This project is under $10 Million
|Tota| 1,507,840 so the fee is 2% of Total Project Costs.

Sales Tax Exemption Not Applied For

Total Material
Taxable Material

4% County Tax 0
4% NY5 Tax
Mortgage Recording Tax Not Applied For
Est Mortgage Amount S0
MRT Savings 50.0
( No Storage)

PILOT Per .875 MW W/0 PILOT
Year 1 6,349.99 14,664.98
Year 2 6,225.48 14,664.98
Year 3 6,103.41 14,664.98
Year 4 5,983.74 14,664.98
Year 5 5,866.41 14,664.98
Year 6 5,751.38 14,664.98
Year 7 5,638.61 14,664.98
Year 8 5,528.05 14,664.98
Year 9 5,419.66 14,664.98
Year 10 5,313.39 14,664.98
Year 11 5,209.20 14,664.98
Year 12 5,107.06 14,664.98
Year 13 5,006.93 14,664.98
Year 14 4,908.75 14,664.98
Year 15 4,812.50 14,664.98

83,224.56 219,974.75

38%

New Assessment

SMW 1MW 0.875

4,470,000 894,000 782,250

JYA/ROBINSON/DESKTOP

Champion Tax Rates 2020

County 7.377142
Town 3.499207
School CCs 57.870833
18.747182

-120-




GSPP NORTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered... Page 1 of 8

Cost-Benefit Analysis for GSPP NORTH ( OMNI NAVITAS )

Prepared by Jefferson County LDC using InformAnalytics

-121-
https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/462 10/5/2021



GSPP NORTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered... Page 2 of 8

Executive Summary

INVESTOR TOTAL JOBS TOTAL INVESTED LOCATION TIMELINE
GSPP 24658 3 Ongoing; $1.5 Million 24658 CR 47 15 Years
CR47 NORTH, 15 Temporary NORTH TOWN
LLC OF CHAMPION
7l FIGURE 1

Discounted* Net Benefits for GSPP NORTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) by Year

1 000k
750k
500k
250k
¢
=250k
S Y O S . T ) VP R
s 4 { A R 4 4 { i 5 " ~ I " ~
F W& @& W F @& ,\tP{D -&‘??} J\szﬁ _@3’5 —L‘ﬁ _k-z?} 4_6'3}
@ Benefits @ Costs -0 Net Benefits
i \
F2  FIGURE 2 73 FIGURE 3
Total Jobs Total Payroll
v R W
Ongoing .l
0 1
0 5 10 15 20 Millions of Dollars
@ Direct @ Spillover @® Direct @ Spillover

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/462

«122-

Total Net Benefits: $2,516,000

10/5/2021



GSPP NORTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered... Page 4 of 8

Proposed Investment

GSPP 24658 CR47 NORTH, LLC proposes to invest $1.5 million at 24658 CR 47 NORTH TOWN OF CHAMPION
over 15 years. Jefferson County LDC staff summarize the proposed with the following: 875KW SOLAR ARRAY

Tt TABLE1

Proposed Investments

Description
CONSTRUCTION SPENDING

Community Distributed
Generation

Total Investments

Discounted Total (2%)

May not sum to total due to rounding.

Arnount

$1,508,000

$1,508,000

$1,508,000

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/462

F4

FIGURE 4

Location of Investment

-123-

10/5/2021



GSPP NORTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered... Page 5 of 8

Cost-Benefit Analysis

A cost-benefit analysis of this proposed investment was conducted using InformAnalytics, an economic impact
model developed by CGR. The report estimates the impact that a potential project will have on the local
economy based on information provided by Jefferson County LDC. The report calculates the costs and benefits
for specified local taxing districts over the first 15 years, with future returns discounted at a 2% rate.

T2  TABLE 2
Estimated Costs or Incentives

Jefferson County LDC is considering the following incentive package for GSPP 24658 CR47 NORTH, LLC.

Description Mominal Values Discounted Valua*®
Property Tax Exemption $93,000 $81,000
Total Costs 593,000 $81,000

May not sum to total due to rounding.
* Discounted at 2%

-124-
https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/462 10/5/2021



GSPP NORTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered... Page 6 of 8

T3 TABLE3

State & Regional Impact (Life of Project)
The following table estimates the total benefits from the project over its lifetime.

Dascription
REGIONAL BENEFITS
To Private Individuals
Temporary Payroll
Ongoing Payroll
To the Public

Property Tax
Revenue

Temporary Sales
Tax Revenue

Ongoing Sales Tax
Revenue

STATE BENEFITS
To the Public

Temporary
Income Tax
Revenue

Ongoing Income
Tax Revenue

Temporary Sales
Tax Revenue

Ongoing Sales Tax
Revenue

Total Benefits to State &
Ragian

Discounted Total Benefits
(2%)

May not sum to total due to rounding.

Diract

$2,105,000

$2,021,000

$521,000

$1,500,000

585,000

$55,000

$8,000

$22,000

$120,000

$120,000

$23,000

$71,000

$7,000

$19,000

32,225,000

$2,022,000

=1 2=

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/462

Splilaver

$608,000

$599,000

$128,000

$471,000

$9,000

N/A

$2,000

$7,000

$31,000

$31,000

$6,000

$18,000

$2,000

$6,000

$639,000

$576,000

Tatal
$2,713,000
$2,620,000

$649,000
$1,971,000

594,000

$55,000

$10,000

$29,000

$151,000

5151,000

$29,000

$89,000

$8,000

$25,000

$2,864,000

$2,597,000

10/5/2021



GSPP NORTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered... Page 8 of 8

T4 TABLE4

Benefit to Cost Ratio
The following benefit to cost ratios were calculated using the discounted totals.

Description Benefit* Cost™® Ratio
Region $2,461,000 $81,000 301
State $137,000 $0 N/A
Grand Total 42,597,000 $81,000 320

May not sum to total due to rounding.
* Discounted at 2%

CGR has exercised reasonable professional care and diligence in the production and design of the InformAnalytics™ tool, However, the data used
is provided by users. InformAnalytics does not independently verify, validate or audit the data supplied by users. CGR makes no representations or

warranties with respect to the accuracy of the data supplied by users.

-126-
https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/462 10/5/2021



Application to

Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency (JCIDA)

0 Tax Exempt Bond Financing
0 Taxable Bond Financing
0 Lease Leaseback Transaction

Please contact the agency for more information
regarding project eligibility and application process.

Applicant (Company) Name:
GSPP 24658 County Route 47 North, LLC

Applicant Address:

1 Landmark Square, Suite 320, Stamford, CT 06901

Phone:
203-496-8950

E-mail:

commercialoperations@gspp.com

Application Date: hy ¢l

—

Internal Use Only

Staff Signature and Date of Submission: @Mb
Revised Date: , Revision #:

Completed Application Date: /57';?/ 2 Staff Initial__.

-127-

Document Date: September 30, 2021




Fee Schedule

Updated as of the date of the document

Taxable and Tax Exempt Industrial Development Revenue Bonds

Application Fee:

Fee:

Point of Contact:

A non-refundable fee of $2,500.00 is payable to the JCIDA at the time the
application is submitted. This fee will be credited towards the total fee at closing.

First $10 million — 2% of the principal amount of the bond series.
$10 million - $20 million — 1% of the bond series.
Any amount over $20 million — 0.5% of the bond series.

Annual Fee - $1,500.00

David Zembiec — CEO JCIDA+1 (315) 782-5865

Lease Leaseback Transactions

Application Fee:

Fee:

Point of Contact:

Revised Date:

A non-refundable fee of $2,500.00 is payable to the JCIDA at the time the
application is submitted. This fee will be credited towards the total fee at closing.

With a PILOT:

First $10 million - 2%

Second $10-$20 million - 0.5%

Any amount over $20 million - 0.25%

No PILOT - 25% of the abatement value
David Zembiec - CEQ JCIDA +1 (315)782-5865

, Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-128-



- wsection I Applicant Information ® .-

Please answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary.

A) Applicant Information-company receiving benefit:

Applicant Name: GSPP 24658 County Route 47 North, LLC
Applicant Address: 1 Landmark Square, Suite 320, Stamford, CT 06901

Website: 9SPP-COM E-mail: DD@gspp.com
Federal ID#: 84-5051832 NAICS: 221114

Will a Real Estate Holding Company be utilized to own the Project property/facility? [H] Yes or[ ] No
What is the name of the Real Estate Holding Company: GSPP NN FUND IV, LLC

Federal ID#: 84-5014476

State and Year or Incorporation/Organization: NY, 9/1/2020

List of stockholders, members, or partners of Real Estate Holding Company: N/A

Renewable Energy Projects: Attach ownership chart and indicate companies that will eventually own

and operate project

B) Individual Completing Application:

Name: Olivia Sproviero

Title: Project Manager
Address: 1landmark squire suite 320 stamford ct 06901

Phone: 203.947.2609 -
E-Mail: OSproviero@gspp.com

C) Company Contact (if different from Section B above):

Name: Scott Kerner
Title: Manager
Address: 1 Landmark Square, Suite 320, Stamford CT 06901

Phone: 203-496-8950 e
E-Mail: Scott@gspp.com

Revised Date: , Revision #;

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-129-



D) Company Counsel:

Name of Attorney: Debi Galler
Firm Name: Green Street Power Partners, LLC

Address: 1830 East Park Avenue, Suite 201, Tallahassee, FL 3230
Phone: _74-269-2564 Fax: 617-507-5624
E-mail: dgaller@gspp.com

E) Identify the assistance being requested of the Agency (select all that apply):

1. Exemption from Sales Tax 1 Yes or[] No
2. Exemption from Mortgage Tax [ Yes or[] No
3. Exemption from Real Property Tax [®] Yes or[] No
4. Tax Exempt Financing * ] Yes or[] No

* (typically for not-for-profits and qualified small manufacturers)

F) Applicant Business Information (check appropriate category):

Corporation ] Partnership W
Public Corporation ~ [] Joint Venture O
Sole Proprietorship ] Limited Liability Company [x]
Other (please specify)

Year Established: March 4 2020

State in which Organization is established: NY

G) List all Applicant stockholders, members, or partners with % of ownership greater than 20%:

Name % of ownership
GSPP NN Fund IV, LLC 100

H) Applicant Business Description:

Describe in detail company background, products, customers, goods and services. Description is critical

il‘l determ ining E“gi bi'ity: The company was formed for the sole purposa of the pholavoltaic solar array and the electricity the array will be producing,

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-130-



Estimated % of sales within Jefferson County: 25

Estimated % of sales outside Jefferson County, but within New York State: 75
Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S.: None
Estimated % of sales outside the U.S. None

(*Percentage to equal 100%)

I) What percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services are purchased from
firms in Jefferson County. Include list of vendors, raw material suppliers and percentages for each.

Provide supporting documentation including estimated percentage of local purchases.
N/A

Section 1I: Project Description & Details -

A) Project Location:

List your current operation(s) locations in Jefferson County:
None

List your current operation(s) locations in New York State:
None

Provide the Property Address of the proposed Project:
24658 County Route 47 North champion NY 13601

Will the completion of the Project result in the removal, or reduction of an industrial or manufacturing
plant of the Applicant from: one area of New York State to Jefferson County; or within Jefferson County?

[] Yes or No [

If Yes, please provide details

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-131-



Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the

Applicant located within New York State?
[JYes or No [H]

If Yes, please provide details

Will the Proposed Project cause Applicant’s current operations within Jefferson County to be closed or

be subjected to reduced activity?
[]Yes or No IE

If Yes, please provide details

If Yes to any of the above three (3) questions, Applicant must complete Section IV of this Application.

Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment, removal, or reduction of an industrial or

manufacturing plant of a closely aligned competitor from one area of New York State or Jefferson

County?
(] Yes or No [H]

If Yes, please provide details

4 76.06-1-38.1

SBL Number for Property upon which proposed Project will be locate

What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site?

If amount of current taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each:
Land: § 126,600 Buildings(s): $

** [If available please include a copy of current tax bill.

Are Real Property Taxes current? Yes or[_] No. If no, please explain

School District: Carthage School district

Town/City/Village: Champion

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title to the Project site? ] Yes or ] No
If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site: EState of Elwood M Thomas

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

“1g2-



Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site? [ ] Yes or[H No

B) Please provide narrative of project and the purpose of the project (new build, renovations,
and/or equipment purchases). Identify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and

all tenants and any/all end users: (This information is critical in determining project eligibility):
The proposed project i s a ground mountad phatovoltale solar energy system. T his project covers approximately 7.96 acres of the parcel located

at 24658 County Route 47 - North, Champlon, NY 13601. The solar system will be comprised of Tier 1 modules In a single-axs tracker setup,

equipment pads for transformers, and a 16° gravel access road coming from the west off County Route 47. The system will be inslalled to maximlze

production and output, while minimizing the disturbance of any sails. Currently, the property is being used for hay crop, and will continue to be

used for such outside the proposed project area. At the end of the project life, the property will be restored to ils existing condition,

Describe the reasons why the Agency’s Financial Assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project
will have on the Applicant’s business or operations. Focus on competitiveness issues, project

shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determination will be based in part on your answer (attach
3dditi0nﬂl pages ifnecessary): Withoul ihe Agency's Finsncial Ausisisnce, Dhars i 3 Ngh Ienood (hal the projsct would mol e Undertakan dus 16 sconamia reasans. If granted Finandal Aislslanca

ity users, The aloctricity

« will ba produting electricity that will ba fed Inta the grid and Indiraclly old to consumers. Thase consumers can be In the form of amall busi or lagor

produced will be sold to consumars In the form of energy credits that go towards offselling a subsedber's monthly electricity bill, a procass known as community salar,

Please confirm by checking the box, below, if there is a strong possibility that the Project would not
be undertaken but for the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency?

[®] Yes or[ ] No

If Yes, please provide details:

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the Agency, then
provide a statement in the space provided below indicating why the Project should be undertaken

by the Agency: NA

If the Applicant is unable to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on
the Applica nt?  the proposed project is unabla Io oblaln Financlal Assistanca, th projoct company wili most likely ba dissolved, as tha project would mast likely nat be undariaken.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-133-



C) Will Project include leasing any equipment [_] Yes or[B] No

If Yes, please describe:

D) Site Characteristics:

Describe the present use Ofﬂlﬂ p]’OpOSEd PI'G_iBCt Sitﬁ: Currently, the location of the proposed project s belng used for hay erap.

Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed location? [B] Yes or[ ] No

If Yes, please provide local zoning reference that applies:
See attached for the Site Plan Approval resolution granted by the Town of Champion Planning Board.

For Renewable Energy Projects — provide acres [H] leased or [] owned: 7-96

Describe the present zoning/land use: The parcel is located in the Rural Corridor (RC) district and is being used for hay crop

Descl'ibe rEquired Zoningﬂand use if diff&l‘ent' Tha zaning will nal change, but the project area will bo used for a solar pholovellale energy system,
'y .

If a change in zoning/land use is required, please provide details/status of any request for change of
zoning/land use requirements: NA

Is the proposed project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is

complicating the development/use of the property? If yes, please explain:
No

Have site plans been submitted to the appropriate planning board or department?

[®] Yes or[] No

** If yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the related State Environmental Quality
Review Act (“SEQR”) Environmental Assessment Form that may have been required to be submitted
along with the site plan application to the appropriate planning department. Please provide the Agency

with the status with respect to any required planning department approval:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-134-



Has the Project received site plan approval from the planning department? [M] Yes or[_] No.
If Yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the planning department approval along with

the related SEQR determination.

E) Has a Phase I Environmental Assessment been prepared, or will one be prepared with respect to the

proposed project site? [M] Yes or[ ] No Ifyes, please provide a copy.

F) Have any other studies or assessments been undertaken with respect to the proposed project site that

indicate the known or suspected presence of contamination that would complicate the site’s development?

[] Yes or[®] No. Ifyes, please provide copies of the study

G) Provide any additional information or details:

H) Select Project Type for all end users at project site (you may check more than one):

** Please check any and all end users as identified below.

Industrial ] Back Office L]
Acquisition of Existing Facility [ ] Retail L]
Housing ] Mixed Use ]
Equipment Purchase ] Facility for Aging L]
Multi-Tenant L] Civic Facility (not for profit)y [ ]
Commercial ] Other Renewable energy [x]

** Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes
with respect to either economic activity indicated below, complete the Retail Questionnaire contained in

Section III of the Application.
Retail Sales: [] Yes or M| No Services: [ ] Yes or [H No

For purposes of this question, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under
Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law™) primarily engaged in the retail sale
of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (ii) sales of a
service to customers who personally visit the Project.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-135-



I) Project Information:

Estimated costs in connection with Project:

Renewable Energy Projects use Cost Section on next page.

1. Land and/or Building Acquisition:

acres

square feet

New Building Construction:
New Building Addition(s):
Infrastructure Work
Reconstruction/Renovation:

Manufacturing Equipment:

Ve N s W

Other, Specify:

square feet

square feet

square feet

Non-Manufacturing Equipment (furniture, fixtures, etc.):

Soft Costs: (professional services, etc.):

Project refinancing; estimated amount

(for refinancing of existing debt only)

Sources of Funds for Project Costs:

Bank Financing:

TOTAL Capital Costs:

Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits)

Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable)

Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable)

Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal

grants and tax credits)

Identify each state and federal grant/credit:

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs:

Revised Date:

, Revision #:

$

$

$

$

§

$

$

§

§

$

§
§768,998.40
§ 226,176.00
50
50

¢ 512,665.60

$

§

$
¢ 1,507,840

10

-136-

Document Date: 9/30/2021



11

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this Application? [B] Yes or (] No

If Yes, describe particulars:

Construction has started so a number of equipment and site work costs have been incurred

Renewable Energy Project: Project Costs

1. Solar equipment costs $ 848’537
(panels, racking, all solar equipment to inverters)

2. Site equipment and FF&E costs b 220'286
(on-production equipment from inverter to interconnection,
including site fencing, security and other equipment)

3. Site work and land preparation costs b 330, 170
(earthwork, roadways, landscaping, and site plan
improvements, highway cuts, wetland mitigation and
other onsite infrastructure costs)

4. All interconnection costs whether direct or indirect 3 1 08’847
expense through utility

5. All pre-development costs, including planning, engineering, b
site plan and permitting

6. Battery storage costs 3

7. All other soft costs including legal, planning and permitting $

8. Community benefit payments or impact fees $

9. Other (please identify): 3
o 51,507,840

Revised Date: , Revision #:

=137~

Document Date: 9/30/2021



12

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit: Amount of mortgage that would be subject to mortgage

recording tax:

Mortgage Amount (include sum total of construction/permanent/bridge financing): § NA

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit (product of mortgage

Amount as indicated above multiplied by _ %): § NA

Construction Cost Breakdown:

Total Cost of Construction $ (sum of 2,3,4,5, and/or 7 in Question [, above)

Cost for materials: $
% sourced in Jefferson County: %
% sourced in New York State 50 % (including Jefferson County)

List major material suppliers if known

Cost for labor: 3
Expected Full-Time Equivalent Jobs during construction 20
Expected Total Labor Hours during construction 9.600

List major subcontractors, if known

Sales and Use Tax: Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to State and local Sales
and Use tax - said amount to benefit from the Agency’s Sales and Use Tax exemption benefit:

$

Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit (product of 8 % multiplied by the figure, above):

$

** Note that the estimate provided above will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation
and Finance. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the
Applicant to undertake the total amount of invesiment as proposed within this Application, and that the
estimate, above, represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency may
authorize with respect to this Application. The Agency may utilize the estimate, above, as well as the
proposed total Project Costs as contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance

that will be offered.

Real Property Tax Benefit:

Identify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property tax exemption benefit OTHER
THAN the Agency’s PILOT benefit: NA

Revised Date: , Revision #;

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-138-



13

JCIDA PILOT Benefit: Agency staff will indicate the amount of PILOT Benefit based on estimated
Project Costs as contained herein and anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation, including the annual
PILOT Benefit abatement amount for each year of the PILOT benefit year and the sum total of PILOT
Benefit abatement amount for the term of the PILOT as depicted in Section II(I) of the Application.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources: Agency staff will calculate the
percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources based upon Sources of Funds for Project

Costs as depicted above in Section II(I) of the Application.

J) For the proposed facility, please indicate the square footage for each of the uses outlined below:

*If company is paying for FFE for tenants, please include in cost breakdown

Square Footage Cost % of Total Cost of Project
Manufacturing/Processing
Warehouse
Research & Development
Commercial 0
Retail (see section K) 0
Office 0
Spealny Cither 371,000 100%

K) What is your project timetable (Provide dates):

1. Start date: acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities: 2/15/21

2. Estimated completion date of project: 11/15/21
3. Project occupancy — estimated starting date of operations: 11/15/20

4, Have construction contracts been signed? [H] Yes or[] No

5. Has Financing been finalized? [H] Yes or[] No
** If constructions contracts have been signed, please provide copies of executed construction contracts

and a complete project budget. The complete project budget should include all related construction costs

totaling the amount of the new building construction, and/or new building addition(s), and/or renovation.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-139-



L) Is the proposed Project necessary to expand Applicant employment: [_]| Yes or[_] No

Is the proposed Project necessary to retain existing employment: [E] Yes or[] No
M) Employment Plan (Specific to the proposed project location):
Current # of jobs at [[F FINANCIAL [F FINANCIAL
proposed project  [ASSISTANCE IS ASSISTANCE IS
location or to be GRANTED - project [GRANTED - project
relocated at project [the number of FTE  [the number of FTE
location jobs to be RETAINED [jobs to be CREATED
upon THREE Years
ﬁﬂer Project
ompletion
**Full time

14

** By statute, Agency staff must project the number of FTE jobs that would be retained and created if the

request for Financial Assistance is granted. Agency staff will project such jobs over the Three-Year time

period following Project completion. convert part-time jobs into FTE jobs by dividing the number of

part-time jobs by two (2). A FTE job is one that works the equivalent of a 40-hour week for 48 weeks. A

part-time job is one that works the equivalent of a 20-hour week for 24 weeks.

Salary and Fringe Benefits for Jobs to be Retained and Created:

ategory of Jobs to be
Retained and Created

FTE

Average Salary or Range of Salary

Average Fringe Benefits or
Range of Fringe Benefits

Management

Professional

Administrative

Production

Transportation/Logistics

Warehousing

Other

TOTAL

Revised Date:

, Revision #:

-140-

Document Date: 9/30/2021



15

Employment at other locations in County/City/Town/Village: (provide address and number of employees
at each location):

Location Address

Full time

Part Time
Total 0

N) Will any of the facilities described above be closed or subject to reduced activity? [ ] Yes or [H] No

** If any of the facilities described above are located within the State of New York, and you answered

Yes to the question, above, you must complete Section IV of this Application.

** Please note that the Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections, among other items, to
determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to retain the

number of jobs and create the number of jobs with respect to the Project as set forth in this Application.

0) Is the proposed Project reasonably necessary to prevent the Applicant from moving out of New York
State? [] Yes or[®] No. Out of Jefferson County? [] Yes or[®] No.

If yes, please explain and identify the other locations being investigated, type of assistance offered and

provide supporting documentation if available:

P) What competitive factors led you to inquire about sites outside of Jefferson County or New York

State?
Factors included the feasibility of ather parcels of land, including the terrain and the proximity to three phase electrical service . This parcel was

selecled as a desirable location due to the factors above, as we felt this parcel was the best location for a solar photovaltaic energy system.

Q) Have you contacted or been contacted by other Local, State and/or Federal Economic Development

Agencies? [] Yes or[] No.
Have you applied, or intend to apply for additional Grant Funding, or tax incentives? [_] Yes or [B] No.
If yes, please identify which agencies and what other Local, State and/or Federal assistance and the

assistance sought and dollar amount that is anticipated to be received:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

4



16

i Section TIT Retail Questionnaire -«

To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency
requires additional information if the proposed Project is one where customers personally visit the
Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase services.

Please answer the following:

A. Will any portion of the Project (including that portion of the cost to be financed from equity or
other sources) consist of facilities or property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of
goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

[ Yes or @] No. If the answer is yes, please continue. If no, proceed to section V

For purposes of Question A, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under
Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law™) primarily engaged in the
retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or
(ii) sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

B. What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property
primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project?
%. If the answer is less than 33% do not complete the remainder

of the retail determination and proceed to section V.

If the answer to A is Yes AND the answer to Question B is greater than 33.33%, indicate which
of the following questions below apply to the project:

1. Will the Project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation (] Yes or[] No.

2. Is the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors from outside
the economic development region (list specific County or ED region) in which the project will be

located?

[] Yesor[] No
If yes, please provide a third-party market analysis or other documentation supporting your
response.

3. Is the predominant purpose of the Project to make available goods or services which would
not, but for the Project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the municipality within which
the proposed Project would be located because of a lack of reasonably accessible retail trade
facilities offering such goods or services?

[] Yesor[] No

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-142-



17

If yes, please provide a third-party market analysis or other documentation supporting your
response.

4. Will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall number of
permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York?

[] Yes or[] No.

If yes, explain

5. Is the Project located in a Highly Distressed Area? [_] Yesor[_] No

Section IV.Inter-Municipal Move Determination

The Agency is required by State law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting
from Agency Financial Assistance results in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the
Applicant from one area of New York State to another area of the State; or in the abandonment of one or
more plants or facilities of the Applicant located within the New York State , Agency Financial
Assistance is required to prevent the Applicant from relocating out of the New York State, or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the Applicant’s competitive position in its respective industry.

Explain how the Agency’s Financial Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of
New York State, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupant’s competitive position in its

respective industry:

j Secti_cilleAd_al)_ﬁy’q Reuse Determination '/

(Adaptive Reuse is the process of adapting old structures or sites for new purposes)

Are you applying for a tax incentive under the Adaptive Reuse Program? [] Yes or [H] No

If No, please proceed to next Section

A) What is the age of the structure (in years)

B) Has the structure been vacant or underutilized for a minimum of 3 years? (Underutilized is defined as a
minimum of 50% of the rentable square footage of the structure being utilized for a use for which the structure

was not designed or intended) [] Yes or [] No. How many years?

C) Is the structure currently generating insignificant income? (Insignificant income is defined as income that is
50% or less than the market rate income average for that property class) [ ] Yes or[] No

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-143-



18

If yes, please provide dollar amount of income being generated, if any

D) Does the site have historical significance? [] Yes or[] No

E) Are you applying for either State/Federal Historical Tax Credit Programs? [] Yes or[] No. If yes, provide
estimated value of tax credits

F) Summarize the financial obstacles to development that this project faces without Agency or other public
assistance. Please provide the Agency with documentation to support the financial obstacles to development
(you will be asked to provide cash flow projections, documenting costs, expenses and revenues with and
without IDA and other tax credits included indicating below average return on investment rates compared to

regional industry averages):

G) Briefly summarize the demonstrated support that you intend to receive from local government entities. Please
provide the Agency documentation of this support in the form of signed letters from these entities:

H) Please indicate other factors that you would like the Agency to consider such as: structure or site presents
significant public safety hazard and or environmental remediation costs, site or structure is located in distressed
census tract, structure presents significant costs associated with building code compliance, site has historical
significance, site or structure is presently delinquent in property tax payments:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-144-



Sectmn VI Bstnmlc of Real Pl ‘oper t}

5 fnnnce

ax Abatement Bcneﬁts -md Per ccmage of P: cuect Cost:
m Publlc Seclol soulces _'j : . :

** Section V of this Application will be: (i) completed by IDA Staff based upon information

contained within the Application, and (ii) provided to the Applicant for ultimate inclusion as part

of this completed Application.

PILOT Estimate Table Worksheet

Dollar Value | Estimated County Tax Local Tax Rate School Tax
of New New Assessed | Rate/1000 (Town/City/Village)/1000 | Rate/1000
Construction | Value of
and Property
Renovation Subject to
Costs IDA*
*Apply equalization rate to value
PILOT % County | Local School Total Full Tax | Net
Year Payment | PILOT PILOT PILOT PILOT Payment | Exemption
Amount | Amount | Amount w/o
PILOT

1

v

3

4

5

6

¥

8

9

10
TOTAL

*Estimates provided are based on current property tax rates and assessment values

Revised Date:

, Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-145-




20

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector Table Worksheet:

Total Project | Estimated | Estimated Estimated Value of | Total of Other Public
Cost Value of | Value of Sales | Mortgage Tax Incentives (Tax Credits,
PILOT Tax Incentive | Incentive Grants, ESD Incentives,
etc.)

Calculate %

(Est. PILOT + Est. Sales Tax+ Est. Mortgage Tax+ Other)/Total Project Costs: Yo

JCIDA will also complete a Cost-Benefit analysis using information contained within this
Application, and available to the Public.

w7 /Section VII Representations, Certifications and Indemnification

P )
g A

(name of CEO or other authorized representative of Applicant)

confirms and says that  he/she is the ‘ (title) of
(name of corporation or other entity) named in the attached

Application (the “Applicant”), that he/she has read the foregoing Application and knows the contents
thereof, and hereby represents, understands, and otherwise agrees with the Agency and as follows:

A. Job Listings: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal Law,
the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance
from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, new
employment opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York
State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the “DOL”) and with the
administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the “JITPA Entities”) of the service delivery
area created by the federal job training partnership act (Public Law 97-300) (“JTPA”) in
which the Project is located.

B. First Consideration for Employment: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York
General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining
agreements, where practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate
in JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment
opportunities created as a result of the Project.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-146-



21

e, Annual Sales Tax Filings: In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York General
Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any sales
tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance from the Agency, in accordance with
Section 874(8) of the General Municipal Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be
filed, with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form
prescribed by the Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax
exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors retained by the

Applicant. Copies of all filings shall be provided to the Agency.

D. Employment Reports: The Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with
the Agency, at least annually or as otherwise required by the Agency, reports regarding the
number of people employed at the project site, salary levels, contractor utilization and such
other information (collectively, “Employment Reports™) that may be required from time to
time on such appropriate forms as designated by the Agency. Failure to provide Employment
Reports within 30 days of an Agency request shall be an Event of Default under the PILOT
Agreement between the Agency and Applicant and, if applicable, an Event of Default under
the Agent Agreement between the Agency and Applicant. In addition, a Notice of Failure to
provide the Agency with an Employment Report may be reported to Agency board members,
said report being an agenda item subject to the Open Meetings Law.

E. The Applicant acknowledges that certain environmental representations will be required at
closing. The Applicant shall provide with this Representation, Certification and
Indemnification Form copies of any known environmental reports, including any existing
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report(s) and/or Phase II Environmental
Investigations. The Agency may require the Company and/or owner of the premises to
prepare and submit an environmental assessment and audit report, including but not
necessarily limited to, a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report and a Phase II
Environmental Investigation, with respect to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the
owner and/or the Applicant. All environmental assessment and audit reports shall be
completed in accordance with ASTM Standard Practice E1527-05, and shall be conformed
over to the Agency so that the Agency is authorized to use and rely on the reports. The
Agency, however, does not adopt, ratify, confirm or assume any representation made within
reports required herein.

E. The Applicant and/or the owner, and their successors and assigns, hereby release, defend and
indemnify the Agency from any and all suits, causes of action, litigations, damages, losses,
liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or
expenses of any kind or nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys’,
consultants’ and experts’ fees) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or
asserted or awarded against the Agency, resulting from or arising out of any inquiries and/or
environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on behalf of the Applicant
and/or the owner pursuant hereto, including the scope, level of detail, contents or accuracy of
any environmental assessment, audit, inspection or investigation report completed hereunder
and/or the selection of the environmental consultant, engineer or other qualified person to
perform such assessments, investigations, and audits.

G. Hold Harmless Provision: The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the Applicant shall be
and is responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in connection with any actions required

Revised Date: , Revision #;

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-147-



22

to be taken by the Agency in furtherance of the Application including the Agency’s costs of
general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application,
the proposed Project it describes, the attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds or other
transaction or agreement are ultimately ever carried to successful conclusion and agrees that
the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the Agency
harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or expense incurred by: (i) the
Agency's examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application,
regardless of whether or not the Application or the proposed Project described herein or the
tax exemptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted upon by the
Agency; (ii) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or installation of the proposed Project
described herein; and (iii) any further action taken by the Agency with respect to the
proposed Project including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of
action and attorney's fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions
which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing. Applicant hereby understands and agrees,
in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York General Municipal Law and the policies
of the Agency that any New York State and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the
Applicant and approved by the Agency, any mortgage recording tax exemption claimed by
the Applicant and approved by the Agency, and/or any real property tax abatement claimed
by the Applicant and approved by the Agency, in connection with the Project, may be subject
to recapture and/or termination by the Agency under such terms and conditions as will be
established by the Agency and set forth in transaction documents to be entered into by and
between the Agency and the Applicant. The Applicant further represents and warrants that
the information contained in this Application, including without limitation information
regarding the amount of the New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefit,
the amount of the mortgage recording tax exemption benefit, and the amount of the real
property tax abatement, if and as applicable, to the best of the Applicant’s knowledge, is true,
accurate and complete.

H. This obligation includes an obligation to submit an Agency Fee Payment to the Agency in
accordance with the Agency Fee policy effective as of the date of this Application

L By executing and submitting this Application, the Applicant covenants and agrees to pay the
following fees to the Agency and the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s
bond/transaction counsel, the same to be paid at the times indicated:

(i) a non-refundable $ application and publication fee (the “Application Fee”);
(i) al expense deposit for the Agency’s Counsel Fee Deposit.
(iii)  Unless otherwise agreed to by the Agency, an amount equal to percent

( %) of the total project costs.

(iv)  All fees, costs and expenses incurred by the Agency for (1) legal services, including but
not limited to those provided by the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction
counsel, thus note that the Applicant is entitled to receive a written estimate of fees and costs of the
Agency’s general counsel and the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel; and (2) other consultants
retained by the Agency in connection with the proposed project, with all such charges to be paid by

the Applicant at the closing.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-148-



23

T, If the Applicant fails to conclude or consummate the necessary negotiations, or fails, within a
reasonable or specified period of time, to take reasonable proper or requested action, or
withdraws, abandons, cancels, or neglects the Application, or if the Applicant is unable to
find buyers willing to purchase the bond issue requested, or if the Applicant is unable to
facilitate the sale/leaseback or lease/leaseback transaction, then, upon the presentation of an
invoice, Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents, or assigns all actual costs incurred by
the Agency in furtherance of the Application, up to that date and time, including but not
necessarily limited to, fees of the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s
bond/transaction counsel.

K. The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that all payment liabilities to the Agency and the
Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond and/or transaction counsel as expressed
in Sections H and I are obligations that are not dependent on final documentation of the

transaction contemplated by this Application.

L. The cost incurred by the Agency and paid by the Applicant, the Agency’s general counsel
and/or bond/transaction counsel fees and the processing fees, may be considered as a cost of
the Project and included in the financing of costs of the proposed Project, except as limited by
the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code with respect to tax-exempt bond

financing.

M. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency is subject to New York State’s Freedom of
Information Law (FOIL). Applicant understands that all Project information and records
related to this application are potentially subject to disclosure under FOIL subject to

limited statutory exclusions.

N. The Applicant acknowledges that it has been provided with a copy of the Agency’s Policy for
Termination of Agency Benefits and Recapture of Agency Benefits Previously Granted (the
“Termination and Recapture Policy”). The Applicant covenants and agrees that it fully
understands that the Termination and Recapture Policy is applicable to the Project that is the
subject of this Application, and that the Agency will implement the Termination and
Recapture Policy if and when it is so required to do so. The Applicant further covenants and
agrees that its Project is potentially subject to termination of Agency financial assistance
and/or recapture of Agency financial assistance so provided and/or previously granted.

0. The Applicant understands and agrees that the provisions of Section 862(1) of the New York
General Municipal Law, as provided below, will not be violated if Financial Assistance is

provided for the proposed Project:

§ 862. Restrictions on funds of the agency. (1) No funds of the agency shall be used in
respect of any project if the completion thereof would result in the removal of an industrial or
manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of the
state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located
within the state, provided, however, that neither restriction shall apply if the agency shall
determine on the basis of the application before it that the project is reasonably necessary to
discourage the project occupant from removing such other plant or facility to a location
outside the state or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the project

occupant in its respective industry.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-149-



24

P The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the owner, occupant, or operator receiving
Financial Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial compliance with applicable
local, state and federal tax, worker protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations.

Q. The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the submission of any knowingly false or
knowingly misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any Financial
Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount equal to all or part of any tax exemption
claimed by reason of the Agency’s involvement the Project.

R, The Applicant confinns and hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this Application, the
Applicant is in substantial compliance with all provisions of Article 18-A of the New York
General Municipal Law, including, but not limited to, the provision of Section 859-a and
Section 862(1) of the New York General Municipal Law.

S. The Applicant and the individual executing this Application on behalf of Applicant
acknowledge that the Agency and its counsel will rely on the representations and covenants
made in this Application when acting hereon and hereby represents that the statements made
herein do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements contained herein not misleading.

STATE OF CONNECTICUT )
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD ) ss.:

6{1 ) j\“*' ‘(‘\? e , being first duly swom, deposes and says:

1. That I am the M optrelef (Corporate Office) of (7SPP 2H6BA County Rovie 47 Nyl

(Applicant) and that | am duly authorized on behalf of the Applicant to bind the Applicant.

ar to the best of

2. That | have read the attached Application, I know the contents thereof, an
my knowledge and belief, this Application and the contents of thi

accurate and complete.

~"7 " (Signature of Officer)

Subscribed and affirmed to me under analties of perjury

this 30 day of Septemine . 202
A4 AF

(Notary Public)

STEPHANIE 8. SANTANA
NOTARY PUBLIC OF CONNECTICUT
Comm. # 174886
My Commission Expires 9/30/2022

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

=150~



SUPPLEMENTAL PROJECT AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION
(GSPP 24658 County Route 47 North, LLC Project — Assignment Authorization)

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency convened on
Thursday, October 7, 2021 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 10.07.2021.04

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE “AGENCY”) (i) AUTHORIZING AN
ASSIGNMENT REQUEST RECEIVED FROM GSPP 24658 COUNTY ROUTE
47 NORTH, LLC (THE “COMPANY”) IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN
PROJECT (AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BELOW) TO BE UNDERTAKEN
BY THE AGNECY AND THE COMPANY; AND (ii) AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO
SAME.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by
the Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Project Authorizing Resolution adopted on October 15, 2020
(the “Project Authorizing Resolution”), the Agency appointed GSPP 24658 COUNTY ROUTE
47 NORTH, LLC (the “Company™), as agent of the Agency to undertake a certain Project (the
“Project™) consisting of: (A)(1) the acquisition of a leasehold interest in a portion of a certain
parcel of land located in the Town of Champion, to wit: tax parcel 76.06-1-38.1, Jefferson County,
New York (the “Land”), and (2) construction, installation and equipping on the Land of a solar-
powered electric generating facility, including all related equipment and improvements, with a total
planned alternating current output capacity of 0.875 megawatts (the “Facility”) to be operated by
the Company (the Land and the Facility collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”); (B) the
granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the Act) with
respect to the foregoing, including exemptions from sales and use taxes and real property taxes for
the Project Facility (but not including special district taxes) (collectively, the “Financial
Assistance”); and (C) the sublease of the Project Facility back to the Company or such other person
as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; all as contemplated by and
in furtherance of the purposes of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law; and

WHEREAS, as of the date of the Company’s Application for Financial Assistance (the
“Original Application™), the Original Application was submitted by and through Omni Navitas

Praa T

-151-



through GSPP Omni Holdco, LLC as the original owner of the Company (the “Original
Company Parent); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a certain Agreement to Assign Membership Interest, dated as of
December 16, 2020, by and between the Original Company Parent and GSPP Holdco, LLC
(“GSPP Holdco”), the Original Company Parent assigned 100% of its membership interest in the
Company to GSPP Holdco (the “First Assignment™), and as of the same date, GSPP Holdco
entered into a tax equity transaction whereby the ownership interests of the Company are held by
GSPP NN Fund IV, LLC (“GSPP NN”) (the “Second Assignment”); and

WHEREAS, the Company has requested the Agency’s approval of the First Assignment
and the Second Assignment (collectively, the “Assignment”) and has provided the Agency with
an updated Application for Financial Assistance (the “Updated Application”) and additional
background and financial information for the Agency to review and consider; and

WHEREAS, in addition to authorizing the within-described assignments, the Agency
further desires to adopt a conformed description of the Project to be included within the project
documents, which shall read as follows: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest
in an approximately 7.51 acre portion of a parcel of real property located at 24658 County Route
47 in the Town of Champion, New York (the “Land”, being more particularly described as a
portion of tax parcel No. 76.06-1-38.5, as may be subdivided); (ii) the planning, design,
construction and operation of a .875MWac PV solar electrical generation system, including panel
foundations, inverters, transformers, interconnect wiring, on and offsite utility connections,
sitework, landscaping, fencing, security and related improvements (collectively, the
“Improvements™); (iii) the acquisition of and installation in and around the Land and
Improvements by the Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other items of tangible
personal property (the “Equipment” and, collectively with, the Land and the Improvements, the
“Facility”); and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision
(15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in
the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility back to the Company
(the “Straight Lease Transaction™); and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the foregoing, the Agency desires to (i) authorize the
Assignment subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, (ii) the adoption of the
conformed description of the Project as noted above, and (iii) the execution and delivery of
certain documents and agreement in furtherance of same, if necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon the representations made by the Company, the Agency hereby
consents to, authorizes and approves the Assignment subject to the terms and conditions set forth
herein. The Agency hereby further adopts the confirmed description of the Project as set forth
above, with all other provisions of the Project Authorizing Resolution remaining in full force and
effect as of the date hereof.

Prea
-152-



DRAETY
Section2.  The Agency’s consent and approval of the Assignment is subject to

payment by the Company of all costs and fees of the Agency in connection with review,
consideration and authorization of the Assignment.

Section 3. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer of the
Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver any documents
and agreements necessary to effectuate the Assignment, with such changes as shall be approved
by the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer and counsel to the Agency
upon execution,

Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 5. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call,
which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain
Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. [ ] [ ] [ J [ ]
David J. Converse [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
John Jennings [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
William W. Johnson [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
Lisa L'Huillier [ ] [ 1 [ ] [ ]
W. Edward Walldroff [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
Paul J. Warneck [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.

Peara 2

=153~



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) SS:

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”™), including the resolution contained therein, held
on October 7, 2021, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and
correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of the
whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said
Agency this ___ day of s 2021,

W. Edward Walldroff, (Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Fﬂfw- A

-154-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

Project Summary Date 10/5/2021
Project GSPP South Project #
Location 24658 CR 47 North, Town of Champion, NY 13601 School Carthage Central
Tax Parce 76.06-1-38.1 Project Type 875KW, No Storage
Total Tx. $2,291 Village
Community Distributed Generation 6.27 Acres Town Champion
Total Project Costs $1,507,840 Jobs
Land Retained 0
Infastructure 330,170 Added 1
Building Total 1
Furnituer & Fixtures 220,286 Next Five Years: 1
Equipment Construction Jobs 27
Solar Equipment 848,537 Current Assessment 126,600
Exemption Final Assessment 782,250
Eng/Arch Fees 108,847
Finance Charges Agency Fee 530,157
Legal Fees App Fee Paid 2,500 5/19/2020
Solar Installation Labor
Other-Soft Costs
Total 1,507,840
Sales Tax Exemption Not Applied For Champion Tax Rates 2020
Total Material County 7.377142
Taxable Material Town 3.499207
4% County Tax 0 School CCs  57.870833
4% NYS Tax 18.747182
Mortgage Recording Tax Not Applied For
Est Mortgage Amount 50
MRT Savings 50.0
( No Storage)

PILOT Per .875 MW W/0 PILOT
Year1 6,349.99 14,664.98
Year 2 6,225.48 14,664.98
Year 3 6,103.41 14,664.98
Year 4 5,983.74 14,664.98
Year 5 5,866.41 14,664.98
Year 6 5,751.38 14,664.98
Year 7 5,638.61 14,664.98
Year 8 5,528.05 14,664.98
Year 9 5,419.66 14,664.98
Year 10 5,313.39 14,664.98
Year 11 5,209.20 14,664.98
Year 12 5,107.06 14,664.98
Year 13 5,006.93 14,664.98
Year 14 4,908.75 14,664.98
Year 15 4,812.50 14,664.98

83,224.56 219,974.75

38%

New Assessment

S5MW 1MW 0.875

4,470,000 894,000 782,250

'YA/ROBINSON/DESKTOP

~1b6-




GSPPSOUTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered ... Page 1 of 8

Cost-Benefit Analysis for GSPPSOUTH ( OMNI NAVITAS)

Prepared by Jefferson County LDC using InformAnalytics

-156-
https://my.informanalytics.org/cba/report/463 10/5/2021



GSPPSOUTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered ... Page 2 of 8

Executive Summary

INVESTOR TOTAL JOBS TOTAL INVESTED LOCATION TIMELINE
GSPP 24658 CR 1 Ongoing; $1.5 Million 24658 CR 47 15 Years
47 SOUTH, LLC 15 Temporary South Town of
Champion
F1  FIGURE 1
Discounted* Net Benefits for GSPPSOUTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) by Year
( Hay Total Net Benefits: $1,584,000
1 000k
750k
500k
2501
0
-250k
o b el FLa: ] P H O B Wk B
& ,\:z? : 4}5’ _,ke?’” & W W G ..\fi!:& q@fb‘.\ ‘_L&«S.* ;‘z.’*‘ _\z_,:é h\@é
@ Benefits @ Costs <O Net Benefits
FZ  FIGURE 2 F3  FIGURE 3
Total Jobs Total Payroll

. | | Temporary RN W
Ongoin |

Ongoing I
0 500 1000
0 5 10 15 20 Thousands of Dollars
® Direct @ Spillover @ Direct @ Spillover

-157-
https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/463 10/5/2021



GSPPSOUTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered ... Page 4 of 8

Proposed Investment

GSPP 24658 CR 47 SOUTH, LLC proposes to invest $1.5 million at 24658 CR 47 South Town of Champion over 15
years. Jefferson County LDC staff summarize the proposed with the following: 875KW SOLAR

T1  TABLE1

Proposed Investments

Description
CONSTRUCTION SPENDING

Community Distributed
Generation

Total Investments

Discounted Total (2%)

May not sum to total due to rounding.

Armount

$1,508,000

$1,508,000

$1,508,000

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/463

Fa

FIGURE 4

Lacation of Investment

-158-

10/5/2021



GSPPSOUTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered ... Page 5 of 8

Cost-Benefit Analysis

A cost-benefit analysis of this proposed investment was conducted using InformAnalytics, an economic impact
model developed by CGR. The report estimates the impact that a potential project will have on the local
economy based on information provided by Jefferson County LDC. The report calculates the costs and benefits
for specified local taxing districts over the first 15 years, with future returns discounted at a 2% rate.

T2 TABLE2

Estimated Costs or Incentives
Jefferson County LDC is considering the following incentive package for GSPP 24658 CR 47 SOUTH, LLC.

Description Nominal Value Discounted Value™
Property Tax Exemption $98,000 $85,000
Total Costs $98,000 585,000

May not sum to total due to rounding.
* Discounted at 2%

-159-
https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/463 10/5/2021



GSPPSOUTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered ... Page 6 of 8

‘2 TABLE 3

State & Regional Impact (Life of Project)
The following table estimates the total benefits from the project over its lifetime.

Deascription Direct Spillover Total
REGIONAL BENEFITS $1,340,000 $369,000 $1,700,000
To Private Individuals $1,271,000 $364,000 51,634,000
Temporary Payroll $521,000 $128,000 $649,000
Ongoing Payroll $750,000 $235,000 $985,000
To the Public 569,000 55,000 574,000
Property Tax
Raidiie $50,000 N/A $50,000
Temporary Sales $8,000 $2,000 $10,000

Tax Revenue

Ro:\ic’r::i Sl Tk $11,000 $4,000 $15,000
STATE BENEFITS $75,000 $19,000 $94,000
Ta the Public £75,000 £19,000 $94,000
Temporary
Income Tax $23,000 $6,000 $29,000
Revenue
? a:'gzglge ;lc:me $35,000 $9,000 $44,000
Temporary Sales
sl $7,000 $2,000 $8,000
g:f:r'lzi W T $10,000 $3,000 $13,000
Total Benefits to State &
:{'jt;:)g@' el b $1,414,000 $388,000 $1,803,000
i
g;§°""t9d Totat Benelits $1,313,000 $357,000 $1,669,000
May not sum to total due to rounding.
-160-

https://ny.informanalytics.org/cba/report/463 10/5/2021



GSPPSOUTH ( OMNI NAVITAS ) | Cost Benefit Analysis | Inform Analytics | Powered ... Page 8 of 8

T4 TABLE4

Benefit to Cost Ratio
The following benefit to cost ratios were calculated using the discounted totals.

Description Benefit* Cost* Ratio
Region $1,582,000 $85,000 191
State $87,000 $0 N/A
Grand Total $1,669,000 $85,000 201

May not sum to total due to rounding.
* Discounted at 2%

CGR has exercised reasonable professional care and diligence in the production and design of the InformAnalytics™ tool. However, the data used
is provided by users. InformAnalytics does not independently verify, validate or audit the data supplied by users. CGR makes no representations or

warranties with respect to the accuracy of the data supplied by users.

-161-
https://ny informanalytics.org/cba/report/463 10/5/2021



Application to

Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency (JCIDA)

0 Tax Exempt Bond Financing
0 Taxable Bond Financing
0 Lease Leaseback Transaction

Please contact the agency for more information
regarding project eligibility and application process.

Applicant (Company) Name:

GSPP 24658 County Route 47 South, LLC

Applicant Address:

1 Landmark Square, Suite 320, Stamford, CT 06901

Phone:
203-496-8950

E-mail:
DD@gspp.com

Application Date: 10/4/2021

Internal Use Onl
Staff Signature and Date of Submission:_/2 rM Zef—é?i&f’m

Revised Date: , Revisfon #:
Completed Application Date: /[// ?j 2-) Staff Initial

Document Date: September 30, 2021

-162-



Fee Schedule

Updated as of the date of the document

Taxable and Tax Exempt Industrial Development Revenue Bonds

Application Fee:

A non-refundable fee of $2,500.00 is payable to the JCIDA at the time the
application is submitted. This fee will be credited towards the total fee at closing.

First $10 million — 2% of the principal amount of the bond series.

Fee:
$10 million - $20 million — 1% of the bond series.
Any amount over $20 million — 0.5% of the bond series.
Annual Fee - $1,500.00
Point of Contact: David Zembiec — CEO JCIDA+1 (315) 782-5865
Lease Leaseback Transactions
Application Fee: A non-refundable fee of $2,500.00 is payable to the JCIDA at the time the
application is submitted. This fee will be credited towards the total fee at closing.
Fee: With a PILOT:
First $10 million— 2%
Second $10-$20 million - 0.5%
Any amount over $20 million - 0.25%
No PILOT - 25% of the abatement value
Point of Contact: David Zembiec - CEQ JCIDA +1 (315)782-5865
Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-163-



- Section T: ‘Applicant Information .

Please answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary.

A) Applicant Information-company receiving benefit:

Applicant Name: GSPP 24658 County Route 47 South, LLC
Applicant Address: 1 Landmark Square, Suite 320, Stamford, CT 06901

Phone: 203'496'8950 Fax:
Website: 9SPP-cOM E-mail: PD@gspp.com
Federal ID#: 84-5051832 NAICS: 221114

Will a Real Estate Holding Company be utilized to own the Project property/facility? [H] Yes or[] No
What is the name of the Real Estate Holding Company: GSPP NN FUND IV, LLC

Federal [D#: 85-2813362

State and Year or Incorporation/Organization: NY, 9/1/2020
List of stockholders, members, or partners of Real Estate Holding Company: N/A

Renewable Energy Projects: Attach ownership chart and indicate companies that will eventually own

and operate project

B) Individual Completing Application:

Name: Olivia Sproviero
Title: Project Manager
Address: 1landmark squire suite 320 stamford ct 06901

Phone: 203.947.2609 —
E-Mail: OSproviero@gspp.com

C) Company Contact (if different from Section B above):

Name: Scott Kerner

Title: Manager

Address: 1 Landmark Square, Suite 320, Stamford CT 06901

Phone: 203-496-8950 i

E-Mail: Scott@gspp.com

Revised Date: ' , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-164-



D) Company Counsel:

Name of Attorney:; P€bi Galler
Firm Name: Green Street Power Partners, LLC

Address: 1830 East Park Avenue, Suite 201, Tallahassee, FL 3230
Phone: _{74-269-2564 Fax: 617-507-5624

E-mail: 9galler@gspp.com

E) Identify the assistance being requested of the Apency (select all that apply):

1. Exemption from Sales Tax []Yes or[] No
2. Exemption from Mortgage Tax : []Yes or[] No
3. Exemption from Real Property Tax =] Yes or[] No
4. Tax Exempt Financing * []Yes or[] No

* (typically for not-for-profits and qualified small manufacturers)

F) Applicant Business Information (check appropriate category):

Corporation 1 Partnership ]
Public Corporation N Joint Venture |
Sole Proprietorship ] Limited Liability Company [x]
Other (please specify)

Year Established; March 4 2020

State in which Organization is established: NY

G) List all Applicant stockholders, members, or partners with % of ownership greater than 20%:

Name % of ownership
GSPP NN Fund IV, LLC 100

H) Applicant Business Description:

Describe in detail company background, products, customers, goods and services. Description is critical

il'l deterrn ining El lglbillty The company was formed for the sola purpose of the photavollale solar array and the electricity the armay will be producing.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-165-



Estimated % of sales within Jefferson County: 25

Estimated % of sales outside Jefferson County, but within New York State: 75
Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S.; None
Estimated % of sales outside the U.S, None

(*Percentage to equal 100%)

I) What percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services are purchased from
firms in Jefferson County. Include list of vendors, raw material suppliers and percentages for each.

Provide supporting documentation including estimated percentage of local purchases.

N/A

~ % “Section II: Project Description & Details

A) Project Location:

List your current operation(s) locations in Jefferson County:
None

List your current operation(s) locations in New York State:
None

Provide the Property Address of the proposed Project:
24658 County Route 47 North champion NY 13601

Will the completion of the Project result in the removal, or reduction of an industrial or manufacturing

plant of the Applicant from: one area of New York State to Jefferson County; or within Jefferson County?

[] Yes or No [m]

If Yes, please provide details

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-166-



Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the

Applicant located within New York State?

[[] Yes or No [H|

If Yes, please provide details

Will the Proposed Project cause Applicant’s current operations within Jefferson County to be closed or

be subjected to reduced activity?
[ Yes or No [m]

If Yes, please provide details

If Yes to any of the above three (3) questions, Applicant must complete Section IV of this Application.

Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment, removal, or reduction of an industrial or

manufacturing plant of a closely aligned competitor from one area of New York State or Jefferson

County?
[[] Yes or No [H]

If Yes, please provide details

SBL Number for Property upon which proposed Project will be located: 76.06-1-38.1

What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site?

If amount of current taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each:
Land: § 126,600 Buildings(s): §

** If available please include a copy of current tax bill.

Are Real Property Taxes current? [B] Yes or [] No. If no, please explain

Town/City/Village: Champion School District: Carthage School District

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title to the Project site? [ ] Yes or [H] No
If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site: EState of Elwood M Thomas

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-167-



Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site? [] Yes or [E] No

B) Please provide narrative of project and the purpose of the project (new build, renovations,
and/or equipment purchases). Identify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and

all tenants and any/all end users: (This information is critical in determining project eligibility):
The proposed project i s a ground mounted photovollaic solar energy system. T his project covers approximalely 6.27 acres of the parcel located

at 24658 County Route 47 - North, Champlon, NY 13601. The solar system will be comprised of Tier 1 modules in a single-axls tracker selup,

equipment pads for transformers, and a 16' gravel access road coming from the west off County Route 47. The system will be Installed to maximize

production and output, while minimizing the disturbance of any solls. Currently, the praperty is being used for hay crop, and will continue to be

used for such outside the proposed project area, At the end of the project life, the property will be restored to its existing condition.

Describe the reasons why the Agency’s Financial Assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project
will have on the Applicant’s business or operations. Focus on competitiveness issues, project

shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determination will be based in part on your answer (attach
additic.na[ pagcs if I'IECESSRI'Y): Withaut tve Agarcy's Financial Asshilance, hess s & high Ielnoed hal tha preject weuld not ba undartaken dus 16 sconomic reasans. If granted Financial Astlsiance

or lagor usars. Tha

+ will bo preducing electricily thal will be fed into the grid and Indirectly sold to consumers. Thesa censumora ean be In the form of amall

producad will be sald to consumers in the form of energy credits that go towards offsatting a subscriber's monthly electricity bill, a process known as community salar,

Please confirm by checking the box, below, if there is a strong possibility that the Project would not
be undertaken but for the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency?

] Yes or[ ] No
If Yes, please provide details:

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the Agency, then
provide a statement in the space provided below indicating why the Project should be undertaken

by the Agency: NA

If the Applicant is unable to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on
the Applicant? If the proposed projact is unabls te ebiain Financlal Asslstance, the project company will mast llkely ba dissolved, as the project would most likely nol ba undartaken.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-168-



C) Will Project include leasing any equipment [_] Yes or [B] No

If Yes, please describe:

D) Site Characteristics:

' . s ct Is bel ed for h: 3
Describe the present use of the proposed Project site: Cument. the location af the praposed project s being used for hay crop

Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed location? Yes or[_|] No

If Yes, please provide local zoning reference that applies:
See attached for the Site Plan Approval resolution granted by the Town of Champion Planning Board.

For Renewable Energy Projects — provide acres leased or [ ] owned:

The parcel is located in the Rural Corridor (RC) district and Is being used for hay crop

Describe the present zoning/land use:

Describe required zoning/land use, if different: The zoning will nol change, but the project aren will be used for a salar phatovoltaic anergy systam.
If a change in zoning/land use is required, please provide details/status of any request for change of

zoning/land use requirements: NA

Is the proposed project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is

complicating the development/use of the property? If yes, please explain:
No

Have site plans been submitted to the appropriate planning board or department?

[®] Yes or[] No

** If yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the related State Environmental Quality
Review Act (“SEQR™) Environmental Assessment Form that may have been required to be submitted
along with the site plan application to the appropriate planning department. Please provide the Agency

with the status with respect to any required planning department approval:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-169-



Has the Project received site plan approval from the planning department? [B] Yes or[] No.
If Yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the planning department approval along with

the related SEQR determination.

E) Has a Phase I Environmental Assessment been prepared, or will one be prepared with respect to the

proposed project site? [M] Yes or[_] No If yes, please provide a copy.

F) Have any other studies or assessments been undertaken with respect to the proposed project site that
indicate the known or suspected presence of contamination that would complicate the site’s development?

[J Yes or[®] No. Ifyes, please provide copies of the study

G) Provide any additional information or details:

H) Select Project Type for all end users at project site (you may check more than one):

** Please check any and all end users as identified below.

Industrial ] Back Office ]
Acquisition of Existing Facility [ ] Retail ]
Housing ] Mixed Use ]
Equipment Purchase ] Facility for Aging ]
Multi-Tenant ] Civic Facility (not for profit)  []
Commercial ] Other Renewable energy [x]

** Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes
with respect to either economic activity indicated below, complete the Retail Questionnaire contained in
Section III of the Application.

Retail Sales: [ ] Yes or [B] No Services: [ ] Yes or[H No

For purposes of this question, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under
Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the retail sale
of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (ii) sales of a
service to customers who personally visit the Project.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-170-



I) Project Information:

Estimated costs in connection with Project:

Renewable Energy Projects use Cost Section on next page.

1. Land and/or Building Acquisition: $

acres square feet

New Building Construction: square feet
New Building Addition(s): square feet
Infrastructure Work

Reconstruction/Renovation: square feet
Manufacturing Equipment:

Non-Manufacturing Equipment (furniture, fixtures, etc.):

Soft Costs: (professional services, etc.):

© PN L oA W
& BB 2 BB BB BB B B

Other, Specify:

5

TOTAL Capital Costs:
Project refinancing; estimated amount
(for refinancing of existing debt only) b

Sources of Funds for Project Costs:

Bank Financing: ¢ 768,998.40

Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits) $ 226,176.00

g0
g0

Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable)
Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable)

Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal

grants and tax credits) ¢ 512,665.60

Identify each state and federal grant/credit:

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs: s 1,507,840

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-171-



Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this Application? [®] Yes or [ ] No

If Yes, describe particulars:

11

Construction has started so a number of equipment and site work costs have been incurred

Renewable Energy Project: Project Costs

1. Solar equipment costs $ 848,537
(panels, racking, all solar equipment to inverters)

2. Site equipment and FF&E costs $ 220'286
(on-production equipment from inverter to interconnection,
including site fencing, security and other equipment)

3. Site work and land preparation costs $ 330’1 70
(earthwork, roadways, landscaping, and site plan
improvements, highway cuts, wetland mitigation and
other onsite infrastructure costs)

4. All interconnection costs whether direct or indirect $
expense through utility

5. All pre-development costs, including planning, engineering, $ 1 08'847
site plan and permitting

6. Battery storage costs 5

7. All other soft costs including legal, planning and permitting $

8. Community benefit payments or impact fees $

9. Other (please identify): h)
Total: $ 1 '507’840

Revised Date: , Revision #:

~172-

Document Date: 9/30/2021



12

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit: Amount of mortgage that would be subject to mortgage

recording tax:

Mortgage Amount (include sum total of construction/permanent/bridge financing): $ NA

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit (product of mortgage

Amount as indicated above multiplied by __ %): $ A
Construction Cost Breakdown:
Total Cost of Construction § 1,507,840 (sum of 2,3,4,5, and/or 7 in Question I, above)
Cost for materials: $
% sourced in Jefferson County: %
% sourced in New York State % (including Jefferson County)

List major material suppliers if known

Cost for labor: $
Expected Full-Time Equivalent Jobs during construction 20
Expected Total Labor Hours during construction 9.600

List major subcontractors, if known

Sales and Use Tax: Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to State and local Sales
and Use tax - said amount to benefit from the Agency’s Sales and Use Tax exemption benefit:

3

Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit (product of 8 % multiplied by the figure, above):

$

** Note that the estimate provided above will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation
and Finance. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the
Applicant to undertake the total amount of investment as proposed within this Application, and that the
estimate, above, represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency may
authorize with respect to this Application. The Agency may utilize the estimate, above, as well as the
proposed total Project Costs as contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance

that will be offered.

Real Property Tax Benefit:

Identify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property tax exemption benefit OTHER
THAN the Agency’s PILOT benefit: NA

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-173-



13

JCIDA PILOT Benefit: Agency staff will indicate the amount of PILOT Benefit based on estimated
Project Costs as contained herein and anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation, including the annual
PILOT Benefit abatement amount for each year of the PILOT benefit year and the sum total of PILOT
Benefit abatement amount for the term of the PILOT as depicted in Section II(T) of the Application.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources: Agency staff will calculate the
percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources based upon Sources of Funds for Project
Costs as depicted above in Section II(I) of the Application.

J) For the proposed facility, please indicate the square footage for each of the uses outlined below:

*If company is paying for FFE for tenants, please include in cost breakdown

Square Footage Cost % of Total Cost of Project
Manufacturing/Processing
Warehouse
Research & Development
Commercial 0
Retail (see section K) 0
Office 0
Bperiry Othar 371,000 100%

K) What is your project timetable (Provide dates):

1. Start date: acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities: 2/15/21

2. Estimated completion date of project: 11715/21

3. Project occupancy — estimated starting date of operations: 11/15/20

4. Have construction contracts been signed? [B] Yes or[] No
5. Has Financing been finalized? [M] Yes or[] No

** If constructions contracts have been signed, please provide copies of executed construction contracts

and a complete project budget. The complete project budget should include all related construction costs

totaling the amount of the new building construction, and/or new building addition(s), and/or renovation.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-174-



L) Is the proposed Project necessary to expand Applicant employment: [] Yes or[] No

Is the proposed Project necessary to retain existing employment: |] Yes or[ ] No
M) Employment Plan (Specific to the proposed project location):
Current # of jobs at |[F FINANCIAL [F FINANCIAL
proposed project  [ASSISTANCEIS  [ASSISTANCE IS
location or to be GRANTED - project [GRANTED - project
relocated at project [the number of FTE  [the number of FTE
location jobs to be RETAINED |jobs to be CREATED
upon THREE Years
after Project
completion
**Full time
FTE) 0 0 2

14

** By statute, Agency staff must project the number of FTE jobs that would be retained and created if the

request for Financial Assistance is granted. Agency staff will project such jobs over the Three-Year time

period following Project completion. convert part-time jobs into FTE jobs by dividing the number of
part-time jobs by two (2). A FTE job is one that works the equivalent of a 40-hour week for 48 weeks. A

part-time job is one that works the equivalent of a 20-hour week for 24 weeks.

alary and Fringe Benefits for Jobs to be Retained and Created:

ategory of Jobs to be
Retained and Created

FTE

Average Salary or Range of Salary

Average Fringe Benefits or
Range of Fringe Benefits

[Management

Professional

Administrative

Production

Transportation/Logistics

Warehousing

Other

TOTAL

Revised Date:

, Revision #:

-175-

Document Date: 9/30/2021




15

Employment at other locations in County/City/Town/Village: (provide address and number of employees
at each location):

Location Address

Full time

Part Time
Total 0

N) Will any of the facilities described above be closed or subject to reduced activity? [ ] Yes or [H] No

** If any of the facilities described above are located within the State of New York, and you answered

Yes to the question, above, you must complete Section IV of this Application.

** Please note that the Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections, among other items, fo
determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to retain the
number of jobs and create the number of jobs with respect to the Project as sel forth in this Application.

0) Is the proposed Project reasonably necessary to prevent the Applicant from moving out of New York
State? [] Yes or[H] No. Out of Jefferson County? [ ] Yes or [E] No.

If yes, please explain and identify the other locations being investigated, type of assistance offered and

provide supporting documentation if available:

P) What competitive factors led you to inquire about sites outside of Jefferson County or New York

State?
Factors Included the feasibility of other parcels of land, including the terrain and the proximily to three phase electrical service . This parcel was

selected as a desirable location due to the faclors above, as we felt this parcel was the best location for a solar photovoltaic energy system.

Q) Have you contacted or been contacted by other Local, State and/or Federal Economic Development

Agencies? [] Yes or[] No.
Have you applied, or intend to apply for additional Grant Funding, or tax incentives? [] Yes or [H] No.

If yes, please identify which agencies and what other Local, State and/or Federal assistance and the

assistance sought and dollar amount that is anticipated to be received:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-176-



16

.0 Section TIT Retail Questionnaire 'z == ¢

To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency
requires additional information if the proposed Project is one where customers personally visit the
Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase services.

Please answer the following:

A. Will any portion of the Project (including that portion of the cost to be financed from equity or
other sources) consist of facilities or property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of
goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

[[] Yes or [B] No. If the answer is yes, please continue. If no, proceed to section V

For purposes of Question A, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under
Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the
retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or
(ii) sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

B. What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property
primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project?
%. If the answer is less than 33% do not complete the remainder

of the retail determination and proceed to section V.

If the answer to A is Yes AND the answer to Question B is greater than 33,33%, indicate which
of the following questions below apply to the project:

1. Will the Project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation [_] Yes or [] No.

2. Is the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors from outside
the economic development region (list specific County or ED region) in which the project will be

located?

[] Yes or[] No
If yes, please provide a third-party market analysis or other documentation supporting your
response.

3. Is the predominant purpose of the Project to make available goods or services which would
not, but for the Project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the municipality within which
the proposed Project would be located because of a lack of reasonably accessible retail trade

facilities offering such goods or services?

[J Yesor[] No

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-177-



17

If yes, please provide a third-party market analysis or other documentation supporting your
response.

4. Will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall number of
permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York?

[] Yes or[] No.

If yes, explain

5. Is the Project located in a Highly Distressed Area? [ ] Yes or[ ] No

¢/%. ‘Section IV Inter-Muhicipal Move Determination

The Agency is required by State law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting
from Agency Financial Assistance results in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the
Applicant from one area of New York State to another area of the State; or in the abandonment of one or
more plants or facilities of the Applicant located within the New York State , Agency Financial
Assistance is required to prevent the Applicant from relocating out of the New York State, or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the Applicant’s competitive position in its respective industry.

Explain how the Agency’s Financial Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of
New York State, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupant’s competitive position in its

respective industry:

' oY 3 Sc.*.ct_iqn“,\’ Adaptive Reuse Determination > 4 ¢

(Adaptive Reuse is the process of adapting old structures or sites for new purposes)
Are you applying for a tax incentive under the Adaptive Reuse Program? [] Yes or [B] No
If No, please proceed to next Section

A) What is the age of the structure (in years)

B) Has the structure been vacant or underutilized for a minimum of 3 years? (Underutilized is defined as a
minimum of 50% of the rentable square footage of the structure being utilized for a use for which the structure

was not designed or intended) [] Yes or [] No. How many years?

C) Is the structure currently generating insignificant income? (Insignificant income is defined as income that is
50% or less than the market rate income average for that property class) (] Yes or[] No

Revised Date: . Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-178-



18

If yes, please provide dollar amount of income being generated, if any

D) Does the site have historical significance? [ ] Yes or[] No

E) Are you applying for either State/Federal Historical Tax Credit Programs? [] Yes or[] No. If yes, provide
estimated value of tax credits

F) Summarize the financial obstacles to development that this project faces without Agency or other public
assistance. Please provide the Agency with documentation to support the financial obstacles to development
(you will be asked to provide cash flow projections, documenting costs, expenses and revenues with and
without IDA and other tax credits included indicating below average return on investment rates compared to

regional industry averages):

G) Briefly summarize the demonstrated support that you intend to receive from local government entities. Please
provide the Agency documentation of this support in the form of signed letters from these entities:

H) Please indicate other factors that you would like the Agency to consider such as: structure or site presents
significant public safety hazard and or environmental remediation costs, site or structure is located in distressed
census tract, structure presents significant costs associated with building code compliance, site has historical
significance, site or structure is presently delinquent in property tax payments:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-179-



: .iSéc.t'ibn‘ VI: Estimate ﬁi‘ Real

‘ 'I"':"(I)perlj'- T
< inanced

e SR

batement Benefits and Percentay
n Public Sector sources *~ .

** Section V of this Application will be: (i) completed by IDA Staff based upon information

contained within the Application, and (ii) provided to the Applicant for ultimate inclusion as part

of this completed Application,

PILOT Estimate Table Worksheet

19

7 bf Project Costs

Dollar Value | Estimated County Tax Local Tax Rate School Tax
of New New Assessed | Rate/1000 (Town/City/Village)/1000 | Rate/1000
Construction Value of
and Property
Renovation Subject to
Costs IDA*

*Apply equalization rate to value
PILOT % County Local School Total Full Tax | Net
Year Payment | PILOT PILOT PILOT PILOT Payment | Exemption

Amount | Amount | Amount w/o
PILOT
1
2
3
4
5
6
¥
8
9
10
TOTAL

*Estimates provided are based on current property tax rates and assessment values

Revised Date:

, Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-180-




20

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector Table Worksheet:

Total Project | Estimated | Estimated Estimated Value of | Total of Other Public
Cost Value of | Value of Sales | Mortgage Tax Incentives (Tax Credits,
PILOT Tax Incentive | Incentive Grants, ESD Incentives,
etc.)

Calculate %

(Est. PILOT + Est. Sales Tax+ Est. Mortgage Tax+ Other)/Total Project Costs: Yo

JCIDA will also complete a Cost-Benefit analysis using information contained within this
Application, and available to the Public.

140w v -Section VII Representations, Certifications and Indemnification

(name of CEO or other authorized representative of Applicant)

confirms and says that  he/she is the (title)  of
(name of corporation or other entity) named in the attached

Application (the “Applicant”), that he/she has read the foregoing Application and knows the contents
thereof, and hereby represents, understands, and otherwise agrees with the Agency and as follows:

A. Job Listings: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal Law,
the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance
from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, new
employment opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York
State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the “DOL”) and with the
administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the “JTPA Entities”) of the service delivery
area created by the federal job training partnership act (Public Law 97-300) (“JTPA”) in
which the Project is located.

B. First Consideration for Employment: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York
General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining
agreements, where practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate
in JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment
opportunities created as a result of the Project.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-181-



21

C: Annual Sales Tax Filings: In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York General
Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any sales
tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance from the Agency, in accordance with
Section 874(8) of the General Municipal Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be
filed, with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form
prescribed by the Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax
exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors retained by the
Applicant. Copies of all filings shall be provided to the Agency.

D. Employment Reports: The Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with
the Agency, at least annually or as otherwise required by the Agency, reports regarding the
number of people employed at the project site, salary levels, contractor utilization and such
other information (collectively, “Employment Reports™) that may be required from time to
time on such appropriate forms as designated by the Agency. Failure to provide Employment
Reports within 30 days of an Agency request shall be an Event of Default under the PILOT
Agreement between the Agency and Applicant and, if applicable, an Event of Default under
the Agent Agreement between the Agency and Applicant. In addition, a Notice of Failure to
provide the Agency with an Employment Report may be reported to Agency board members,
said report being an agenda item subject to the Open Meetings Law.

E. The Applicant acknowledges that certain environmental representations will be required at
closing. The Applicant shall provide with this Representation, Certification and
Indemnification Form copies of any known environmental reports, including any existing
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report(s) and/or Phase II Environmental
Investigations. The Agency may require the Company and/or owner of the premises to
prepare and submit an environmental assessment and audit report, including but not
necessarily limited to, a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report and a Phase II
Environmental Investigation, with respect to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the
owner and/or the Applicant. All environmental assessment and audit reports shall be
completed in accordance with ASTM Standard Practice E1527-05, and shall be conformed
over to the Agency so that the Agency is authorized to use and rely on the reports. The
Agency, however, does not adopt, ratify, confirm or assume any representation made within

reports required herein.

F. The Applicant and/or the owner, and their successors and assigns, hereby release, defend and
indemnify the Agency from any and all suits, causes of action, litigations, damages, losses,
liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or
expenses of any kind or nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys’,
consultants’ and experts’ fees) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or
asserted or awarded against the Agency, resulting from or arising out of any inquiries and/or
environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on behalf of the Applicant
and/or the owner pursuant hereto, including the scope, level of detail, contents or accuracy of
any environmental assessment, audit, inspection or investigation report completed hereunder
and/or the selection of the environmental consultant, engineer or other qualified person to
perform such assessments, investigations, and audits.

G. Hold Harmless Provision: The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the Applicant shall be
and is responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in connection with any actions required

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-182-



22

to be taken by the Agency in furtherance of the Application including the Agency’s costs of
general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application,
the proposed Project it describes, the attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds or other
transaction or agreement are ultimately ever carried to successful conclusion and agrees that
the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the Agency
harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or expense incurred by: (i) the
Agency's examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application,
regardless of whether or not the Application or the proposed Project described herein or the
tax exemptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted upon by the
Agency; (ii) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or installation of the proposed Project
described herein; and (iii) any further action taken by the Agency with respect to the
proposed Project including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of
action and attorney's fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions
which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing. Applicant hereby understands and agrees,
in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York General Municipal Law and the policies
of the Agency that any New York State and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the
Applicant and approved by the Agency, any mortgage recording tax exemption claimed by
the Applicant and approved by the Agency, and/or any real property tax abatement claimed
by the Applicant and approved by the Agency, in connection with the Project, may be subject
to recapture and/or termination by the Agency under such terms and conditions as will be
established by the Agency and set forth in transaction documents to be entered into by and
between the Agency and the Applicant. The Applicant further represents and warrants that
the information contained in this Application, including without limitation information
regarding the amount of the New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefit,
the amount of the mortgage recording tax exemption benefit, and the amount of the real
property tax abatement, if and as applicable, to the best of the Applicant’s knowledge, is true,

accurate and complete.

H. This obligation includes an obligation to submit an Agency Fee Payment to the Agency in
accordance with the Agency Fee policy effective as of the date of this Application

L. By executing and submitting this Application, the Applicant covenants and agrees to pay the
following fees to the Agency and the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s
bond/transaction counsel, the same to be paid at the times indicated:

(i) a non-refundable § application and publication fee (the “Application Fee™);
(ii) a$ expense deposit for the Agency’s Counsel Fee Deposit.

(iii)  Unless otherwise agreed to by the Agency, an amount equal to percent
( %) of the total project costs.

(iv)  All fees, costs and expenses incurred by the Agency for (1) legal services, including but
not limited to those provided by the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction
counsel, thus note that the Applicant is entitled to receive a written estimate of fees and costs of the
Agency’s general counsel and the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel; and (2) other consultants
retained by the Agency in connection with the proposed project, with all such charges to be paid by

the Applicant at the closing.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-183-



23

J. If the Applicant fails to conclude or consummate the necessary negotiations, or fails, within a
reasonable or specified period of time, to take reasonable proper or requested action, or
withdraws, abandons, cancels, or neglects the Application, or if the Applicant is unable to
find buyers willing to purchase the bond issue requested, or if the Applicant is unable to
facilitate the sale/leaseback or lease/leaseback transaction, then, upon the presentation of an
invoice, Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents, or assigns all actual costs incurred by
the Agency in furtherance of the Application, up to that date and time, including but not
necessarily limited to, fees of the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s
bond/transaction counsel.

K. The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that all payment liabilities to the Agency and the
Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond and/or transaction counsel as expressed
in Sections H and I are obligations that are not dependent on final documentation of the

transaction contemplated by this Application.

L. The cost incurred by the Agency and paid by the Applicant, the Agency’s general counsel
and/or bond/transaction counsel fees and the processing fees, may be considered as a cost of
the Project and included in the financing of costs of the proposed Project, except as limited by
the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code with respect to tax-exempt bond

financing.

M. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency is subject to New York State’s Freedom of
Information Law (FOIL). Applicant understands that all Project information and records

related to this application are potentially subject to disclosure under FOIL subject to

limited statutory exclusions.

N. The Applicant acknowledges that it has been provided with a copy of the Agency’s Policy for
Termination of Agency Benefits and Recapture of Agency Benefits Previously Granted (the
“Termination and Recapture Policy™). The Applicant covenants and agrees that it fully
understands that the Termination and Recapture Policy is applicable to the Project that is the
subject of this Application, and that the Agency will implement the Termination and
Recapture Policy if and when it is so required to do so. The Applicant further covenants and
agrees that its Project is potentially subject to termination of Agency financial assistance
and/or recapture of Agency financial assistance so provided and/or previously granted.

0. The Applicant understands and agrees that the provisions of Section 862(1) of the New York
General Municipal Law, as provided below, will not be violated if Financial Assistance is

provided for the proposed Project:

§ 862. Restrictions on funds of the agency. (1) No funds of the agency shall be used in
respect of any project if the completion thereof would result in the removal of an industrial or
manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of the
state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located
within the state, provided, however, that neither restriction shall apply if the agency shall
determine on the basis of the application before it that the project is reasonably necessary to
discourage the project occupant from removing such other plant or facility to a location
outside the state or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the project

occupant in its respective industry.

Revised Date: , Revision #;

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-184-



24

P. The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the owner, occupant, or operator receiving
Financial Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial compliance with applicable
local, state and federal tax, worker protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations.

Q. The Applicant confinns and acknowledges that the submission of any knowingly false or
knowingly misleading infonmation may lead to the immediate termination of any Financial
Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount equal to all or part of any tax exemption
claimed by reason of the Agency's involvement the Project.

R. The Applicant confirms and hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this Application, the
Applicant is in substantial compliance with all provisions of Article 18-A of the New York
General Municipal Law, including, but not limited to, the provision of Section 859-a and
Section 862(1) of the New York General Municipal Law.

S. The Applicant and the individual executing this Application on behalf of Applicant
acknowledge that the Agency and its counsel will rely on the representations and covenants
made in this Application when acting hercon and hereby represents that the statements made
herein do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements contained herein not misleading.

STATE OF CONNECTICUT )
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD ) ss.:

Scoxy Reener , being first duly sworn, deposes and says: “7

A
1. That I am the Maonoue v (Corporate Office) of (5P 24654 Covnty Ruvte S, LLL
(Applicant) and that I am dily authorized on behalf of the Applicant to bin:’;wgdicant.

2, That I have read the attached Application, 1 know the contents thcrca‘f.(ay) hat to the best of
my knowledge and belief, this Application and the contents of thig-Application are true,

accurate and complete.

(Signature of Officer)

Subscribed and affirmed to me under Eemlties of perjury

this 30 day of Seotember , 203
A

(Notary Public)

STEPHANIE S. SANTANA
NOTARY PUBLIC OF CONNECTICUT
Comm. # 174886
My Commission Expires 9/30/2022

Revised Date: . Revision #:

Document Date: 9/30/2021

-185-



D A rass
EDIR A\ IF T
SUPPLEMENTAL PROJECT AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION
(GSPP 24658 County Route 47 South, LLC Project — Assignment Authorization)

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency convened on
Thursday, October 7, 2021 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 10.07.2021.05

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE “AGENCY”) (i) AUTHORIZING AN
ASSIGNMENT REQUEST RECEIVED FROM GSPP 24658 COUNTY ROUTE
47 SOUTH, LLC (THE “COMPANY™) IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN
PROJECT (AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BELOW) TO BE UNDERTAKEN
BY THE AGNECY AND THE COMPANY; AND (ii) AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO
SAME.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by
the Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Project Authorizing Resolution adopted on October 15, 2020
(the “Project Authorizing Resolution™), the Agency appointed GSPP 24658 COUNTY ROUTE
47 SOUTH, LLC (the “Company”), as agent of the Agency to undertake a certain Project (the
“Project”) consisting of: (A)(1) the acquisition of a leasehold interest in a portion of a certain
parcel of land located in the Town of Champion, to wit: tax parcel 76.06-1-38.1, Jefferson County,
New York (the “Land”), and (2) construction, installation and equipping on the Land of a solar-
powered electric generating facility, including all related equipment and improvements, with a total
planned alternating current output capacity of 0.875 megawatts (the “Facilify”) to be operated by
the Company (the Land and the Facility collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”); (B) the
granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the Act) with
respect to the foregoing, including exemptions from sales and use taxes and real property taxes for
the Project Facility (but not including special district taxes) (collectively, the “Financial
Assistance™); and (C) the sublease of the Project Facility back to the Company or such other person
as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; all as contemplated by and
in furtherance of the purposes of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law; and

WHEREAS, as of the date of the Company’s Application for Financial Assistance (the
“Original Application”), the Original Application was submitted by and through Omni Navitas

Pave |
-186-



through GSPP Omni Holdco, LLC as the original owner of the Company (the “Original
Company Parent™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a certain Agreement to Assign Membership Interest, dated as of
December 16, 2020, by and between the Original Company Parent and GSPP Holdco, LLC
(“GSPP Holdco”), the Original Company Parent assigned 100% of its membership interest in the
Company to GSPP Holdco (the “First Assignment™), and as of the same date, GSPP Holdco
entered into a tax equity transaction whereby the ownership interests of the Company are held by
GSPP NN Fund IV, LLC (“GSPP NN”) (the “Second Assignment”); and

WHEREAS, the Company has requested the Agency’s approval of the First Assignment
and the Second Assignment (collectively, the “Assignment”) and has provided the Agency with
an updated Application for Financial Assistance (the “Updated Application”) and additional
background and financial information for the Agency to review and consider; and

WHEREAS, in addition to authorizing the within-described assignments, the Agency
further desires to adopt a conformed description of the Project to be included within the project
documents, which shall read as follows: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest
in an approximately 7.44 acre portion of a parcel of real property located at 24658 County Route
47 in the Town of Champion, New York (the “Land”, being more particularly described as a
portion of tax parcel No. 76.06-1-38.6, as may be subdivided); (ii) the planning, design,
construction and operation of a .875MWac PV solar electrical generation system, including panel
foundations, inverters, transformers, interconnect wiring, on and offsite utility connections,
sitework, landscaping, fencing, security and related improvements (collectively, the
“Improvements™); (iii) the acquisition of and installation in and around the Land and
Improvements by the Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other items of tangible
personal property (the “Equipment™ and, collectively with, the Land and the Improvements, the
“Facility”); and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision
(15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in
the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility back to the Company
(the “Straight Lease Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the foregoing, the Agency desires to (i) authorize the
Assignment subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, (ii) the adoption of the
conformed description of the Project as noted above, and (iii) the execution and delivery of
certain documents and agreement in furtherance of same, if necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon the representations made by the Company, the Agency hereby
consents to, authorizes and approves the Assignment subject to the terms and conditions set forth
herein. The Agency hereby further adopts the confirmed description of the Project as set forth
above, with all other provisions of the Project Authorizing Resolution remaining in full force and
effect as of the date hereof.

Paae 2
-187-



oD A s
WP IR LA EE W

Section2.  The Agency’s consent and approval of the Assignment is subject to
payment by the Company of all costs and fees of the Agency in connection with review,
consideration and authorization of the Assignment.

Section 3. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer of the
Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver any documents
and agreements necessary to effectuate the Assignment, with such changes as shall be approved
by the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer and counsel to the Agency

upon execution.

Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 5. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call,
which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.
David J. Converse
John Jennings
William W. Johnson
Lisa L'Huillier

W. Edward Walldroff
Paul J. Warneck

1 P P e p— p—
L S TS T TS S |
il R N N W Wy |
[T ST TS O TN ST SR |
I [ P P — p—p—
[ Sy R S Y S ST
~ e e e e e
| S [ SN S W S

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.

Ppos 3

-188-



STATE OF NEW YORK ) M Gy
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) SS: FRIR A =T

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held
on October 7, 2021, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and
correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of the
whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

[ FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said
Agency this __ day of , 2021.

W. Edward Walldroff, (Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Proe 4

-189-



_“ I “ “ . Wwesqy - o
ﬁ _ pasnox3 - &
[ jasald - qf
|
L v S L 9 5 9 L 9 L L 9 9 L |s|ejoL
ol d d d d d d d d d d d d d Ined “joaulepy
d v d d d E d d d d d d d d pdemp3 "M "HoIp|IeM
d v d d d d d d d d d d d d es|q Jal||inH,
d d d d d 3 d d d d d d d d wey|im ‘uosuyor
d 3 3 d S d E| d = d d 3 v d uyor ‘sbuluusp
d d 3 d d d d d - d 4 d d d PlABQ *8SI8AUOD
d d d d d d d d d d d d d - Haqoy ‘osselly
dog |izoz/swg| Bny | inr | unp | Aew | ady delW |izoz/giiz| 934 | uep | 28 | AoN | 300 aweN

aduepusyly pleoq Lz02Z-0202

6985-28L (51€)
LOSEL AN ‘umonsiep
008 3NNS ‘snuany ¥angiejs 008
fouaby uswdojenaq [euisnpu) fjunod uosiayar



